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CORPORATE PROFILE
ATEIT

Maoye International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands with limited liability on 8 August 2007. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the operation and management of department stores and property
development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The shares
of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 May 2008 (the
“Listing Date”).

With a unigue operation model of “retail + commercial property”, the
Group has been growing rapidly since its establishment, and has
achieved scale expansion across the country by duplicating this model.
Supported by lands acquired at low costs, the Group uses its physical
retail to nurture property, building a closed ecological cycle in which its
core business supplements and supports each other.

Since Shenzhen Dongmen store, the first store of the Group, opened in
1997, the Group has been concentrating on development and careful
planning for over 20 years, and leveraging its strong competitiveness
and reform and innovation keeping pace with times, the leading position
of the Group in Southern China has been strengthened step by step.
The Group has also further expanded into the most developed markets
with the fastest growth rate in Eastern China, Southwestern China and
Northern China, becoming the industry leader in numbers of regions. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group had 49 stores with total gross floor
area of approximately 3.1 million sg.m., of which self-owned properties
accounted for 78.1% in gross floor area. The major cities under its
coverage include Shenzhen and Zhuhai in Guangdong; Chengdu,
Nanchong and Mianyang in Sichuan; Chongging; Wuxi, Yangzhou,
Taizhou, Nanjing and Huai’an in Jiangsu; Zibo, Laiwu and Heze in
Shandong; Qinhuangdao and Baoding in Hebei; Shenyang and Jinzhou
in Liaoning; Taiyuan in Shanxi; and Hohhot and Baotou in Inner Mongolia.

The Group actively grasps the development trend of medium-to-high end
commercial retail in China, leverages the Group’s years of experience
in operation and brand resource advantages of strategic cooperation,
empowers innovation, integrates online and offline business development,
deeply cultivates consumer experience and technology applications, and
strives to achieve the transformation from traditional department store
retail to new retail business model.

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on
the Company’s website at www.maoye.cn.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of language(s)
(either English only or Chinese only or both languages) of the corporate
communications of the Company (including but not limited to annual
reports, interim reports and circulars) by sending reasonable prior notice
in writing to the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre 16 Harcourt
Road Hong Kong.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company’s corporate
communications in either English or Chinese version will receive both
English and Chinese versions of this annual report since both languages
are bound together into one booklet.
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Mission Statement
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Intelligence Creates

a Happy Life
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MTE TR

OPERATING RESULTS KREEG
For the years ended 31 December
HE12A31BILEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

20234 20224 20214 20204 20194
GV RMB'OOO  RMB00OO  RMB'000  RMB'000
IS \EETT ARETT ARBTRT ARETR

Total sales proceeds and rental income’  SHEFTETIBRAEHA

g 8,526,935 8,989,387 11,647,236 10,688,894 15,415,742
Total operating revenue? B WA HBEE 5,306,289 5,395,975 6,399,996 8,016,385 7,940,561
Operating profit R 1,012,323 1510410 1,614,821 1,304,819 2,701,985
Profit/ (Loss) for the year FEMNE/ (BB (78,196) 205,184 110,592 (248,996) 471,046
Profit attributable to: E(LF
— Owners of the parent —BREERFEA (96,112) 228,093 65,685 (174,636) 186,262
— Minority interests —DE R RS 17,916 (22,909) 44,907 (74,360) 284,784
Basic earnings/ (I0ss) per share (RMB)® SREART/ (BB
N SRR (0.02) 0.04 0.01 (0.03) 0.04
Total sales proceeds and rental income Total operating revenue
HEFSHREREBEWRA L KSR ABRE
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(NREEE®T) (AR¥EET)
20000 100000
15,416 5000 7,941 8,016
15000
6,400
11,547 6000
10,689 5,396 5,306
10000
8989 goo0
4000
5000
2000
0 0
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M TE AR

HIGHLIGHTS OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

2023
20234
RMB’000
AREFR
Assets and liabilities BEREE

Total assets BEMRE 49,043,358
Total liabilities BEEE 33,120,868
Total equity TR EE 15,922,490

- Attributable to owners —BAERAFEA
of the parent e iEm 13,442,964
- Attributable to minority interests —DYRBELER 2,479,526

mREMBERRARAE

For the years ended 31 December

HBZE12831ALEE
2022 2021 2020 2019
20224 20214 20205 20195
RMB'000  RMB00O0  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
50,236,899 51,744,914 51,307,134 53,830,059
33,898,808 35,477,911 35851470 37,675,030
16,338,091 16,267,003 15,455,664 16,155,029
13,824,204 13715262 12,968,145 13,030,346
2513887 2,551,741 2487519 3,124,683

Notes:

1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Total sales proceeds and rental income represent the sum of total sales proceeds
from concessionaire sales and revenue from direct sales at the department stores of
the Group.

Total operating revenue represents the sum of the Group’s revenue and other
income.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2023
is based on the net loss attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB96,112,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2022
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB228,093,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2021
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB65,685,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
is based on the net loss attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB174,636,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB186,262,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

g

1.

HWEMSMEAERBERABRZIEAERMRA
FIERSFEBIHEMER  BIEWARBERALR
e

EE R AMRERIE AL B WA R B UR A B98N

HE2023F12A3 1HEFENESREAREIR
iIRBEBARERFE ARG IEROARE
96,112,0007t K B 21T R B NI F 1595 @K
5,140,326,0008&% 51 & ©

HE2022F 1283 1HIEFEFENEREARRF
DIRESABRERE ARG FIEOARE
228,093,0007T & B 1T D BN F 19 B8 K
5,140,326,0000& 5+ & ©

HE2021F12B3 1 HIEFENSREARRF T
BESADRZREABGEIBEOARE
65,685,0007T & B 217 I (7 B9 i # F 35 & i@ iS
5,140,326,0000& 51 & ©

HE2020F12A31HIEFENSREAREIET
REFAEDEGFE ARG IHEBEBNARE
174,636,0007T K B 8 17 IR 19 BU N #E T 35 & 5@ Bk
5,140,326,00088 51 & o

HE2019F12B31HIEFENESREARRFT
RESATARIFEARGEEIEOAR
186,262,0007T K B 2517 A BN F 35 E @ik
5,140,326,00008 51 & ©
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RETAIL NETWORK

ZEMEE
Gross
Floor Area
No. Store Name Province (sq.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
BE@mRA
st PIEBTE #1145 (FAK) BEBH MEFRBE ER
1 Shenzhen Dongmen Guangdong 40,710  Mar-1997 Owned Department Store
ARINRFIIE [E® 1997438 =SES) BE
2 Shenzhen Huagiangbei Guangdong 63,243 Oct-2003 Leased Department Store
RN RIEIE &R 2003%10A4 BE BE
3 Shenzhen Shennan Guangdong 10,507 Dec-2004 Leased Department Store
FINEE S B 20045128 HE BE
4 Shenzhen Nanshan Guangdong 44,871  Sep-2009 Owned Department Store
I LIS = 2009498 =SES) BE
5 Zhuhai Xiangzhou Guangdong 35,937  Nov-2001 Leased Department Store
HEEME &R 20015118 BE BE
6 Shenzhen Outlet Guangdong 23,141  Dec-1999 Leased Outlets
RN B SIS B 19994128 HE BT
7 Chongqing Jiangbei Chongqing 67,537  Oct-2004 Leased Department Store
BT B 20044F10A HE BE
8 Rendong Sichuan 31,078 Sep-1998 Owned Department Store
AEE epil 1998498 BE BE
9 Guanghua Sichuan 67,914  Dec-2009 Owned Department Store
FCEEE )1 20094124 BE BE
10 Chengdu Chunxi Sichuan 32,066 Nov-2013 Owned Shopping Centre
R EBE RIS )| 2013F 118 BAE By
11 Yanshikou Maoye Complex  Sichuan 42,897  Jun-2005 Owned Department Store
B OXERME epil 2005464 BE BE
12 Nanchong Wuxing Sichuan 25,695 Nov-2001 Owned Department Store
ERREE o)1 20014118 BE BE
13 Mianyang Xingda Sichuan 27,795 Sep-2008 Owned Department Store
RS BIE S )| 2008498 =SES) BE
14 Zibo Maoye Times Square Shandong 86,677 Apr-2015 Owned Shopping Centre
MR ERAESE INE=S 2015548 BB BY RO
15 Laiwu Maoye Complex Shandong 94,616 Dec-2017 Owned Shopping Centre
RETXERME Lz 20175128 BE B
16 Heze Huihe Shandong 31,187 Mar-2011 Owned Department Store
S EEMIE LIz 2011434 BB BE
17 Zibo Maoye Complex Shandong 100,724  Aug-2013 Owned Shopping Centre
RAE T E SN INE=S 20134%8H BB By RO

6 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED X ¥ B EZERBRAE
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RETAIL NETWORK

ZEME
Gross
Floor Area
No. Store Name Province (sq.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
BE@mRA
sk PIE&TE #1% (FAK) BEBH MEFRBE ER
18 Zibo Maoye Plaza Shandong 36,791 Dec-2008 Owned Department Store
MR EESIE IS 2008124 BE BE
19 Zibo Maoye Taikerong Mall ~ Shandong 25,337  Sep-2011 Owned Department Store
MIERERBRE SIS IN=S 201149H BB BE
20 Zibo Maoye Shopping Mall  Shandong 9,761  Sep-1999 Leased Department Store
TEBREB S IS 1999498 BE BE
21 Wuxi Shopping Mall Jiangsu 200,433 Oct-2007 Managed Shopping Centre
mIEYT OIS TLER 20074104 BEIRE YR
22 Taizhou Maoye Dongjin Jiangsu 86,066 Jan-2015 Owned Shopping Centre
TN ERES JLER 2015414 BB By
23 Nanjing Maoye Complex Jiangsu 63,116  Nov-2016 Owned Department Store
R RS L&k 20165118 BE BE
24 Wuxi Yibai Jiangsu 78,695 Mar-2016 Owned Shopping Centre
miZERAE TLER 2016434 BB YR
25 Yangzhou Wenchang Jiangsu 21,485 May-2011 Owned Shopping Centre
BN &5 JLER 2011454 BE BYH L
26 Taizhou First Department Store  Jiangsu 40,358 Oct-2009 Owned Department Store
"NE—BEE JLER 2009104 BA BE
27 Huai’an Maoye Complex Jiangsu 59,856 Apr-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
TER R ERME TLER 2019544 BB YR
28 Taizhou Maoye Complex Jiangsu 108,566 Dec-2021 Owned Shopping Centre
EN D E SN JLER 20214124 BB BYH L
29 Taiyuan Maoye Complex Shanxi 252,882 Nov-2014 Owned Shopping Centre
KIF S FERMIE 78 2014114 BA By RO
30 Taiyuan Liuxiang Shanxi 30,616 Dec-2008 Owned Department Store
KRMEE LLi7g 2008124 BE BE
31 Baotou Maoye Complex Inner Mongolia 63,268 Jan-2017 Owned Shopping Centre
Phase |
BEATRE Xt —HAIE e 2017%F1H BB YR
32 Maoye Times City Inner Mongolia 190,915 Nov-2010 Leased Shopping Centre
IRERRIBE NED 2010114 HE BP0
33 Maoye Mall City Inner Mongolia 131,987 Dec-2013 Owned Shopping Centre
REERPIE WES 20135124 BE BY R
34 Maoye Baotou Donghe Mall  Inner Mongolia 74,709  Nov-2014 Owned Shopping Centre
REB RS e 20145114 BB YR

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE
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RETAIL NETWORK

ZEMEE
Gross
Floor Area
No. Store Name Province (sq.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
BE@mRA
st PIEBTE #1145 (FAK) BEBH MEFRBE ER
35 Maoye Commercial Building  Inner Mongolia 48,187  May-2003 Owned Department Store
REBEEE NED 2003458 =SES) BE
36 Maoye International Plaza Inner Mongolia 83,969 Oct-2008 Owned Department Store
REBRESE A 2008%104 BB BE
37 Maoye Shopping Centre Inner Mongolia 63,173 Sep-2006 Owned Department Store
REBYHLE A 2006498 BE BE
38 Maoye Baotou Victory Inner Mongolia 77,500 Oct-2010 Owned Department Store
Commercial Building
REOEEEE NS 20104104 BB B8
39 Shenyang Tiexi Liaoning 48,496  Jul-2012 Owned Outlets
B PR E R 2012478 BE BT
40 Jinzhou Maoye Complex Liaoning 48,578 Feb-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
8N 3 FE K M S BH= 2019424 BAE B
41 Xiandai Shopping Plaza Hebei 36,926  Oct-2006 Leased Department Store
RARBYESZIE JAE 20064104 BE B8
42 Qinhuangdao Mall Hebei 26,697 May-1996 Owned Department Store
=EEEEE A6 1996458 BB BE
43 Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Hebei 46,287  Jan-2002 Leased Shopping Centre
=252 RE 3G 2002418 HE BP0
44 Qinhuangdao Jindu Hebei 46,610 Sep-2008 Owned Department Store
=E25THEIE JAE 2008498 BAE B8
45 Hualian Commercial Building Hebei 12,737  Mar-1989 Owned Department Store
EEEIS A6 1989438 BB BE
46 Baoding Yanzhao Hebei 61,881 Sep-2014 Owned Department Store
{RIE RIS 3G 2014498 =SES) BE
47 Baoding Guomao Hebei 24,826 Dec-2010 Owned Outlets
IREEE S JAE 20104124 BAE BN
48 Qinhuangdao Maoye Hebei 171,333 Oct-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
Complex
REBRERME pplr 20194104 BE BY RO
49 Chengdu Shuangliu Southwestern 29,520 Jan-2023 Owned Shopping Centre
Maoye Complex China
Y EB & R % 2E R S i3] 2023414 BB WY RO

8  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 Bl iR B fRA & ANNUAL REPORT 2023 EE R &



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERBEE

In 2023, we have witnessed continued recovery in domestic macro
economy and a rise in retail sales after the lift of anti-pandemic measures,
despite complexity in the global geopolitical and economic landscape.
During the reporting period in 2023, with increased macro financial
measures and positive fiscal policies in hope of stimulating domestic
demands and consumption, the domestic market gathered momentum
and was well on track back to an organic growth model. According
to the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s 2023 GDP was RMB126
trillion, up 5.2% yoy, falling within the target range for the year. Driven
by policy, consumption grew marginally in the first half but was subdued
towards the end of the year as commodity consumption slowed down.
During the period, high-end catering and automotive were among the
first to rebound as retail sales grew. Looking ahead to 2024, despite
a challenged and uncertain domestic environment, we will seek and
maintain progressive growth leveraging the nation’s supportive policies
and gather new momentum with new drivers, over the expectation of a
healthy economic growth.

With COVID-19 finally coming to an end, as well as the advancement
and latest development in technology, the world of commercial and
retail sales has been changing. As consumers nowadays emphasize
quality over quantity, and are now after products or services with good
value, they shop less and therefore consumption shrank in general after
the pandemic. We also saw a more diversified landscape in retail, as
consumers now go to an integrated online-offine model in pursuit of
a more tailored shopping experience. In the face of these new market
challenges, opportunities and the more diversified needs ahead, the
Group, on one hand, continues to step up its effort in optimizing our
strategy and priorities and also in the provision of more options with
higher quality, based on the Group's strategy and positioning, and taking
into account the features of different sales regions. On the other hand,
the Group invested more in digitalization and automation, for the sake of
a complete online-offline and two-way integration for higher operational
efficiency, as well as a sound and sustainable development ecology.

After more than 20 years of rapid development, the Group, as an
established player in the department store and retail sector, has built
a complete supply chain, unparalleled edge in property services and
modern management practical experiences. The Group has been able
to maintain a unique competitive edge over its peers and progressive
growth in the up and downs and in times of changes and challenges
facing the economy and the sector. As of the end of 2023, the Group has
49 stores nationwide. Further analyzed by the type of stores, the Group
has 19 shopping centers, 27 department stores and 3 outlets. The prime
business districts where our stores are located and the traffic, together
with the reputation of these locations, are ramping up the positive
publicity for our stores and brands.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERBEE

In 2023, JW Marriott Hotel Chengdu, a subsidiary of the Group, seized
the opportunities in the market, adhered to the quality of JW brand
services, adopted the strategy of flexible pricing and dedicated brand
services, and achieved a breakthrough among its international peer
group in Chengdu and other hotels in the central and western regions
under JW Marriott's umbrella. In 2023, the Company’s revenue from
hotel operations increased by 50.8% year-on-year, hitting a record high.
At the same time, the Group's JW Marriott Hotel Taiyuan had also been
preparing for its grand opening in the Lantern Festival in 2024.

Looking ahead to 2024, the recovery in consumption is expected
to be optimistic as macroeconomic recovery remains positive. The
Group will continue to focus on its principal business, take commercial
retail business as the core, continue to optimise its operations across
the board, pursue progress while maintaining stability, and actively
leverage the overall recovery of the retail industry. The Group will seize
the opportunities in consumption space and business recovery and
development, adhere to high-quality operation and lean management and
services, continue to deepen the Group’s diversified and cross-regional
collaborative development, actively promote the transformation of store-
to-shopping centers and community life centers and the construction of
new stores, continue to improve the Group’s overall capabilities, brand
influence and core competitiveness, and achieve sustainable and high-
quality development for the Group. At the same time, the Group will
get with the times and keep up with its development, adhere to the
practice and innovation of comprehensive digital intelligence, continue
to develop and iterate digital infrastructures, actively expand into new
areas of business growth, continue to forge new core advantages of
the Company, consolidate the Group’s diversified business ecology, and
inject more vitality into the long-term quality development of the Group.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our employees

for their dedication and to express my gratitude to our shareholders and
customers.

Huang Mao Ru
Chairman

20 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREmR DM

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW

2023 continued to see a mixed political and economic environment
in a global context. Domestic economy improved with the full
release of pandemic controls, with the momentum of consumption
recovery moderating after reaching its peak. Domestic economy,
however, has demonstrated strong resilience amid challenges in
recovery. Since the beginning of this year, the nation continued to
adopt a progressive strategy across all regions and departments
while pursuing stability, and with our focus on expanding domestic
demand and optimised structures, economic recovery picked up
marginally towards high-quality development. According to Economic
Daily, in 2023, China's GDP reached RMB126 trillion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 5.2% at constant prices. Total retail
sales of social consumer goods for the year amounted to RMB47.1
trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 7.2%. In 2023, retail
services continued to recover rapidly and outperformed, growing
at a year-on-year rate of 20.0%, compared with the 14.2% posted
by retail sales of goods for the same period. Online consumption
grew rapidly, with online retail sales of physical goods increased by
8.4% vyear-on-year, accelerating by 2.2% year-on-year, and
accounting for 27.6% of total social retail sales, a 0.4% increase over
the same period last year. During the year, retail sales of physical
stores also continued to recover, with retail sales of physical stores
above designated size increased by 5.0% as compared with the
same period last year. In general, the overall domestic economy
showed a trend of balanced and stable recovery, as efforts in
expanding domestic demand and promoting consumption and value
creation have started to surface.

2024 is a year where we expect to witness macro stability and micro
improvement, progress amid stability, and the replenishment of new
drivers and momentum. In 2024, the growth momentum of domestic
demand will transition towards a sustainable model subsequent to
the pandemic. With the introduction of a dual-wheel drive of fiscal
and monetary policies, the government expects the expansionary
fiscal and monetary easing policies could effectively promote
sustainable consumption and investment growth in the domestic
market. In 2024, we are aiming to make progress while maintaining
stability, and resume a growth profile model ultimately.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group operated
and managed a total of 49 stores in 21 cities nationwide with
gross floor area of approximately 3.1 million sg.m., of which
operating area attributable to self-owned properties accounted
for 78.1% (including gross floor area leased from related parties,
84.5%). Coverage of key cities included Shenzhen and Zhuhai
in Guangdong; Chengdu, Nanchong and Mianyang in Sichuan;
Chongging; Wuxi, Yangzhou, Taizhou, Nanjing and Huai’an in
Jiangsu; Zibo, Laiwu and Heze in Shandong; Qinhuangdao
and Baoding in Hebei; Shenyang and Jinzhou in Liaoning;
Taiyuan in Shanxi; Hohhot and Baotou in Inner Mongolia. As at
31 December 2023, the distribution of stores of the Group was as
follows:

—. EERROE

B E2023F12831HIEEE  REF L
REE21ER T & E R EEI9KIE
MEEEmBAZEASIEEF K ERE
BV S EBELEAT78.1% SRS
THEEEEBLLAERSL 5% BEMNE
BRI T B AR EEORYI R kS ; 1T B AR
MR KER , BB ; JIHEH HBIMN- Ik
MN-FERRER; LWESE  KEMT
2, HIEREEBNRE ; BERERG&IB
M5 ILARER ; UEARE SERERFE
FEoEH E2023F 128310 KEBEPE
DU

Southern Southwestern Eastern Northern
China China China China Total
7 [iE3 ER b} fazt
Number of Stores (stores) FEHE (X) 6 8 15 20 49
Gross Floor Area (sq.m.) BEAR (THK) 218,409 324,502 1,043,668 1,541,576 3,128,155
Notes: FIsE

1. Southern China region includes: Shenzhen and Zhuhai.

2. Southwestern China region includes: Chengdu, Nanchong, Mianyang and
Chongaing.

3. Eastern China region includes: Zibo, Laiwu, Heze, Wuxi, Yangzhou, Taizhou,
Nanjing and Huai’an.

4. Northern China region includes: Hohhot, Baotou, Qinhuangdao, Baoding,
Shenyang, Jinzhou and Taiyuan.

As one of the leading mid-to-high-end physical retailers in China, the
Group has been committed to building a good reputation through
diversified product mix and continuously improving consumer
experience, so as to continue to attract new and old customers.
During the reporting period, the Group laid foundation for its principal
businesses and made intensive and penetrative efforts, consolidated
its own resilience and strength in a complicated and ever-growing
market environment, continuously improved the quality of operation
and management, fully dug into the growth potential of high-
quality commodity resources and continued to grow through brand
adjustment and creative marketing. The business operation has
gradually recovered, and sustainable and healthy development has
been achieved.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MAJOR OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Continue to promote the strategy of transforming concessionaire
sales to leasing, and adhere to the upgrading of business
formats and content to improve core competitiveness

During the reporting period, the Group continued to promote
the strategy of upgrading business formats and optimising
store contents. In terms of the adjustment to business types
and operating contents, the Group continued to deepen
the transformation of concessionaire sales to leasing and
department stores to shopping centers. At the same time,
combined with the Group’s positioning and characteristics of
regional markets, in terms of business contents, the proportion
of retail services has been increased, with the addition of
emerging business formats and product categories such as
catering support, night economy, sports, contemporary tea
culture and modern lifestyle. At the same time, the Group
focused on the creation of diversified consumption scenarios,
providing customers with more emotional value, and was
committed to deepening and strengthening the emotional
connection with customers, integrating online and offline
services to improve customers’ in-store experience and loyalty,
and hence enhancing the commercial value of the Group.

During the reporting period, the Group’s Huagiangbei store
achieved a 27.6% growth in rental income over the same period
under the strategic steer from concessionaire sales to leasing.
Besides, the addition of a unique mix of catering offering has
contributed to a surge in both store traffic and performance.
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Enhance brand awareness and selection of products

During the reporting period, the Group continued to promote
the iteration, optimisation and upgrading of store contents in
terms of brand and quality, and implemented it in an orderly and
phased manner. In 2023, the Qinhuangdao Maoye Complex
store introduced China fashion brands recommended by
KOLs and best-selling products from first-to-region brands,
high-end beauty brands, light luxury, luxury brands and luxury
watches. The store achieved a double-digit growth again with
our continued efforts in brand building and quality upgrading,
establishing its leading position in the local department store
retail industry in Qinhuangdao. With the continued influx of high-
quality affordable luxury brands, luxury brands and luxury watch
dealers, as well as the presence of first-tier cosmetics brands,
the Group’s Taiyuan Maoye Complex store has transformed from
a fashion and trendy shopping center to a high-end shopping
center. At the same time, with the consumers’ preference for
big-health products post-pandemic, the Group also made
targeted adjustments to the sports product categories of key
stores, and introduced professional outdoor sports brands,
professional sports and affordable luxury sports products with
cost-effectiveness.

In addition, in terms of leasing strategy, the Group has
conducted in-depth research on market trend and made
precise layout, positioning and strategic adjustments to stores.
While striving to achieve full occupancy and promoting store
innovation, the Group has strengthened the national strategic
alliance of brands, continued to introduce high-quality products
and brands, introduced new business formats, and improved
the effectiveness of leasing and operation. In terms of business
adjustment, the Group continued to focus on the transformation
and creation of stores to shopping centers and community life
centers, adding experiential consumption scenarios, enhancing
emotional connection with customers, enriching diversified
business formats and leading lifestyles.
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Promote the construction of digital intelligence, develop business
through multiple channels, enhance digital management, and
drive business growth

During the reporting period, the Group continuously developed
and improved the Group’s online marketing APPs such as
“Mao Yue Hui” and “Mao Le Hui” with the aim of “digital retail
and smart business”. The Group continued to expand the
depth and width of the Group’s online business layout through
digital applications such as WeChat official account, enterprise
WeChat, and Tik Tok live-streaming.

The Group continued to follow new forms, new channels and
new contents of marketing activities, and actively researched
differentiated, trendy and youthful brand strategies in response
to the consumption upgrading and consumption stratification
trends in the current economic environment. In addition, the
Group adheres to the interaction and innovation of online and
offline marketing, strengthens the coordination and linkage of
omni-channel marketing activities, in order to achieve two-
way traffic attraction between online and offline. During the
reporting period, the Group continued its in-depth integration of
offline store sales with the online marketing APP “Mao Le Hui”,
promoted the functional integration and data interconnection
of online APPs such as “Mao Yue Hui” and “Mao Lehui”, and
realized the synchronization of online and offline products.

During the reporting period, the Group’s stores comprehensively
promoted the live broadcast among sales team, carried out
marketing activities with implemented overall marketing plans,
improved cross-merchant marketing linkages, and enhanced the
explosive power of marketing activities. At the same time, the
stores have increased the promotion points of the online APP
to help attract new fans. The functions of the online platform
have also been continuously optimized and upgraded according
to the ever-changing market trends, and constantly carried out
innovative marketing activities and optimized online product
functions. The WeChat mini-program “Mao Le Hui” increased its
exposure through WeChat Moments advertising and attracted
more than 2 million visits throughout the year. At present, there
are more than 300 brands on “Mao Le Hui”, among which
the online sales of various brands including Lancome, SK-II,
Shiseido, La Mer have exceeded RMB20 million annually. In
2023, sales across our online platform achieved RMB540 million.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As the main bridge for maintaining and communicating with
members of the Group, the “Mao Yue Hui” membership
management system has been continuously upgraded in
various aspects during the reporting period. The membership
management system has been further improved. All aspects of
the membership management system have been connected
through digital operation, and the data review and refined
analysis of marketing costs have been achieved. During the
reporting period, the Group continue to promote enterprise
WeChat as a new channel for linking members, stores and
brands, and achieved favorable member interaction effects. In
2023, the Group’s “Mao Yue Hui” membership management
system attracted 1.09 million new members. As of the end
of 2023, the total number of members served by “Mao Yue
Hui” reached 17.9 million people and the total consumption of
members reached RMB4.25 billion.

Continue to innovate and promote multi-business development,
and improve overall capabilities

In 2023, JW Marriott Hotel Chengdu, a subsidiary of the
Company, seized the opportunities in the market, adhered
to the quality of JW brand services, adopted the strategy of
flexible pricing and dedicated brand services, and achieved a
breakthrough among its international peer group in Chengdu
and other hotels in the central and western regions under JW
Marriott’s umbrella. In 2023, the Company’s revenue from hotel
operations increased by 50.8% year-on-year, hitting a record
high.

At the same time, the Group’s JW Marriott Hotel Taiyuan had
also been preparing for its grand opening in the Lantern Festival
in 2024.
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lll. FUTURE OUTLOOK = RKREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Looking ahead to 2024, the recovery in consumption is expected
to be optimistic as macroeconomic recovery remains positive.
The Group will continue to focus on its principal business, take
commercial retail business as the core, continue to optimise its
operations across the board, pursue progress while maintaining
stability, and actively leverage the overall recovery of the retail
industry. The Group will seize the opportunities in consumption
space and business recovery and development, adhere to high-
quality operation and lean management and services, continue to
deepen the Group’s diversified and cross-regional collaborative
development, actively promote the transformation of store-to-
shopping centers and community life centers and the construction
of new stores, continue to improve the Group’s overall capabilities,
brand influence and core competitiveness, and achieve sustainable
and high-quality development for the Group. At the same time, the
Group will get with the times and keep up with its development,
adhere to the practice and innovation of digital intelligence,
continue to develop and iterate digital infrastructures, actively
expand into new areas of business growth, continue to forge
new core advantages of the Company, consolidate the Group'’s
diversified business ecology, and inject more vitality into the long-
term quality development of the Group.

BE2024 ) RBEEMERYT  HEBY
ERAHILBEDS AEERHER
REX UBEEZEEB/ZL FEE
HALBCAEE  RPRE  BRRTE
TEN2EER - AEBRENUSE R
BERERERNEE BENsmEn
REMBRENEBRRS BT FE
FIELEBZTERERBENBEERE
TRIBIEHE PIE Y R B Rt & £ TR
WBARHPENER FERAEER
REBN mBEFENEZOEFE B
REEFESHELRRE FR ~&H
RERFAERD & BRBEEHE
BRI EERAENHFTLER
BB R EBITIEREE  FERERD
BB ZOED FEEEZTIEER
ERREERRENREERIAES
mTe

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED &2 BIBRZER B RA T

17



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERET R

PERFORMANCE OF TOP 10 STORES! A+ AFIE'RIT
Total Sales
Proceeds and Operation Gross
No. Store Name Rental Income Period? Floor Area
SHERBZM
EHREE
=2 FIE% 18 WA 4EEE 582 REEE
(RMB’000) (Year) ()
NEEFT) (&) (EAXK)
1 Shenzhen Huagjiangbei [ A 1,684,697 20.3 63,243
2 Talyuan Maoye Complex KERERME 855,926 9.1 252,882
3 Guanghua FEE 616,384 14.1 67,914
4 Shenzhen Nanshan #INE WS 528,999 14.3 44,871
5 Taizhou First Department Store ZMNBE—BEE 460,866 14.3 40,358
6 Maoye Commercial Store REBES 454,694 20.7 48,187
7 Zibo Maoye Times Square WERERRESE 321,855 8.7 86,677
8 Xiandai Shopping Plaza RAEYERE 288,516 17.2 36,926
9 Shenzhen Dongmen FEUNEPI S 280,985 26.9 40,710
10 Qinhuangdao Jindu =2 BTG 260,654 15.3 46,610
Notes N

1. Top 10 department stores are ranked by total sales proceeds and rental income 1.  Bi+AFIEAIRIE2023EIHEFFERIEREE
during 2023. AMREEBER ©

2. Operation period was calculated until 31 December 2023. 2. [EERThETEE20235 128318 ¢
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Total Sales Proceeds and Rental Income

For the year ended 31 December 2023, total sales proceeds and rental
income of the Group were RMB8,526.9 million, representing a decrease
of 5.1% as compared to 2022, mainly due to the impact of the gradual
transformation of the business model from department store direct sales
and concessionaire store to the leasing of shopping centers, and the
Group’s same-store sales proceeds and rental income amounted to
RMB8,453.2 million, representing a decrease of 5.2% as compared with
that in 2022.

BA %5 (o] B8

HEFSIIERAE WA LEEE

B E2023F 128310 ILEE  AEENHE
FTiSTBREBW A EEE A AR 18,526.08
BT B2022F R E T51% > TEZHRMNK
SRR HOEENAEHEEERDE
MO EERERNEE KEEREH
EFETERIEERAB AR 453285
7T 2 #2022 R E5.2% °

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A31HILLEE
2022
20224
RMB’000
ARETFIT
Total sales proceeds from concessionaire sales 4 EF B E 4248 5,890,247 6,435,823
Direct sales income BiEWA 1,512,516 1,502,247
Rental income HEWA 1,124,172 1,051,317
Total sales proceeds and rental income tHEMERIBREE A AREE 8,526,935 8,989,387

During the year ended 31 December 2023, among the total sales
proceeds and rental income of the Group, total sales proceeds from
concessionaire sales accounted for 69.1%, those derived from direct
sales income accounted for 17.7%, and those derived from rental
income accounted for 13.2%. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group’s total sales proceeds from concessionaire sales were
RMB5,890.2 million, representing a decrease of 8.5% as compared to
2022; direct sales income was RMB1,512.5 million, representing an
increase of 0.7% as compare to 2022; rental income was RMB1,124.2
million, representing an increase of 6.9% as compared to 2022.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE
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The total sales proceeds and rental income of the Group in the four major
regions are set out as follows:

KREBENROAR A HEFFERIERIEEW
ANBERIB I AR ¢

Total sales proceeds and
rental income

HEFSMEREERAWEE

For the year ended 31 December

HE12B31HILLEE

2023 2022 Change
20234 20224 =F)

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(NR¥EF7T) AB T 1) (%)
Eastern China ER 1,244,053 1,335,686 -6.9%
Southern China EE 2,899,382 3,290,793 -11.9%
Southwestern China il 997,549 1,186,428 -15.9%
Northern China iyl 3,385,951 3,176,480 6.6%
Total &5t 8,526,935 8,989,387 ~5.1%

For the year ended 31 December 2023, sales of apparels (including
men’s and ladies’ apparels) accounted for 27.3% (2022: 27.8%),
jewelries accounted for 21.8% (2022: 22.9%), leisure and sports goods
accounted for 12.2% (2022: 10.9%), cosmetics accounted for 19.4%
(2022: 17.4%), shoes and leather goods accounted for 5.9% (2022:
5.1%), and others (including branded merchandise, children’s items,
bedroom and household goods, home appliances, supermarket and
others) accounted for 13.4% (2022: 15.9%)).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue of the Group’s main
business amounted to RMB4,180.8 million, representing a reduction of
approximately RMB168.9 million as compared to RMB4,349.7 million
in 2022. The main reason for the decrease in revenue was attributable
to the impact of the difference in the progress of delivery of property
projects, resulting in a year-on-year decrease of RMB323.3 million in the
Group’s revenue from property sales for the period. On the other hand,
revenue from retail business increased by RMB71.4 million year-on-year
and revenue from hotel business increased by RMB94.5 million year-on-
year.
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Other Income

For the year ended 31 December 2023, other income of the Group
amounted to RMB1,125.5 million, representing an increase of RMB79.2
million as compared to RMB1,046.3 million in 2022. Other income mainly
includes management fee income from franchised counters in stores,
promotion income and credit card handling fee income. The amount of
such income is generally linked to the sales level of the stores. Moreover,
there was an increase in other income for the period as the income from
government incentives received by the Group for the Chengdu North
Railway Station demolition and relocation transaction in the amount of
RMB78.8 million was included in other income.

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2023, cost of sales of the Group
amounted to RMB1,760.7 million, representing a decrease of 4.9%
as compared to RMB1,851.0 million in 2022. The cost of sales mainly
includes the cost of purchase of and changes in inventory in stores,
as well as the cost of properties sold. Due to the decrease in cost of
properties sold, the total cost of sales has decreased in the reporting
period.

Employee Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2023, employee expenses of the
Group amounted to RMB414.3 million, representing a decrease of 8.9%
as compared to RMB454.6 million in 2022, mainly due to the Group’s
continuous effort in reducing cost and improving human resources
efficiency in 2023, which resulted in a year-on-year decrease in employee
expenses.

Depreciation and Amortization

For the year ended 31 December 2023, depreciation and amortization
of the Group amounted to RMB990.1 million, representing a decrease
of 5.6% as compared to RMB1,049.2 million in 2022, mainly due to the
completion of depreciation and amortization of the Group’s certain store
assets.

Other Operating Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2023, other operating expenses of
the Group amounted to RMB1,041.8 million, representing an increase of
3.1% as compared to RMB1,010.8 million in 2022. The increase in other
operating expenses was mainly due to a decrease in utility expenses
as a result of short-term closures or shortened operating hours of the
Group’s stores in various locations due to the spread of the COVID-19
epidemic in many domestic areas in 2022, and a year-on-year increase
in utility expenses, such as water and electricity, as a result of the normal
operation of the stores nationwide throughout the year in 2023.
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Other Gains and Losses

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded other losses
of RMB84.9 million, representing a decrease of 117.4% as compared
to other gains of RMB486.7 million in 2022, mainly attributable to gain
of RMB328.2 million from converting certain of the Group’s investment
in associates to financial assets, gain of RMB196.1 milion from the
relocation transaction of Chengdu North Railway Station, and the
provision for impairment of long-term equity investments in Shenzhen
UGO E-Commerce Co., Ltd., an associate, of RMB200.6 million in 2022.

Operating Profit

Due to the combined effects of the above-mentioned factors, the Group
recorded operating profit of RMB1,012.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, representing a decrease of 33.0% as compared to
RMB1,510.4 million in 2022.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2023, finance costs of the Group
amounted to RMB965.3 million, representing a decrease of 8.1% as
compared to RMB1,050.3 million in 2022. This was primarily due to (i) a
decrease in finance costs due to a decrease in the principal amount of
interest-bearing liabilities in the year as compared to 2022; and (i) a slight
decrease in the interest rates of interest-bearing liabilities.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2023, income tax expense of the
Group amounted to RMB116.4 million, representing a decrease of 50.7%
as compared to RMB236.3 million in 2022. The decrease in income tax
was mainly due to the decrease in total operating profit for the year.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, net loss for 2023 was RMB78.2 million,
representing a decrease of 138.1% as compared to the corresponding
period of 2022.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB722.8 million, representing an increase of RMB166.5
million as compared to the balance of RMB556.3 million as at 31
December 2022. The main cash inflow and cash outflow are set out as
follows:

1)

@
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Net cash inflow of RMB1,531.0 million from operating activities;

Net cash inflow of RMB278.1 million from investment activities,
mainly including:

)

(vii)

the cash outflow of RMB86.9 million from purchases of items of
property, plant and equipment;

the outflow of RMB136.0 million from purchase of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss;

the inflow of RMB148.2 million from repurchase of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss;

the cash inflow of RMB44.9 million from disposal of
equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income;

the cash inflow of RMB249.5 million from disposal of investment
properties;

the cash outflow of approximately RMB72.2 million for dividend
distributed by subsidiaries to non-controlling shareholders; and

the inflow of RMB123.2 million for the decrease of pledged bank
deposits.

Net cash outflow of RMB1,617.7 million from financing activities,
mainly including:

U

(i)

)

the cash inflow of RMB6,631.4 million from the increase in bank
loans;

the cash outflow of RMB7,698.5 million for the repayment of
bank loans;

the cash outflow of approximately RMB669.3 million for the
payment of interest;
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(iv) the cash outflow of approximately RMB437.0 million for the
principal and interest elements of lease payments;

(v) the cash inflow of RMB1,194.6 milion from borrowings from
fellow subsidiaries;

(vi) the cash outflow of RMB590.9 million for the repayment of
borrowings from fellow subsidiaries; and

(vii) the dividend of RMB48.0 million distributed by Maoye
International Holdings Limited to shareholders.

Interest-bearing Liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, total bank borrowings of the Group were
approximately RMB11,797.2 million (31 December 2022: RMB12,864.3
million). The interest-bearing gearing ratio' and net interest-bearing debt
to equity ratio® were 24.1% and 69.6%, respectively (as at 31 December
2022: 25.6% and 75.3%, respectively).

" Interest-bearing gearing ratio = total interest-bearing debt/total
assets = (bank borrowings)/total assets

2 Net interest-bearing debt to equity ratio = net interest-bearing debt/
total equity = (bank borrowings — cash and cash equivalents)/total
equity

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2023, certain borrowings of the Group were secured
by the Group’s land and buildings, investment properties, properties
under development and right-of-use assets with net carrying amounts
of RMB2,848.3 million, RMB9,994.5 million, RMB1,955.8 million and
RMB208.8 million, respectively.

Foreign Currency Risks

During the reporting period, the Group recorded a net foreign exchange
loss of approximately RMB3.7 million. Since the business of the Group
was mainly focused in mainland China, its operation was not exposed to
any foreign exchange fluctuation risk.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had not entered into any
arrangement to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Business of the
Group is mainly concentrated in Mainland China, and the Group’s
operating cash flow was not exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation
risks.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (&%) (‘Mr. Huang”), aged 58, is the founder
of the Group and the Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive
Officer and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the Company.
He is also a director of various companies in the Group. Besides, he is
a director and owner of Maoye Department Store Investment Limited
and MQY International Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholders of
the Company. Mr. Huang is responsible for the overall development and
strategic planning of the Group. He has over 20 years of rich experience
in department store and commercial real estate industries. Before
commencing his department store business, Mr. Huang established
Maoye (Shenzhen) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (52 GEII) Eith
ERARAT) in 1992 and Shenzhen Maoye (Group) Co., Ltd. GEIII
RE (EE) RIMBRAT)In 1995. Mr. Huang had been a director and
the Chairman of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. (‘Maoye Commercial’)
(FRERERMNABIEAT) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 600828.SH) since July 2005 and resigned on 9
February 2009.

Ms. Lu Xiaojuan (E/)\i8) (‘Ms. Lu”), aged 51, is the executive Director
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. She holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Ballarat, Australia.
She joined the Group in March 1997 and had previously served as
the manager of the finance department, the general manager of the
audit and supervision department, and the general manager of the
contract management center, deputy general manager of the financial
management center and general manager of the financial management
center of the Group. Ms. Lu was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group since 5 December 2019. Ms. Lu currently also serves as
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Lu has over 20 years of
financial management experience in the PRC.

Mr. Tang Haifeng, (E/&1£) (‘Mr. Tang”), aged 43, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 10 March 2023. Mr. Tang joined
the Group in December 2021 and served as the general manager of the
financial management centre of the Company. Mr. Tang has been the
director of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. (a joint stock limited company
listed on the Shanhai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600828, an indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) since December 2022.
From September 2019 to December 2021, Mr. Tang served as the senior
director of the financial centre of Fantasia Group (China) Co., Ltd. From
June 2017 to September 2019, Mr. Tang served as the deputy director
of the financial management department of Shenzhen Huagiang Group
Co., Ltd. Before that, Mr. Tang worked in the financial management field
in various large companies such as Shenzhen OCT Properties Co., Ltd.
and Konka group Co., Ltd. Mr. Tang holds a bachelor’s degree from the
School of Accounting in Hunan University. Mr. Tang has rich experience in
financial management.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tony Huang, aged 29, was appointed as an non-executive Director
of the Company on 10 March 2023. Mr. Tony joined the Group in April
2018. He previously served as the General Manager of Maoye Digital
Intelligence Information Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (an indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), the general manager of
Shanxi Maoye Land and Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company). Mr. Tony Huang has been
the director and CEO of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. (a joint stock
limited company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600828, an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
since November 2019. He is currently the director of Shenzhen
Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company). Mr. Tony Huang holds a bachelor’s degree in Computer
Science from the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Tony Huang is the
son of Mr. Huang.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Rao Yong (87Kk) (‘Mr. Rao”), aged 66, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company, the chairman of Audit Committee and
a member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. He
joined the Group in April 2020. Mr. Rao is a certified public accountant
in the PRC and obtained a diploma in accounting in 1980 from Guangxi
University of Finance and Economics, the PRC. Mr. Rao was the former
chairman of the Shenzhen Institute of Certified Public Accountants* (&
YIHEMEEEIH Z L E) and the vice chairman of the Guangdong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants* (EER& M EstEItFE RIS
). From May 2015 to May 2021, he served as a member of the Sixth
People’s Congress of Shenzhen City* CRYITTE/NEAANLT) and a
member of the project budget committee of People’s Congress Standing
Committee of Shenzhen City GEIITHA KR ETBEEESESE). He is
currently the President of Shenzhen Guangxi Chamber of Commerce. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Kaisa Group Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 1638.HK) and SMI Culture & Travel
Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 2366.HK). From 18
December 2018 to 22 August 2022, Mr. Rao served as an independent
non-executive director of Shandong Sinobioway Biomedicine Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002581.
SZSE). Since 10 August 2023, Mr. Rao served as an independent non-
executive director of Emdoor Information Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 001314. SZSE). From 1991
to 1997, Mr. Rao served as a director of the Audit Bureau of Shenzhen
City, and from 1984 to 1990, he served as a chief of the Audit Bureau of
Wuzhou City, Guangxi Province. Mr. Rao has over 30 years of accounting
and auditing experience.
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Mr. Pao Ping Wing C#J&%5) (‘Mr. Pao”), aged 77, is an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. He joined the Group in August 2007. Mr. Pao
obtained a Master of Science degree in Human Settlements Planning
and Development from the Asian Institute of Technology in Bangkok,
Thailand in 1980. In the past years, Mr. Pao has been appointed to
serve on various government policy committees and statutory bodies,
especially those involving town planning, urban renewal, public housing,
culture and arts and environmental matters. He is an honorary fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Housing. He was elected as one of the Ten
Qutstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and one of the Ten
Outstanding Young Persons of the World in 1983. He was previously also
a member of the Urban Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Pao was appointed as
a Justice of the Peace in 1987 and was a special committee member of
the 9th and 10th sessions of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Guangzhou Committee. Currently, he is also an independent
non-executive director of a number of companies listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Gao Yajun (522 ) (“‘Mr. Gao”), aged 49, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. He joined the Group in April 2020. Mr.
Gao is a senior accountant in Hong Kong, Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC and Australia, and member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association Limited. Mr. Gao
graduated from Deakin University in Australia with a master’s degree
in professional accounting in 2002, holds a PhD in applied economics
(Financial Mathematics and Financial Engineering) from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics and has been an executive
director and a partner of Baker Tilly Hong Kong since February 2010.
He had been an independent non-executive director of Nanjing Panda
Electronics Company Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 553.HK, and Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600775.SH) since 29 June 2018, and he ceased to serve
as its director on 29 June 2021. Mr. Gao has engaged in auditing and
consulting work for a long time and has extensive experience in financial
management.
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Ms. Wong Yuen Ki (“Ms. Wong”), aged 34, has been appointed as the
Secretary in August 2023. Ms. Wong is a manager of Corporate Services
Division of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional services provider
specializing in integrated business, corporate and investor services. Ms.
Wong has over 10 years of experience in the field of company secretary
and is responsible for providing corporate secretarial and compliance
services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as multi-national, private
and offshore companies. Ms. Wong is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered
Governance Professional and an associate of both The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators). Ms. Wong
holds a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration in Corporate
Administration and degree of Master of Corporate Governance from
Hong Kong Metropolitan University (formerly The Open University of Hong
Kong).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognises the vital importance of good corporate governance
1o its success and sustainability. The Company is committed to achieving
a high standard of corporate governance practices as an essential
component of high quality and has introduced corporate governance
practices appropriate to the operation and growth of its business.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix C1 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). In the opinion of the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”), the Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, save
and except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1. Key corporate
governance principles and practices of the Company as well as the
details of the deviation are summarised below.

The Board will continue to enhance its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the operation and growth of its business and to review
such practices from time to time to ensure that the Company complies
with statutory and professional standards and aligns with the latest
developments.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the
Company. Its main roles are to provide leadership and to approve
strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing the interests of
shareholders. All directors carry out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, making decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management. Any director may request independent professional advice
under appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making reasonable request to the Board.
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The Board reserves its rights for making decision on all major matters
of the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the executive
directors and senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board and directing and
coordinating day-to-day operation and management of the Company.
The delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed
by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

Board Composition

The following chart illustrates the current structure and membership of
the Board and the Board Committees:

Board of Directors
&
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EBEEMERERMENKRERE BER
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X5 BRI RANmERE) - MHBEER
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%&F%&E@ cZEFHEMEEE MITES
GHURE BT KRR LT A BEFKR
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FRABETUAFEIERSA ALRE

ExEHE

EEEAE/R
TRETESEZNREEEZEZTHIRT
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TRER

Executive Directors #1TEF
Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
BIXNELE EFRREENTE)

Ms. Lu Xiaojuan, Chief Financial Officer

BBt (BEMFEE)

Mr. Tang Haifeng
===l 3 e

Non-executive Director JEH1TEE

Mr. Tony Huang
mAEIES A

Independent Non-executive Directors B 17 JEH1TEE

Mr. Rao Yong 87k o4
Mr. Pao Ping Wing JRIAER 4
Mr. Gao Yajun i= 5 8/t 4

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee
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Mr. Rao Yong (Chairman) Mr. Pao Ping Wing (Chairman) Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman)
KL (F/E) IR T L (F/E) BIRWMEE (F/E)
Mr. Pao Ping Wing Mr. Rao Yong Mr. Rao Yong
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Mr. Gao Yajun Mr. Gao Yajun Mr. Pao Ping Wing
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The biographical details of the directors are disclosed under the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Secretary” in this annual report.

The Company has established different mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has at all times
met with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors (representing at
least one-third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise.

All directors have brought a wide range of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Moreover, through active participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on the Board committees, all independent non-executive
directors have made various contributions to the effective business
direction of the Company.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held 1 meeting
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence of
other directors during the year.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive directors are independent.

All independent non-executive directors receive fixed fees for their role
as members of the Board and Board committees. There is no other
emoluments paid to the independent non-executive directors to avoid the
potential biases in their decision making.

The Board also reviews the attendance of each of the independent non-
executive directors at Board and Board committees meetings, as well as
the time contributed to his roles in the Board and Board committees to
ensure that he has devoted sufficient time to discharge his responsibilities
as a Director of the Company.

The implementation and effectiveness of the above mechanisms are
reviewed on an annual basis. The Board considers that such mechanisms
had been implemented properly and effectively in the year ended 31
December 2023.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Mr. Huang Mao Ru is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. As Mr. Huang is the founder of the Group and has
extensive experience in the department store industry and commercial
real estate industry, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the
Group to have Mr. Huang taking up both roles for continuous effective
management and business development of the Group.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All directors are appointed for a specific term. All the executive directors,
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors of the
Company are engaged on a service contract/letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles of
Association”), all directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and are eligible for re-election at
annual general meetings of the Company. Any new director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting and any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by shareholders at the following annual general
meeting.

Mr. Tang Haifeng, who has been appointed as the Executive Director
during the financial year ended 31 December 2023, has obtained the
legal advice on 10 March 2023, and he has confirmed he understood his
obligations as a director of a listed issuer.

Mr. Tony Huang, who has been appointed as the Non-executive Director
during the financial year ended 31 December 2023, has obtained the
legal advice on 10 March 2023, and he has confirmed he understood his
obligations as a director of a listed issuer.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Ms.
Lu Xiaojuan and Mr. Gao Yajun are subject to retirement by rotation at
the forthcoming 2024 annual general meeting of the Company (the “2024
AGM’). Each of them, being eligible, has offered himself/herself for re-
election at the 2024 AGM. The Board and the Nomination Committee
recommend their re-appointments. The Company’s circular, sent together
with this annual report, contains detailed information of the above three
directors as required by the Listing Rules.
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Training and Continuing Development for Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and of the business activities and development of the
Company and comply with the code of conduct of the Company at all
times.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and that
he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction is
normally supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites and/
or meetings with the senior management of the Company.

Under code provision C.1.4, directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for directors
will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics will be issued
to directors where appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all the directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development activities
by way of attending training arranged by the legal advisor of the Group
and receiving reading materials or regulatory update on corporate
governance matters and responsibilities of the directors.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transaction
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct
governing directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities. Specific
enquiry has been made of the Company’s directors and all the existing
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the period from 1
January 2023 to the date of this annual report.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the
Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings

in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and
relevant employees in advance.
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BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company'’s affairs. All
Board committees have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website “www.maoye.cn”
and the Stock Exchange’s website. All Board committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises a total of three members, namely, Mr.
Rao Yong (Chairman), Mr. Pao Ping Wing and Mr. Gao Yajun, all of whom
are independent non-executive directors. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Rao Yong who possesses the appropriate professional
qualification, and accounting and financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; (ii) review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and the objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process; (i) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and (iv) review the
accuracy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system as well as internal
audit function.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee has held
2 meetings and performed the following major tasks:

e Review of the scope of audit work and the auditors’ remuneration;

e Review and discussion of the annual financial results and report in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 and interim financial
results and report for the six months ended 30 June 2023 and
discussion with the management of the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group;

e Discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

e Review of the financial reporting and internal control and risk
management systems of the Group together with the effectiveness of
the internal audit function of the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings held during the year to discuss with the Audit Committee
members issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee provided the Board with a briefing
on the significant issues after each Audit Committee meeting. There was
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of three members,
namely, Mr. Pao Ping Wing (Chairman), Mr. Rao Yong and Mr. Gao Yajun,
all of whom are independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
E.1.2(c)(ii) of the Code); and (i) review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee
has held 1 meeting and performed the following major tasks:

e Considered and recommended the remuneration package of the
newly appointed directors, Mr. Tang Haifeng and Mr. Tony Huang;

e Review and discussion of the remuneration policy of the Group; and

e Review and discussion of the remuneration packages of directors
and senior management of the Company.

The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration for each director of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2023 were set out in note 8 of the
financial statement.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises a total of three members, being
one executive director, namely, Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman) and two
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Rao Yong and Mr. Pao
Ping Wing. Accordingly, a majority of the members are independent non-
executive directors.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i) review the
Board composition, develop and formulate relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of directors; (i) make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning of directors; and
(iiiy assess the independence of independent non-executive directors.

The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
The Company believes that greater diversity of directors is good for
corporate governance and is committed to attract and retain candidate(s)
for Board with a combination of competencies from the widest possible
pool of available talents; and to assess regularly the diversity profile
of the Board and, where applicable, senior management prepared for
Board positions under the succession planning of the Company and the
progress on achieving diversity objectives, if any.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account of various aspects set out in the Board diversity
policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board,
where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The Director Nomination Policy adopted by the Company sets out the
factors for assessing the suitability and the potential contribution to
the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited to the
followings: character and integrity; qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy; diversity in all aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age (18 years old or above), cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; requirements of independent non-
executive directors on the Board and independence of the proposed
independent non-executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules; and commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new directors and re-election of directors
at general meetings. The Nomination Committee will review the Director
Nomination Policy (if applicable), to ensure its effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee
has held 1 meeting and performed the following major tasks:

e  Considered and recommended the appointment of Mr. Tang Haifeng
and Mr. Tony Huang as director of the Company;

e Review of the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company;

e Recommendation of the re-appointment of those directors standing
for re-election at the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company;

e Assessment of the independence of all the independent non-
executive directors of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the Code.

During the year under review, the Board has performed such corporate
governance functions as follows: (i) reviewed and developed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, (i) reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, (i) reviewed and monitored
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, (iv) reviewed and monitored the compliance
of the Model Code and the Employee Written Guidelines, and (v)
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has held 5
meetings. The attendance records of each director at the Board and
Board committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the table below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY, GERY
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Director e B3¢ ERZEE HMERE 2 REZ8E RFEEEAE
Mr. Huang Mao Ru BRWEE 5/5 - - il 11
Mr. Zhong Pengyi (Note 1) EHEE L (M) 1/5 - - - -
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan EUN ke 5/5 - - - 1/1
Mr. Wang Bin (Note 2) s (zE2) 1/5 - - - -
Mr. Tang Haifeng (Note 3) %}’im %4 (7553) 4/5 - - - 1/1
Mr. Tony Huang (Note 4) EUEEESE (MsHd) 4/5 - - - 1A
Mr. Rao Yong BARE 5/5 2/2 1/1 il 11
Mr. Pao Ping Wing BIRERE 5/5 2/2 1/1 il 11
Mr. Gao Yajun e 5/5 2/2 11 - 11
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Notes:

(1) Mr. Zhong Pengyi resigned as an executive director of the Company on 10 March
2023. Before his resignation, one Board meetings of the Company was held.

(2) Mr. Wang Bin resigned as a non-executive director of the Company on 10 March
2023. Before his resignation, one Board meetings of the Company was held.

(8) Mr. Tang Haifeng was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 10
March 2023. After his appointment, there were 4 Board meetings and 1 annual
general meeting of the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2023.

(4)  Mr. Tony Huang was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on
10 March 2023. After his appointment, there were 4 Board meetings and 1 annual
general meeting of the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held 1 meeting
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence of
other directors during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The management has
provided such explanation and information to the Board as necessary
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Group put forward to the Board for
approval.

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023. The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has acknowledged that it shall be responsible for risk
management and internal control systems and review of their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. These systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and provide only reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board shall be fully responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives and to establish and maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines with a clear division of power and
responsibility. The Company would conduct self-assessment each year
to confirm that all departments and the Company have properly complied
with the risk management and internal control policy.

During the year, all departments conduct regular internal control
evaluation to identify risks with potential impact on the Group’s business
and other aspects including major operational and financial procedures,
regulatory compliance and information security.

The internal audit department is responsible for independent review of
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems. During the year under review, the internal audit department
reviewed important issues such as the relevant strategic management,
major operational and financial reporting procedures, human
resources management, adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experiences, regulatory compliance and information security, and
provided its findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee for
improvement.
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During the year under review, the Board, with the support of the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2023 by reviewing the report from the management
and the internal audit results, and confirmed the effectiveness and
adequacy of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy to provide the general
guideline on handling confidential information, monitoring of information
disclosure and response to queries to its directors, officers, senior
management and the relevant employees. The Company has executed
supervision programs to confirm the strict prohibition from unauthorized
access to and use of inside information.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors by the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit service for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is set out as follows:

THoEER BEEEEEZEETNHET
EERAAT NRENBARR2023%F12H
SIHLEEERBEERANISETRGNE KL
M ERERNESEBRENANIBEFTER
WHERAATWERSIENANIEIZERADN
BT DM

AR BEIUEBRBERRURHEAREE
REHE - BEEEEREKROEEE R
BE -SREEBNEMESHBN—MRIE
Sle KRB BEMITEERF UEERBEEE
IERAERENEBNANARRHEE

SMEB IR BA BT R i B BN <=

AT SN IZ BT R FE T A A B 8 ZE2023
F12R31 B FEMBRRAFHREEHIMR
MR AERBILAZBAETRE —H o

HE2023F 12831 HIEEE » KATIMBIZ
ARTS K JE B 1% AR 75 6] 2 A B IMNBE 1% B4 BT B9 B
SAMUWT ¢

RMB’000
Type of services AR#S 4R ARMFT
Audit expenses of the Group KREBNEZER 3,800
Non-audit expenses of the Group KEBWIEEZER
— Review on the interim financial report of the Group — KREFENPPETBREER 1,600
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG Yuen Ki (“Ms. Wong”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary in August 2023. Ms. Wong is a manager of corporate services
of Tricor Services Limited and has been providing corporate secretarial
and compliance services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as
multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. Wong possesses
more than 10 years of experience in the company secretarial field. Ms.
Wong is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional
and an associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
and The Chartered Governance Institute. Ms. Wong holds a degree of
Bachelor of Business Administration in Corporate Administration and
degree of Master of Corporate Governance from Hong Kong Metropolitan
University. During the year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. Wong has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings to update
her skills and knowledge.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy (including
but not limited to the Group’s financial results, cash flow situation,
business conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital requirements and expenditure plans), dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board during a financial year and any final
dividend for a financial year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables shareholders and investors to make
the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at “www.maoye.cn”, where extensive information and updates on the
Group’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access.
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Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the
Company as follows:

Address: 38/F, Tower A, World Finance Centre, 4003 Shennan
East Road, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China
(For the attention of the director of the Investor
Relations Department)

Email: ir848@maoye.cn

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. Board members and appropriate
senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed of the
Group’s developments.

The Board has reviewed the shareholders’ communication policy and its
effectiveness was confirmed.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting. The Company’s shareholders may convene an extraordinary
general meeting or put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings as
follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company may
request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association by sending a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in the PRC. The objects of the
meeting must be stated in the written requisition.
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(2) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, the
shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the general meeting shall send a written notice,
duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person
to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of business in
the PRC, or the office of the Company’s share registrar. The period
for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of such general meeting and end 7 days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the Company and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has amended its Articles of
Association. Details of the amendments are set out in the circular dated
18 April 2023. An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association is
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
Shareholders may refer to the Articles of Association for further details of
their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.maoye.cn) immediately after the relevant general
meetings.
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NOTES ON THE REPORT

The ESG Report (the “Report”) covers Maoye International Holdings
Limited (“Maoye International” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”). The contents include the Group’s
Environmental, Social and Governance performance on its major points
of operation (i.e. Mainland China).

REPORTING PERIOD

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023. Certain contents can be traced back to previous years, as the case
may be.

PREPARATION PRINCIPLE

This report is prepared pursuant to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in the Appendix C1
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. For information on the Group’s corporate governance,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report section in this year's
annual report.

DATA DESCRIPTION

All data in this report are based on Maoye International’s formal
documents and statistical reports. In this report, the currency amount is
accounted by RMB, unless otherwise specified.

REPORTING SCOPE AND BOUNDARIES

This report covers the Group’s 49 department stores, outlets and
shopping centres (“Retail Department Stores”) in Mainland China and
the offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL OF THE REPORT
This report was approved by the Board on 20 March 2024.

CONTACT US

Investor Relations Department, Maoye International Holdings Limited

Address: Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province
Tel: (86) 755-25983885

Fax: (86) 755-25981379

Email: ir848@maoye.cn
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The sustainable development of enterprises cannot be realised
without the engagement and support of all stakeholders. The Group
communicated and exchanged views with stakeholders regarding
sustainable development and related issues through various channels,
and identified the issues that our stakeholders are most concerned
about: “products responsibility” and “community investment”; relatively
important issues: “use of resources”, “health and safety”, “employment”,
“development and training”; and the related issues: “emissions”,
“environment and natural resources”, “labour standard”, “management
of supply chain” and “anti-corruption”. The Group constantly makes
improvement on such issues in the normal course of business so
as to address the concerns of our stakeholders, enhance trust and
cooperation, and jointly promote the sustainable development of the
Group and society.
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Stakeholders Major communication channels

Major concerns
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Policy and guideline
Daily communication
Working conference
Information disclosure
Social public welfare
activities

General meeting

Results announcement
Investor forum

Annual and interim report,
announcement

Staff meeting
Staff training
Staff activities

Contract negotiation
Daily business transaction
Project cooperation

Customer complaint
hotline

Customer satisfaction
survey

Customer service centre
Discussion and visits

Cooperation
Communication and
interaction

Public welfare

Community education

and promotion

Forum and communication
Enterprise recruitment
publicity etc
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Company has listed out 11 areas and evaluated the importance of
various key areas to our internal and external stakeholders and identified
major concerns of our stakeholders.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE BiaRE

The Board is the highest governing body of the Company and holds the
ultimate responsibility on the overall strategic development and corporate
governance of the Company. To ensure high governance standards in
ESG matters, the Company has a stable ESG governance structure with
clearly defined responsibilities in place.

Executive Director

BiTES
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The formulation of ESG strategy and the day-to-day management and
reporting on ESG matters resides with the ESG Group, which is headed
by the Executive Director and comprises members from all major
departments. The responsibilities of the ESG Group include formulating
ESG strategies, sustainability reporting, stakeholder engagement,
materiality assessment, monitoring the performance of ESG initiatives and
promotion of ESG issues both internally and externally.

Through the Executive Director, the ESG Group has been providing
updates to the Board on the latest ESG performance of the Company
on an annual basis. The ESG Group has continuously worked upon
enhancing its reporting mechanism that will enable the Directors to
effectively oversee the effectiveness of the ESG risk management and
internal control systems.

To ensure effective implementation of ESG strategies and identify any
potential ESG-related risks and opportunities, the ESG Group conducts
regular meetings to discuss a range of pre-defined ESG initiatives and
to follow up upon the works of business units which are charged with
carrying out measures and setting appropriate policies to align with our
overall ESG strategy. The ESG Group is also assisted by the internal
audit team in identifying and evaluating the potential ESG related-risks
(including climate change related risks), so as to devise appropriate
strategies for risk mitigation.

The ESG Group continues to keep abreast of the latest developments
on sustainability issues and remains committed towards promoting the
integration of sustainable and socially responsible best practices into
our daily operations and decision making processes across all levels of
the Group. With the collaborative efforts of all business units, we are
dedicated towards improving our ESG performance and fulfilling the
expectations of our stakeholders.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

RIEHSESNVEEEHEREHLEEAR
B URHRIEHEERFHEETHEER
R ESR - Z/ N ERATEFRE  HR B R
BFfE T2 - RIFHEE R/ NMENEE
BEFERELEELRE AIFEER
BEFMHEIR - ESMTME BERIRREHLE
BRBHIN R URRAERB RIMNEFEIR

BHEERER.

REBEHEEANVESFEBRRTESR OE
FERMHARTAENMREHEELRRRZE
MER U —BERRAERKS BES
EANEEREHEEAAREE RN

ERBBEIE

HEFRREHEEARKSIBEVESR
BUR: B BT ] B IR IR 1 & B G AERI BB
R B IR IR G E A/ NMEEHRETE
o Lstsm—RIFALARENRBELEER
B WIREB SHTHRENEFEMUNT
5> IR HIE BRI BREIRF L EE LR
BT BYE S BUR o 72 B K st (i B E VIR IR
AgELAREAR (BEREE(CARNE
&) £ RIBHEER/ VAT ERNEIEZER
1R B - 1 6 E B E B R BB AR SR o

REMEEANETERETFEEREET
MEMER WHEBRDEDRIFERR
HAEEENREER BAEERE@NA
FEEMRRBIEERG BRESEBEM
BENEE HARNLERMANRELE
BAKRER WinERMANFNENIRE-

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED /& ZEIFZERER AT 49



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HHERELARS

A. ENVIRONMENTAL A IRIR
A1 HErE

A1 EmissionNo©'

The Group complies with the relevant requirements of
environmental protection laws and common principles of
corporate management. It correctly handles the relationship
between business and environment in accordance with
characteristics of corporate environmental management, so
that the economy and environmental protection are mutually
reinforcing.

Our environmental policy advocates the prevention of
environmental pollution, with integration of governance for
comprehensive management to achieve maximum economic
benefits under minimum impact on the environment. Meanwhile,
we also attach importance to education and technical trainings
to raise awareness of all employees about the environmental
protection. In view of this, we have established a sound
environmental responsibility system for the garbage from
construction or renovation of the stores and kitchen waste
from restaurants, under which special personnel supervise the
classification and disposal of garbage.

The Group continues to monitor the operation of environmental
protection facilities and regularly checks the implementation of
environmental protection facilities.

All subsidiaries and retail department stores of the Group
are required to strictly abide by the internal environmental
management system to ensure the compliance with laws
and regulations. During the reporting period, no violations of
environment laws and regulations were found.

Note 1:  Since the main business of the Group is operation of retail
department stores, there was no significant emissions and
hazardous waste generated during the reporting period, hence
the relevant disclosure requirements in the ESG Guidelines (Key
Performance Indicators A1.1, A1.3 and A1.5) are not applicable to
the Group.
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Disposal of harmless waste

During the reporting period, the direct production of harmless
waste in the course of business of the Group was mainly papers,
ink cartridges, cartridges, plastic bottles and paper cups. During
the reporting period, the generated equivalents are as follows.

The Group classified and collected different types of waste and
carried out fixed storage and centralised processing. Recyclable
harmless waste was recycled as far as possible, while the
non-recyclable waste was handled by professional qualified
service providers in accordance with the relevant environmental
protection regulations.

ltem IEH

Paper (tonnes) AR (MR)

Ink cartridge (tonnes) £z (W)
Toner Cartridge (tonnes) e (M)
Plastic bottle (tonnes) “B B oKR (ME)
Paper cup (tonnes) AT ()
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EEZEEYEIE

AEBPRSHEE EH%EEJXE

NESEEYIEZ/MR 22

1 :EHBVKHE,\/EETT‘ N $E¢HH E
BINTRAMe

rEBEDBBESREENESR
MU ETERF R ETRE 3
I A SER U AR IR B B R R S ks
Y WREELRWA B RS
RRAAFARERHEFEEXEEN
REEEFIGEE-

2023 2022
20234 20224

7.11 5.45
0.81 0.10
0.64 0.20
0.003 0.28
0.25 0.08

Carbon emission

Our carbon emissions are mainly due to the consumption of
electricity. During the reporting period, the relevant carbon
dioxideM*® 2 emissions from the energy generated from our
business is as follows.

Item IEH

Carbon dioxide emission (tonnes) “&bhiEERE (W)

Carbon dioxide emission per square &5 KER@E
metre of gross floor area ot ZabhiEEmEnEs
(tonnes/square metre) (Mg, 75 3K)

GHFIK

AR EZIRE T B H
Feo MRS AR IR EF S ER
EE A RIER — SEm 2 HEE
YIRRFIR

2023 2022
20234 20224

179,604.82 197,084.51

0.06 0.06

We have implemented various energy-saving measures to
reduce the corresponding carbon emissions. For details, please
refer to the section of “Use of resources” below.

Note 2:  The calculation of carbon emissions is based on the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol published by the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development (WBCSD) and the World Resources
Institute (WRI), Reporting Guide for Environmental Key Performance
Indicators issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in China issued
by the National Development and Reform Commission for the
climate changes.

Note 3:  The total gross floor area for calculating carbon dioxide emission
intensity is 3.12 million square metres in 2023

The total gross floor area for calculating carbon dioxide emission
intensity is 3.09 million square metres in 2022.

P ERSEDIEE I > UE B
HMAEENRERE -FBEFSE
IXERERI—&-

MizE2 : WREFRZstE2RU R EKE
RS (WBCSD)E tt R &R 5T
FrWRIH AR~ CRZE R ERTE
) BB ZRCRIRMBENGE
TREESRIES|) K PRI 2R 3 R A1 eK
PHEERHRBRELEIARMHZ
FEE S BEEEGHIRETF -

MizE3: 2023FHE_SLHHENERE
FRFRABE SR EIEA312.88 T3 K

2022F St HE GBI ERE
Fr AR RS mAE A300.08F /5K o
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A2 EIR{ER

A2 Use of resources

The Group is committed to becoming an environmentally friendly
enterprise by saving electricity and encouraging the collection
and recycling of office supplies and other resources to save
natural resources. Our stores also integrate environmental
protection publicity with marketing activities to advocate green
lifestyle, so as to strive to become a model store for recycling
economy.

We adhere to the preparation of analysis report on statistics of
water and electricity consumption, and continue to update the
standing book for equipment to enhance the management level.
During the reporting period, the energy saving indicators was
even included as the performance indicators of the employees
to reward outstanding model of energy efficiency, as well as
penalizing irregularities.

Use of energy

Our energy consumption during the reporting period which
is mainly due to the electricity consumption of the 49 retall
department stores (excluding the electricity consumption that are
not directly controlled by the Group) is as follows.

Item IEH

Electricity consumption (kWh) EEZE (TRF)
Electricity consumption per square BYARKEZEE
metre of gross floor area ot FEEEN™

(kWh/square metre) (FEREFHK

FEERNIRARERFNBRE
RPBEBEHNBENEE 1B
BRERMARMMEMERNT
I LUEIAYRARE IR © R AFIRIPIIE 7R
BRFARANHBESESEHEE B
BgBEEnn FRABRBIRE
BEARARE o

IR FHIE K~ BEETR M FEM 5t
DITRE WFEEHREBARE
B R EERMAKF - RIWEH
W HFIBREERERERMNAS
THXRERERT  HEEHHAEE
2o WHEREREITEE

BEIRIESH
AEENRSHEANEREEE
BRI EETEPIEINTHERE

(FEEEEEZEREZENTE
HFE) W0 T RFR

2023 2022
20234 20224

268,647,938.11

267,569,820.37

85.88 86.35

The electricity consumption increased by 0.4% as compared
with 2022, which was due to the full liberalization of epidemic
control during the year, but the epidemic still occurs in some
areas at the beginning of this year, and still affected store
business hours and customer traffic that resulting in only a slight
increase in electricity consumption.

Note 4:  The total gross floor area for calculating electricity consumption
intensity is 3.12 million square metres in 2023.

The total gross floor area for calculating electricity consumption
intensity is 3.09 million square metres in 2022.
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In order to strengthen the monitoring of the energy consumption
of the Group, a number of energy saving measures were
implemented during the reporting period in addition to the
preparation of statistical analysis reports, namely:

e Enhancement of annual and monthly budget management
to continuously promote water and electricity saving;

e Strict implementation of the operating time for various
types of electrical equipment, with timely adjustment of air
conditioning temperature;

e Enhancement of inspection and examination, with timely
troubleshooting and repairs for failure in energy consumption
and prevention of waste of water and electricity;

e Continuous innovation for upgrade of energy-saving
equipment and techniques, such as energy-saving
lightings, zone management on lighting, elevator frequency
conversion, energy-saving water valves and use of energy-
saving environmental protection materials; and

e (Capital investment for optimisation of environment of
stores to establish a model enterprise for clean energy and
environmental protection.

Water consumption

The total water consumption of 49 retail department stores of
the Group during the reporting period is as follows.

ltem HH

Water consumption (cubic metres) FEkE ALK

Water consumption per square metre & /5 K 2L EE
of gross floor area®® FEK M
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AR RAEENERHFES
HFIBRT BIEMST DITIREK T E
RSB ETE TEIsERTHEH

e RIEFERAEREEER IR
KB EIBEIFAE

o EEHMITRIEREXRERE
Eil:S3ER @Bﬁuﬁiﬁmuﬁ7}</ﬂn )

o MNBMIRKE > REFHFERIER
BEREMIE - M ABKEBRE ;

o WEESAIMREEAENE K
MTeR R © NN AENE B oUE ~ R EA
NEEE - BREEER Eﬁﬁ'ﬁ
KEMEBEIRAEMEMER S

. Tﬁ]\ﬂﬁli%% BEPMEEER
BoHEERBZ - RRESD
Fo

EKE

FEERBESHEANZIABEES
=3 F%}_\_E,]lwu%%7}<2§u—lzﬁﬁﬁ—r °

2023 2022
20234 20224

2,305,052.08 1,804,721.77

0.74 0.58

The water consumption increased by 27.72% as compared with
2022, which was due to the full liberalization of the epidemic
control during the year, the gradual resumption of business
and the intensive cleaning efforts after the epidemic led to the
increase in water consumption.

Note 5:  The total grass floor area for calculating electricity consumption
density is 3.12 million square metres in 2023.

The total grass floor area for calculating electricity consumption
density is 3.09 million square metres in 2022.

FEKE®R2022F B MT
271.72%  RAR BB EER KT FE
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Some of the water saving measures implemented by the Group
during the reporting period are as follows:

e Regularly carry out water conservation education on various
departments of the Group to raise awareness of staff on
water conservation and conduct supervision;

e Send special personnel to check whether the water taps are
closed or pipelines are in a leakage condition;

e Promote water saving awareness by posting reminders of
water conservation in public toilets;

e Install sensor valves in public toilets to control the amount of
water used; and

e Reduce water consumption through regular water
management and strict control of waste.

Environmental and natural resources

The Group supports environmental protection and constantly
assess the effectiveness of the measures taken to minimise the
impact of our business operation to the surrounding environment
so that appropriate improvement actions could be taken
promptly. These measures include the use of energy-efficient
lightings, paper usage reduction, turning off idle lightings,
computers and electrical appliances and other facilities and
equipment to save energy. We are also committed to promoting
the use of recycle paper and shopping bags made of recycle
paper in our department stores.

Appropriate actions are taken to manage and minimise the
impacts of our operations to the environment and natural
resources. We actively promote environmental protection and
emphasise green operation and green office. Policies and
measures are implemented to enhance energy conservation
and emission reduction management. Relevant policies and
measures taken during the reporting period are as follows:

e Enhance the DingTalk electronic office system, optimise
office procedures and streamline processes to reduce the
use of office paper and promote the Group’s paperless
office operation;

e Implementing double-sided printing and reusing and
recycling toner cartridges, paper, envelope and paper files;
relevant forms will be printed according to actual demand to
facilitate the reduction of paper consumption at our stores.
At the same time, printing facilities are being adjusted to
reduce the consumption of consumables. Centralised
collection and disposal of used consumables is adopted
to minimise environmental pollution resulting from improper
waste disposal;
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e To advocate environmentally responsible shopping, the
Group uses recycled paper bags instead of traditional
packaging bags. We provide customers with recycled paper
bags made of recycled paper to enhance its recyclability.
We take appropriate measures to comply with “General
Technical Requirements of the environmental protection,
safety and labelling for plastic shopping bags” and “Notice
on restrictions of manufacturing and the sale of plastic
bags” issued by the government. Reduction on plastic bag
consumption was achieved through charging customers for
plastic bags, and provide plastic bags when necessary to
lower waste production; and

e Encouraging the use of environmental friendly materials
and energy efficient equipment in our construction projects;
incorporating environmental friendly concept and design into
our office and stores, including maximising the use of natural
light and share lightings in common areas, and utilising and
refurbishing existing furniture and resources where possible
during renovations.

A4 Climate change

With the growing effects from global warming, saving energy and
minimising greenhouse gas emission become our first priority.

Our administration and engineering departments constantly
maintain all the policies to optimise energy consumption.
These policies include daily maintenance and replacement of
energy-inefficient equipment, switching-on of outdoor lightings
according to local sunset time and using fresh air to replace hot
air instead of air-conditioning in mild temperature. Other policies
adopted in our shops and offices are as follows:
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Energy saving and emission reducing policies &f At 5 ki i

Retail department store
BEZEME

Office
MER
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Control the illumination hours of stores and maintain sufficient lightings
to provide quality shopping experience

EH 2 SRR ARNRELCERE  IRHEBBEYRER
Enhance the maintenance of air-conditioning system to lower energy
consumption

MNsRZE AR AR MEELUR D BERIBFE

Clean the ventilation system to enhance the cooling efficiency of air-
conditioning

BRBRRFLUES TRRSHE

Adjust the operating hours of escalators to avoid wastage
FEEBEFRNETRRE LUBRTHERNRE

Remind employees to switch off non-essential lights and electrical
appliances

RESTHEFTNENEERESR

Remind employees to switch off lights and computers during lunch
hours

1REEE T hF ERBF I RA i I B AN B A
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B. SOCIAL B. #tg
B1 Employment B1 {Ef®

The Group regards employees as the most important assets
and is committed to providing employees with a fair and
sound working environment having open space for personal
development to ensure that Maoye International keeps company
with its employees for advancement.

The Group has established the corporate values, which
employees are guided to recognise, so that attitudes and
behaviors of every employee will conform to and reflect the
corporate culture. We have established a sound compensation
system to provide all employees with remuneration level and
welfare policies that are competitive in the market, so as to
ensure that employees enjoy fair remuneration and benefits.

For the recruitment and promotion, fair opportunity is provided
for each employee under a just and non-discriminatory principle
to ensure that employees are not affected by gender, race and
other factors in hiring and promotion. At the same time, while
ensuring the contribution of employees to the Company, the
personal ability and value are also promoted to have a rapid
improvement and development.

We also strictly adhere to national and local laws and regulations
in terms of working hours and holiday arrangements. Apart
from paid annual leave, the Group also provides different types
of leaves to employees, such as sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and paternity leave so that employees can enjoy
their due leaves to maintain physical and mental health after
industrious works.

Furthermore, the Group takes steps and initiations to maintain a
harmonious labour relationship. We also work with labour unions
to organise a wide range of leisure and cultural activities to
express our care to our employees and promote healthy lifestyle
and strengthen their sense of belonging and cohesiveness to the
Group.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the labour
related laws and regulations.
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R2023F12831H  "&EBRHEA
4,084 1RE » B2022F M T2% >

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 4,084 representing a
increase of 2% as compared 2022. The employee distribution is

as follows. EBEIDERAN TR
Employee Demographics ESIEHT
2023 2022
2023 20224
Number of Number of
employees Percentage"t® employees  Percentage®®

Indicator EE A¥ i EpEs A# flEppse
Total number of employees BERAY 4,084 100.00% 4,001 100.00%
By gender BRE D

Female gog 2,037 49.88% 2,190 56.46%

Male 3B 2,047 50.12% 1,811 43.54%
By age group BERARNED

Under 30 30mUT 817 20% 755 21.36%

3010 50 305 E505% 2,602 63.71% 2,735 67.75%

Over 50 iS50 665 16.29% 511 10.89%
By employment type RERELE D

Full-time 25 4,084 100.00% 4,001 100.00%

Part-time -4 0 - 0 -
By location BiEE D

Mainland China IR 4,084 100% 3,099 99.95%

Hong Kong, China HEEE 0 0.00% 2 0.05%

Others Hi 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
By rank ZESHARE D

Senior =R 92 2.25% 91 2.27%

Middle R 961 23.53% 1,365 34.12%

General — 3,031 74.22% 2,545 63.61%
Note 6:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total Mize . {GLLRIERMSBIERHEEESR

number of employees. ANE 2 BRI o
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New hires HEES
2023 2022
20235 20204
Number of Number of
employees Percentage°®e’ employees  Percentage™e’

Indicator BiE A fhLEme N flEEH=
Number of new hires EEEAY 1,542 37.76% 1,017 25.42%
By gender BRE D

Female Bog 755 18.49% 486 12.15%

Male B 787 19.27% 531 13.27%
By age group BERARE D

Under 30 30 UL T 731 17.90% 534 13.35%

30 to 50 305% £505% 768 18.81% 465 11.62%

Over 50 Bi8505% 43 1.05% 18 0.45%
By location BHEE D

Mainland China ] P it 1,542 37.76% 1,016 25.39%

Hong Kong, China HEEE 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Others Hift 0 0.00% 1 0.02%
By rank HESHMRED

Senior = 34 0.83% 25 0.62%

Middle Bk 428 10.48% 402 10.05%

General — K 1080 26.44% 590 14.75%
Note 7:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total MsE7 0 (G RIER RS BIEEREEE

number of employees.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % BB ZE KRB RA R

ABZ BBt

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 FE#R &



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HHERELARS

Employee turnover 1ES Tk
2023 2022
20234 20224F
Number of Number of
employees Percentage'°®e® employees  Percentage®

Indicator BiE IN | i ppis A# fh L mes
Number of employee turnover EBERKAH 1,956 47.89% 2,340 58.49%
By gender BUuRE D

Female b8 1,049 25.69% 1,271 31.77%

Male 3 907 22.21% 1,069 26.72%
By age group BERERE D

Under 30 30mU T 772 18.90% 751 18.77%

30 to 50 305% £505% 1,001 24.51% 1,278 31.94%

Over 50 HBiB505% 183 4.48% 311 7.77%
By location EHEE D

Mainland China FRE Py 1,956 47.89% 2,340 58.49%

Hong Kong, China HEEHE 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Others Hitt 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
By rank HEEHARE D

Senior =4 36 0.88% 52 1.30%

Middle R 522 12.78% 932 23.29%

General —f% 1,398 34.23% 1,356 33.89%
Note 8:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total M8 (HLERIEARSBIEEHRESE

number of employees. ANE 2 BRI o
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B2 Health and safety B2 {#@EH%E

The Group provides employees with an ideal and safe working
environment. In addition to taking all appropriate measures to
protect the health and safety of employees, the Group also
pays attention to the balance of work and healthy living among
employees. Corresponding system and measures for leaves
and medical needs of employees in special stages (such as
pregnancy, illness, work injury etc.) have been developed to
ensure that there is a reasonable guarantee for rights and
interests of the employees.

To enhance employees’ safety knowledge and skills to prevent
accidents, the Group adopts the following policies:

e Maintaining proper lightings and ventilation systems and a
clean environment both in office and on sales floors, and
providing sufficient working space in the offices;

e Smoking is prohibited in office and store areas; and

e Following government guidelines relating to severe weather
warnings such as typhoons and rainstorms.

At the same time, employee is expected to share the
responsibility in the making and monitoring of procedures and
arrangements in respect of safety and health. All employees will:

e identify, report and rectify hazards at work in relation to
health and safety and report such hazards immediately to
superiors or the security department;

e participate in the investigation of any accidents or hazards to
prevent any re-occurrence; and

e co-operate with management in adopting safe working
methods and procedures.
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During the reporting period, there was no prosecution against
the Group in relation to occupational health and safety matters.
From 2021 to 2023 there was no fatal occupational accident.

RBEBHR ZEBLERBER
BhEZE2ETERIT 202152023
FERRAEEAMREIIETSER

2023 2022
20234 20224F

Indicator 1eiE
Total number of reportable BYFREN T Eargme

occupational injurigsNo®e® 18 18
Percentage of occupational injuryMete 10 T {5 LE S0 0.42 0.45
Number of working days lost AITHBELXTIEER

due to occupational injury 504.27 539
Percentage of working days lost A TEEL T /ER th=mEn

due to occupational injuryNo© 11 3.3 13.47
Absent days HENR 24,447.19 61,244
Absent ratghote 12 ThghtE ZehEe 2.4% 6.12%

Note 9:  Reportable occupational injuries refer to work-related accidents to
employees resulting in incapacity for a period exceeding 3 days;

Note 10: Occupational injury rate is calculated based on the number of
occupational injury per 200,000 working hours (i.e. per 100
employees to work 40 hours per week for 50 weeks per year);

Note 11: Working days lost rate is calculated based on the working days lost
per 200,000 working hours;

Note 12: Absentee rate refers to the percentage of working days lost from

occupational injury and other sicknesses over the total number of
pre-determined working days.
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B3 2R R IEi

B3 Development and training

The Group focuses on the growth of employees and establishes
a scientific and effective training system to formulate and
implement training programs according to job nature and needs
of employees to promote their improvement and growth. The
training contents are divided into induction training, business
training, quality training and personnel training program of
“Maoye University”.

Induction training

In order to help new employees to integrate into the Company
as soon as possible and quickly adapt to job requirements,
regular new staff trainings are organised. Through these
trainings, employees can understand the development,
corporate culture and the rules and regulations of the Group.

Business training

In-service employees regularly receive different types of trainings
in accordance with the needs of their works. For example, retail
stores regularly held services etiquette trainings, while financial
department held skills training for financial employees.

Quality training

Through arrangements such as “reading club” and online
learning platform, the Group provides employees with personal
quality training programs to enable them to obtain personal
growth and advancement.

Personnel training program of “Maoye University”

With deep integration of the Internet economy and traditional
industries, the transformation of department stores is imperative.
In order to meet the needs of talent in the “new retail” era,
the Group provides employees with more systematic and rich
personnel training programs. By formulating comprehensive
training plans, employees can grow rapidly to realise personal
value in the Company and make contribution to the growth and
development of the Company.
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During the reporting period, the demographics of the Group’s REBEH AEEZSTEIES
trained employees are as follows. 1BRUW TR
2023 2022
20235 20224
Number of Number of
employees Percentage°®s employees  Percentage™® ™

Indicator 5E A¥ i EE e A¥ f L
Number of trained employees BEREIREAH 4,998 122.38% 4,487 112.15%
By gender BuRE D

Female b8 2,895 70.89 2,385 59.61%

Male B 2,103 51.49% 2,102 52.54%
By employment rank ZEEENED

Senior B4k 314 7.69% 105 2.62%

Middle R 1,004 24.58% 1,126 28.14%

General —f% 3,680 90.11% 3,256 81.38%
During the reporting period, the Group’s employees were trained RERSHAR > AEEBS TEI4ER
for a total of 68,330 hours. Each employee was trained for 13.67 468,330/ N\ ERE T AHE
hours. FIFRE 2 413,67/ \BF o
In 2022, the total training hours were 63,842 hours. Each 2022F )| AR BF 8L 263,842/ \BF
employee was trained for 14.23 hours. o 5RET AEIEIIREA14.23

JNBF o
The distribution of average training hours among our employees TEEREFHBINFHIADER
are as follows. WTR&RFTR
2023 2022
(Average (Average
training hours) training hours)
20235 20224

Indicator 1eiE (&3 TFI9EF 2D (TR gD
By gender g kallE| oAy

Female k4 15.23 14.02

Male 2 14.32 14.46
By employment rank EFEENE D

Senior (ST 12.98 12.24

Middle &k 19.12 18.58

General — 13.65 12.79
Note 13: Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total MizH13 . LRGBS IBIERHEEER

number of employees. ANE 2 BRI o
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B4 Labour standards B4 BT #H|

All of our departments and stores comply with local laws and
regulations and strictly prohibit the use of child labour and
forced labour. Maoye International pays special attention to the
verification of identity information of employees. Comprehensive
recruitment review procedures will be conducted by the human
resources department to ensure that the information provided by
the candidates is accurate. In addition, the Group will regularly
examine whether there is existence of children labour or forced
labour in the operation of the business.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to children or forced labour.

The relevant policies adopted by the Group are:

e Strictly prohibiting any departments to request and/
or employ any person who age below 16. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for the review of the
age during recruitment to ensure that no minors under the
age of 16 are employed; and

e Al employment must be on a voluntary basis and we do not
allow forced labour, or using any form of deception to allure
employee to work.

B5 Supply Chain Management

The Group has been considering environmental issues from
various perspectives when negotiating the store leasing with
the suppliers. The Group will directly examine the qualifications
of the customers for new storage goods and supply of new
products, including environmental protection indicators, and
the quality of portfolio of regional and store suppliers to provide
consumers with a variety of choices. The Group will directly
interface with large suppliers to introduce attractive products that
comply with environment regulations to promote the strategic
cooperation between the two parties. In addition, environmental
information is also shared with retail tenants and other visitors
from time to time to promote sustainable green business model.
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At the same time, all suppliers operating in our stores are
required to establish labour relations with employees in
accordance with local laws and regulations and provide
remuneration and benefits (such as social security, provident
fund etc.) that meet legal requirements. The aforesaid
requirements are clearly included in the “counter contract” and
cooperation agreement of the two parties. For the employees
of suppliers, we also require suppliers and their staff to provide
written supporting documents and records to ensure that
interests of the employees of the suppliers are guaranteed.

During the reporting period, the demographics of number of
suppliers by location are as follows.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HHERELARS

BRI AEBERAAEFIE
BENMER KRIZREMER
ERNEREBSTREUISHAER
R AT &R R B KAV F BN AT 42
(MR 2BEEF) U LERH
BRI AL L (FEBER)MNEE
sk o T B B TSR > FAFI75
ERMEHEAEETRHUEDNG
BA S {4 A 50 &% > LA B (R FE T B9
BTN mSEIRE-

RSN ZMe 8 D HER
BB R TR

2023 2022
20234 20224

Indicator Eiq

Number of major suppliershcte 14 FEMEREEE 14 12

By location & B o
Mainland China FR B Py 3 14 12
Hong Kong, China RS A 0 0
Others Hih 0 0

B6 Product responsibility B6 EmET
Policy on product and service responsibility Emm R REE T E

The Group is responsible for the products and services and pays
attention to marketing ethics to ensure no engagement in any
form of unfair business practices. The procurement and service
processes of the Group ensure the transparency and security of
the information on products and services. The policy on rights
and interests of customers of the Group is not only formulated
and publicised, but also be implemented in the operating
activities to prevent products or services from harming interests,
health and safety of the consumers. The Group complies
with the relevant product and service regulations and national
standards, without any cheating, misleading, deception or any
other acts that undermine the trust from customers and damage
to their rights and interests.

Note 14: Major suppliers refer to suppliers providing products and/or services
to the Group with total contract value of over RMB10 million.
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Customer service policy

Our business model is based on the needs of customers, with
an ultimate goal of providing customers with the best quality
services. We not only provide customers with the best quality
products to meet their needs, but also implement relevant
examination measures to fulfill the commitment. In case a
complaint about the service is lodged, the Group will conduct
an independent investigation in accordance with its internal
guidelines. The Group also collects the satisfaction questionnaire
from customers regularly to gather valuable opinions from
customers.

In addition, we are committed to establishing a deep partnership
with the tenants, shoppers and visitors by understanding
their needs and working closely with them. In summary, we
are committed to providing customers with a unique and
enjoyable experience. As such, we must fulfill our commitment
to excellence in quality of services and sustainable value-added
assets, creating a good place full of life enjoyment, working joys
and shopping leisure.

Practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

The Group understands that brand equity is crucial to our
success. We allocate resources to maintain and protect the
intellectual property rights of our brands.

e We value intellectual property and recognise intellectual
property is an indispensable element of successful business;

e We manage and protect our intellectual property through
registration and maintenance and enforcement of our
intellectual property; and

e We respect intellectual property rights of others and do not
infringe their intellectual property rights.

During the reporting period, our customer services include
supports extended to customers before, during and after the
sales. All complaints were handled by professional personnel
of our customer service department. Details of the complaints,
monitoring and status, handling time and settlement were
properly recorded. In 2023, customer complaints received by the
Group were consistent with those of the industry.

66 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED F& B ZER AR AT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HHERELARS

EFREH R

HPNEBEXACUBRENEESR
A UABEREREERS S
REBER -HMATERHEFRMEY]
GtMMPRENRBEEIER TRAE
B8 7K 5 1T $% B AR BE BY 4% X ¥8 I o 400
ERPHRBREHBBARS ~&E
RARIEE RIS S (FR B IR E -
REERTARREPIEWRES PP
BERmEERERSE UMNER
FREERER-

ESh > RAFITRAGE BB T EER B
MALTRBEZHTR LBMFAIRE
G MBILRENBHER 4B
MmE 2 BN BER RIS
BmBOBEER - BIt WK AEE
WY FURFSERNTEEERE
BEGE e —EARBREETER T
TEIT AN YD H B EF 3t 75

BERMERRENRERERBANIE
Bl

AEBRNDEHEBNNEFE
2 WRBR DR R ERECEEMH
o8 K (RIZ A B8 dm 2 RO R 580 ZE 7 o

o SMRAMBER WD MER
HEB OISR ;

o BB AERE K ORI I E IR
RIREREBOVAMER ; K

e BEMANBMER TERER
FEAE ARt AR s8 EE 1 o

RIS BERBO TIFRR
BEZNER - ERURERNEE
RE - AEBEFARFEBEETRE
WPIEE AL EIE BEERER
HE BERERFEERERE RIBE
PN R R WL RER —F
oA EERENRFNETE
e

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 FE#R &



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Data privacy policy

The Group strictly abides by the provisions of the law and
attaches great importance to the privacy of personal data to
resolutely maintain and protect personal information. Only
personal information needed for the business are collected
and used subject to purposes mentioned in the course of
collection unless with agreement from customers. We will not
transfer or disclose any personal data to any entities other than
the members of the Group without consent, unless otherwise
required by the laws or notification is given to customers in
advance. In addition, we maintain appropriate safety systems
and measures to prevent unauthorised access to personal data.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to the quality of products and services.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group has been committed to upholding the principle
of integrity and all employees are required to strictly abide
by personal and professional conducts. The internal control
and human resources centre of the Group have standardized
channels to accept internal and external reports on corruption,
bribery and other violations of professional conducts, together
with investigation and disposal of reports having evidence.
During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to corruption.

B8 Community investment

We adhere to the concept of “Giving back to society” and
proactively participate in community and social services to
promote corporate social responsibilities and make contributions
to the society. In this regard, we actively invest to support the
community, especially to those less privileged group as well
as the young generation in terms of education, growth and
development. Through connecting and interacting with the
community, the Group aims to:

e care for the underprivileged group and bring them hopes
and supports;

e encourage employees to be compassionate and caring;

e strengthen our employees’ sense of belonging to the
society; and

e provide education to help them achieve a better future.

B7

B8
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Section
Reference
A. Environmental (Page Number)
RIESHiZE
R (E58)
Al. Emissions
BEm

General Disclosure
—RINE

KPI
PSR AR ISR
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Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRERMORERBIN MKk M5 - BERBSEEY
NEEZH (@BER ; RO)ETHETABEAXENEMERR
REIBER o

A1.1  The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

R L8 R AR R I B

A1.2  Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.
AERBAHINEREE -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

FRELEASRRYEEBREE-

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

FRELEESBERYEBREE-

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.

HAUR R PRI E BB K PSR ©

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HMRIEREERBEEEEYN L Z - RBEELESENEHER
FTigp R e

page 50 to 51

Deemed
immaterial

WRBTER

Deemed
immaterial

WRBTER

page 51
518

Deemed
immaterial

WRBTEKN

page 50 to 51

50518
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Section
Reference
A. Environmental (Page Number)
RIGEEH2E
IRIR (EH)
A2.  Use of Resources
BIRERA
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and  page 52 to 54
—RRIFE other raw materials. 50Z 548
BRFERER (BIEER K REMEMR) OB -
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and  page 52
REREWIEIR intensity.
RENEIDNERKSEEEREEEREE - 528
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. page 53
MFEKERBE- 538
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results  page 52
achieved.
AR IR SR A A a5t B S PRAS AR © 528
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water  page 54
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
W SKEGE A KIR LRI B R EE  UREABKMGST 548
B PRISRR ©
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products. Deemed
immaterial
Sk P A M RIR4EE o WEBTEKR
A3.  The Environment and Natural Resources
IRIERRAER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the page 54 to 55
— IR environment and natural resources.
BIRETARRIERRAEREMNEARTEHNE R 54%558
KPI A3.1  Description of the significant impacts of activities on the  page 54 to 55
R SR G WIEIR environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
HMEBEHHRIEARARERNEARZERCHKINEE 545558
BRAZENTH -
A4.  Climate Change
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related  page 55
— IR EE issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
B REHERRAEEHETAELERCENEAREERMERE 558
BOBER ©
KPI A4.1  Description of the significant climate-related issues which  page 55
AR AE WIS IE have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
HTERRAEEHETAEEFENEAREREBASE 558
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIGEHS2E
He (575)
B1.  Employment
2
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  page 56 to 59
— i 2R and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
BRFMN R BELSH TEKE -RA -TEKE 2T L6ES9E
b~ RIERMUREMEFBREFN (@BX% ; kbO)ETFHETAR
BAXENERERERRAINEK
KPI B1.1  Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and  page 57
R R A WIEIR geographical region.
R B S FE AR R E B DRV RS 488 - 578
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and page 59
geographical region.
R FA R Rt E S D EE MK 598
B2.  Health and Safety

BEHEZ S
General Disclosure
—RRIFE

KPI
BRI IR
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Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
BREHZ2TFRBERFREEEBRHEMLEN ((@QBER; &
OETFHEFETABEATXEMERERERRAIBNEL

B2.1  Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

HTERIAMIETHI AR LR -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
RITEELTIEHE-

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted,and how they are implemented and monitored.
WP RV R R R E L 28T U BERARNIT R EBER
Fiike

page 60 to 61

page 60 to 61

B60ZE61E
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIREHS2E
e (515)
B3.  Development and Training
F R R E
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for page 62 to 63
—RRIFE discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BREFHEERIT LIEBEMN A AR AERBCR - igliEs . 62£638
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and page 63
R SR AE IE IR employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
BURESRE] WESREERE - TREERE) BHHT 638
dfEEBA DL
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by page 63
gender and employee category.
BRI REESEE D BLEETMZIN RS- 635
B4.  Labour Standards
5T AR
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  page 64
—RRIFE and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
BRI EETEEIZ5 TR (@R ; ROETHEITABEARY 64H
ERERERERRAINEK -
KPI B4.1  Description of measures to review employment practices to  page 64
RARE ISR avoid child and forced labour.
A s AR B A E M LB R B T Resa k|55 T o 648
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when  page 64
discovered.
T ERERE R EEPRA BIE R PRI B 2 58 o 648
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Section
Reference
(Page Number)
RIESHiZE
(EHE)

B. Social
e
B5.  Supply Chain Management
HEEER
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
—MRIEE chain.
EIRHEBIIRG R g RREER
KPI B5.1  Number of suppliers by geographical region.
RSB AE ISR &8 DRIHERHE -

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
WM A RMERAREENEG mENITEREBESNMEERS
HE -URBEREANRITRERG %o

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

A R R EESEREONIRE AT ERENIES
MBS ITRER A %o

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

A PEREEREELRIRRERERBWNESG > U
FABRARMAT B ER % o

page 64 to 65

B64E65H

page 65
B65H
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B. Social

HE

Section
Reference
(Page Number)
RIESHZE
(EHB)

B6.  Product Responsibility
EmEE
General Disclosure
—RRIFE

KPI
PR AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
BERFMREERIBRBNEERZS - EBES - REAMEETEUR
R EN (@QBER ; ROETFHETABEAZENEREIER
RBINE KL o

B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
EENCEXERBYBTRARLEREEAMARKNE
be

page 65 to 67

Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.
BRBNERRRBHRFHMBUREEH £

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
M B e 5 R AR IE R 58 EE R RARVIE ) 0

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
LB 2R EiBE&xEmLBIRER -

page 65 to 66

B65E66E

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
and how they are implemented and monitored.
HTUH B & BRHMRE RFARECSR  LURAERMBIT RERT
V£ o
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIREHIZE
e (575)
B7.  Anti-corruption
RES
General Disclosure
—RRINE Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  page 67
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRIBH IEERRS ~ B R ~ BEERE R B2 ((BUR ; o)BFHETA 678
BEAXENEREZERRAMNER
KPI B7.1  Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices  page 67
RASR A IS IZ brought against the issuer or its employees during the

reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERBHANHZTARHBERHLEBGNESHAR 678
HHE B KafehiE R

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  page 67
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

RSB R B RIZT  URERRITRER S % 678

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff. \
HItmEERETRMHNREFEIC -

B8.  Community Investment

HELSE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the  page 67
— %I EE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’ interests.
BRUHE2HERTHREEMTHERTENRFREERIZHEE o753
B & H A BUER o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental page 67
R R AEWIER concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HEIEMBRE WHEE BRRESE-HFIEXR - EE Xt~ 678
feH) o
B8.2 Resource contributed to the focus areas. page 67
HEFTHENERBA 678
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The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 8 August 2007. The Group
principally engages in the operation and management of department
stores and property development in the PRC. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 98.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group,
an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators, an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business and a discussion on the relationships with its key stakeholders,
are set out in the “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report”
and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
The review forms part of this directors’ report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from Thursday,
2 May 2024 to Tuesday, 7 May 2024 (both days inclusive), during which
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Tuesday, 7 May 2024, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company should ensure all share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 30 April 2024.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 103 to 104 and note 36 to the financial
statements. The reserves are calculated in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution was approximately RMB1,784 million, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company. Pursuant to the
137 of Articles of Association, dividends may be declared and paid
out of the profits of the Company, realized or unrealized, or from any
reserve set aside from profits which the Directors determine is no longer
needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution dividends may also
be declared and paid out of share premium account or any other fund or
account which can be authorized for this purpose in accordance with the
law.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Movements of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Interest bearing bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2023 amounted to approximately RMB11,797.2 million,
details of which are set out in the heading under “Interest-bearing
Liabilities” above and note 33 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company were as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Tang Haifeng

Non-executive Director
Mr. Tony Huang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Rao Youg
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Gao Yajun

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Mr.
Gao Yajun and Ms. Lu Xiaojuan are subject to retirement by rotation at
the 2024 AGM. Each of them, being eligible, has offered himself for re
election at the 2024 AGM. All the above retiring director, being eligible,
will offer himself/herself for re-election at the 2024 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The Articles of
Association provide that the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices; provided that this indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
of said persons. Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this report, there was or is, any
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong))
being in force for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company
(if made by the Company).

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Secretary” in this annual
report.

PENSION SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in retirement schemes administered and operated by
the local municipal government. The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China contribute funds to the retirement schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees which are calculated on certain percentage
of the average employee salary as stipulated by the local municipal
government. Such retirement schemes are responsible for the entire
post-retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2023 were RMB41 miillion. Details of the pension scheme are set out in
note 8 to the finance statement.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, no director nor
a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of the directors of the Company
in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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(1) Long position in the shares of the Company

(1) x2ERHBZHEE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of director Capacity interested capital”
- A AT
EEREZ BRTRAER
EEps &1n EERYE SRl
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Interest of controlled corporations 4,200,000,000 81.71%
BRmEE R EEER (Note)
(P51
Beneficial owner 50,000,000 0.97%
BHE#EBA
4,250,000,000 82.68%
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan Beneficial owner 411,000 0.01%
ENEZ L BR#EBA

Note:  These shares were held by Maoye Department Store Investment Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of MOY International Holdings Limited, which in
turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number
of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2023.
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(2) Long position in the shares of associated corporations

(2.1)Maoye Department Store Investment Limited, the immediate
holding company of the Company

(2 MHECEERMAZEFE
2.1) KR B BFEHEE AL 2\ E]Maoye
Department Store Investment Limited

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Number of in such
ordinary shares associated
Name of director Capacity interested corpora}ion*
) i A E
BEREDZ BT
ERiy 15 EREKRYE LSl
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Interest of controlled corporation 2 100%
=3k REGZENER (Note)
(P5E)
Note: These shares were held by MOY International Holdings Limited, MizE © D EHMOY International Holdings
which was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Mao Ru. Limitedt¥ 75 » Mz A B HERNTE
2EHRC
* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided * B R R E @2 B R UMaoye

by the number of Maoye Department Store Investment Limited’s
issued shares as at 31 December 2023.

(2.2)MOY International Holdings Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company

Department Store Investment Limited?
2023F12H31HEEITRM ZHE -

(2.2) 2K A BRI R EIMOY
International Holdings Limited

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Number of in such
ordinary shares associated
Name of director Capacity interested corporation*
) AN A E
mEREZ BT
ERpy &5 ERERYE BAE oL
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Beneficial owner 100 100%
=Rk Bal#EAA
*  The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the * BoLEAREBREBRUAMOY

number of MOY International Holdings Limited’s issued shares as at 31
December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

International Holdings Limited$20234
12B31AZ EETRHEE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons (other than the directors
of the Company, whose interests have been disclosed in the above
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company and its
Associated Corporations”) had interests of 5% or more in the shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

T ERERAATRG RAAMBRS 2
BsRNE

12023128318 U A+ (BmER £X

BEERETETHABRERE KREBBE
IR RGN w3k A ) — 8K
BNARREEFRIN BEREES KIS
15 P E3361F A A B BIFERECMATC iR
AR A B IRD5%E A LRI -

Long position in the shares of the Company EABIRMGZEFE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity interested capital”
- AR
gl BRTRAR
TERRESA 517 EER#E B4 E L
Mrs. Huang Jingzhang Interest of spouse 4,250,000,000 82.68%
REFX T fo @i m (Note (a))
(GEIE))
Maoye Department Store Beneficial owner 4,200,000,000 81.71%
Investment Limited BmEBA (Note (b))
(Ft 55 (o))
MOY International Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 4,200,000,000 81.71%
REEENED (Note (o))
(Mi5E(b))
Notes: Mok

(@ Mrs. Huang Jingzhang was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interest of
her spouse, Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

(o) Maoye Department Store Investment Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of MOY
International Holdings Limited. Such interests were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Huang Mao Ru in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company and its Associated
Corporations”.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number of the
Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person (other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests have been disclosed
in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
and its Associated Corporations”) had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.
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EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 4,084 employees.
Salaries, bonuses and benefits are determined with reference to market
terms and performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company
confirmed that based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company had
maintained sufficient amount of public float as required under the Listing
Rules and agreed by the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Under the deed of non-competition dated 17 April 2008 given by Mr.
Huang Mao Ru, Maoye Holdings Limited and Richon Holdings Limited
(collectively known as the “Controlling Shareholder Group”) in favour
of the Company, details of which were stated in the prospectus of the
Company dated 21 April 2008 (the “Prospectus”), the Controlling
Shareholder Group had undertaken to use its best endeavour within
three years to (i) resolve the existing litigation between Chongging
Jiefangbei Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. (EEMRKMEEERS
BBR/AE) (“‘Chongging Jiefangbei Store”) and Chongging Xin Long
Da Real Estate Development Company Limited (EEZ[EEREME
BB RAET) (“Xin Long Da”); (i) obtain all necessary consents and
approvals for the transfer of the interest of the Controlling Shareholder
Group in Chongaging Jiefangbei Store and Wuxi Maoye Department
Store Company Limited (F&#7%x B EAMRAE)and Wuxi Maoye
Baifu Supermarket Company Limited (E#HKE T RBRHIZEREL
@) (the latter two collectively known as “Maoye Wuxi Store”) to the
Group (note); and (i) obtain all necessary consents and approvals for
the transfer of the Controlling Shareholder Group’s interest in Guiyang
Friendship Group Holdings Company Limited (EF5 k& 8 () R AR
‘AE]) (“Guiyang Friendship Group”), to serve a notice on the Group within
ten business days of any of the issues in clauses (i) to (i) above having
been resolved, and to use his/its best endeavour to transfer the interest in
Chongqing Jiefangbei Store, Maoye Wuxi Store and Guiyang Friendship
Group to the Group as soon as practicable once the relevant issues
impeding such transfer have been resolved. The Controlling Shareholder
Group had further undertaken to keep the Company informed every six
months from the Listing Date as regards the progress on the matters
described above.

Note:  The ownership of Maoye Wuxi Store has been changed to Wuxi Maoye Property
Co., Ltd., and such company was controlled by the Controlling Shareholders.
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Since the Supreme People’s Court has adjudged that the leasing
agreement entered into between Chongging Jiefangbei Store and
Xin Long Da was valid and binding, the litigation between Chongging
Jiefangbei Store and Xin Long Da has been resolved. However, the
Group is still considering as to whether to acquire the interests of the
Controlling Shareholder Group in the Chongqging Jiefangbei Store and
Maoye Wuxi Store. As the original master management agreement has
terminated on 31 December 2019, the Company entered into the new
master management agreement (the “New Master Management
Agreement”) with Maoye Holdings Limited on 1 January 2020 for a
term of three years to govern the terms upon which the Group will
provide store management services to the Controlling Shareholder
Group with respect to the Maoye Wuxi Store and/or department stores
owned by the Controlling Shareholder Group, in order to avoid conflict
of interests between the Group and the Controlling Shareholder Group.
On 1 January 2023, the parties have entered into the renewed New
Master Management Agreement (the “2023 Master Management
Agreement”) for a term of three years, for the continuing provision of
store management services by the Group to the Controlling Shareholder
Group with respect to the Maoye Wuxi Store and/or department stores
owned by the Controlling Shareholder Group. As Maoye Holdings
Limited is a connected person (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company, the entering into of the New Master Management Agreement
and the 2023 Master Management Agreement constituted connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, as all the applicable percentage ratios in relation to the New
Master Management Agreement and the 2023 Master Management
Agreement were less than 0.1%, these agreements were fully exempt
from the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. As Chongqging Jiefangbei Store
has ceased operation since February 2011, the Group did not manage
Chongqging Jiefangbei Store thereafter. Approval from the relevant
government departments has not been obtained in relation to the Group’s
application for transfer of interest in Guiyang Friendship Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Internet Promotion Service Agreement

On 18 August 2021, Maoye Digital Intelligence Information Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited (“Maoye Digital Intelligence”, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into the Internet
Promotion Service Agreement with Shenzhen Shijin Business Consulting
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Shijin”), pursuant to which Maoye Digital
Intelligence agreed to pay, and Shenzhen Shijin agreed to provide, among
others, promotion services relating to the information designated by
Maoye Digital Intelligence on multi-channel online platforms including
Tencent and ByteDance.
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The Internet Promotion Service Agreement is effective for three years
commencing from 18 August 2021 to 17 August 2024. According to the
Internet Promotion Service Agreement, the total service fees payable by
Maoye Digital Intelligence for the advertising services and value-added
services to Shenzhen Shijin and the proposed annual caps are RMB5.0
million, RMB20.0 million, RMB30.0 million and RMB30.0 million from 18
August 2021 to 31 December 2021, for the year 2022, for the year 2023
and from 1 January 2024 to 17 August 2024, respectively.

According to the Internet Promotion Service Agreement, the service fees
paid by Maoye Digital Intelligence to Shenzhen Shijin for the advertising
services and value-added services was RMB1.767 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

On 24 March 2023, the Company entered into an Elevator Maintenance
Framework Agreement with Zhongzhao Building, pursuant to which
Zhongzhao Building will be entrusted to provide maintenance services
for the elevators owned or used by the Group’s stores or buildings, and
the agreement term is lasted from from 24 March 2023 to 31 December
2025 (both days inclusive). The relevant members of the Group will
enter into specific elevator maintenance agreements separately with
Zhongzhao Building. Details of the transaction were disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 24 March 2023.

Zhongzhao Building is beneficially owned by Mr. Huang, the controlling
shareholder and a Director. Therefore, Zhongzhao Building is a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and
the Elevator Maintenance Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company.

The amount payable is set out in the specific elevator maintenance
agreements to be entered into by the relevant members of the Group
with Zhongzhao Building, the prices and terms shall not deviate from the
prices and terms offered by independent third parties for the provision of
similar services to the Group.

The aggregated transaction amount and the proposed annual caps are
RMB3.00 million, RMB3.00 million and RMB3.00 million respectively for
24 March 2023 to 31 December 2023, and the year ending 2024 and
2025.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, pursuant to the Elevator
Maintenance Framework Agreement, total RMB1.874 million
maintenance fee was paid by the Company to Zhongzhao Building for the
maintenance service of the Company and the relevant members.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION & CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

By 8 February 2023, Chengshang Holding and Chengdu Maoye Property,
both being subsidiaries of the Company entered into the Property Service
Agreements with each of Jinjiang Chongde and Shuangliu Chongde
for providing property management services for properties owned by
Chengshang Holding and/or Chengdu Maoye Property. The terms of the
Property Service Agreements range from one-year to three-years. Details
of the transaction were disclosed in the Company's announcement dated
8 February 2023 and 13 February 2023 respectively.

Both Jinjiang Chongde and Shuangliu Chongde are beneficially owned
by Mr. Huang, the controlling shareholder and a director of the Company.
Therefore, both Jinjang Chongde and Shuangliu Chongde are connected
persons of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRINCIPAL TERMS OF THE PROPERTY SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Chengshang Holding and Shuangliu Chongde have entered into the
No. 1 Property Service Agreement for one year pursuant to which
Shuangliu Chongde provides property management services for Chengdu
Shuangliu Maoye Times Square in respect of shopping malls and office
buildings with a floor area of 30,610.74 square meters. The property
service fee is RMB14 per square meter per month, and the total amount
of the agreement is approximately RMB5.14 million.

The No. 1 Property Service Agreement is a one-off connected
transaction pursuant to the Listing Rules. As the relevant percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of
the Listing Rules in respect of the No. 1 Property Service Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder are all less than 5%, the
No. 1 Property Service Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder is subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but is exempt
from the circular (including independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement.

Chengshang Holding and Jinjiang Chongde entered into the No. 2
Property Service Agreement for three years pursuant to which Jinjiang
Chongde provides property management services to Chengdu Yanshikou
Maoye Complex (South Zone), in respect of office buildings with a floor
area of 1,260.37 square meters. The property service fee is RMB19.5 per
square meter per month. Based on the floor area of the said property,
the annual transaction amount is approximately RMB0.29 million for each
of the three years ended 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025, and the
aggregated transaction amount of the No. 2 Property Service Agreement
for the entire duration of the three years ended 31 December 2023, 2024
and 2025 is estimated to be approximately RMB0.88 million.
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Chengdu Maoye Property and Shuangliu Chongde entered into the No. 3
Property Service Agreement for three years pursuant to which Shuangliu
Chongde provides operation services for the parking lot of Chengdu
Shuangliu Maoye Times Square, which consists of 592 parking spaces.
The parking lot will be operated by Shuangliu Chongde who shall be
responsible for its own profits and losses. After deducting all expenses
(excluding all taxes) from the operating income of the parking lot, the
remaining income will be distributed between Shuangliu Chongde and
Chengdu Maoye Property as to 30% and 70%, respectively. Shuangliu
Chongde will bear the costs of operation, maintenance, management
and taxes of the parking lot. According to the estimated income of the
parking lot, it is estimated that Shuangliu Chongde will charge a parking
lot operating fee of approximately RMBO0.31 million per year for each
of the three years ended 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025, and the
aggregated transaction amount of the No. 3 Property Service Agreement
for the entire duration of the three years ended 31 December 2023, 2024
and 2025 will be approximately RMB0.93 million.

The aggregated transaction amount and the proposed annual caps are
RMBO0.60 million, RMBO0.60 million, and RMBO0.60 million respectively
for each of the three years ended 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025
for the No. 2 Property Service Agreement and No. 3 Property Service
Agreement.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, total RMB5.076 million
property management fee was paid by Chendu Shuangliu Maoye Times
Square to Shuangliu Chongde for property service in respect of shopping
malls and office buildings.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed

and confirmed that such Connected Transaction and Continuing

Connected Transaction are:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the relevant terms governing the conduct of such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests

of the Company and the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Group confirmed in the letter to the board of directors
that, in respect of the above continuing connected transactions:

(i)  they did not notice anything that would lead the auditors to believe

that the disclosed continuing connected transactions were not
approved by the board of directors;
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(i) they did not notice anything that led the auditors to believe that
the transactions were not conducted in all material respects in
accordance with the relevant agreements of these transactions; and

(i) with regard to the continuing connected transactions in total, they
did not notice any circumstances that would make the auditors
believe that the continuing connected transactions exceeded
the relevant caps referred in the relevant Agreements and
Announcements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2023, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors
or their respective associates had any business or interests in businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group:

Mr. Huang Mao Ru held interests in Chongqing Jiefangbei Store, Maoye
Wuxi Store and Guiyang Friendship Group. Details of these companies
and Mr. Huang’s interests in these companies are set out in the
Prospectus. As mentioned in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholder
Group has granted the Group an option to purchase the whole or part of
the interest of these companies.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Since the Group mainly engages in retail business, for the year ended 31
December 2023, none of its customers or suppliers accounted for more
than 5% of the Group’s revenue or purchases. In addition, for the year
ended 31 December 2023, none of the directors, shareholders or their
respective close associates who owned 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital had any interest in any of the five largest customers
and the five largest suppliers of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmental-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. The Group
strives to minimize the environmental impact by saving electricity and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. Details of the
environmental policies of the Company are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out in the Mainland China while
the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our establishment
and operations accordingly shall comply with the relevant laws and
regulations in the Mainland China and Hong Kong. As far as the Directors
are aware, during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its
business and operations.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of 2023 have been audited and
agreed by Ernst & Young. The Board, with the recommendation of
the Audit Committee, unanimously resolved not to re-appoint Ernst &
Young as the auditors of the Company and resolved to propose the
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the new auditors of the
Company following the retirement of Ernst & Young at the conclusion of
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The proposed
appointment is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of 2024.

By order of the Board

Maoye International Holdings Limited
Huang Mao Ru

Chairman

20 March 2024
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To the shareholders of Maoye International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Maoye
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 98 to 242, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong A5t —REE2748

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

Key audit matter

HRESNEE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HANEAMAHARES FRETRE

Goodwill - impairment

BE—RE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group reported goodwill of
RMB1,260,531,000 as a result of previous acquisitions.
Management performs an impairment test for the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill is allocated annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the unit,
including the goodwill, with the recoverable amount of
the unit. The impairment test is complex, and significantly
relies on management’s judgement and estimation about
the discount rate and the expected future operating
results, such as the long-term growth rate, revenue and
margin development which are affected by future market
and economic conditions.

122023 12831H EEERHLAWBEFEMERAR
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FIER R (st ZZERER KRR T IBRAEBER T o

The accounting policies, significant estimates and
related disclosures are included in note 2.4 Business
combinations and goodwill, note 3 Impairment of goodwill
and note 20 Goodwill to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

B BER - BEAGHREAKRBEERASERLRSYH
WRMF24EB S H RS ME3EERE W20
R

We evaluated the key assumptions used in cash flow
forecasts, such as the sales growth and gross margin,
through comparison with historical performance and the
business development plan. We involved our internal
valuation specialists in the assessment of the discount
rate and long-term growth rate with reference to general
market indicators and comparable companies. We
also tested the management’s sensitivity analysis of the
impairment test.
BMEBEATRBHERKERERADFTERERE
TEAIPRE ARV RSB WHHEE R R ENZH 2
A EEERBBE2E —RHIZEERA ERAB TG
MREXRERAEEXR - RMTAREEBHRENADN
BRE Do

We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.
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B2 AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

B EE

F#EETEE@®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANBHUAHARESEHRETER

Investment properties — valuation

REYE—141E

The Group is engaged in the operation and management
of department stores and property development in
Chinese Mainland. The completed investment properties
in operation and investment properties under construction
are recognised as investment properties and measured
at fair value. Management engaged external appraisers
to evaluate the fair values of the investment properties
annually. As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s
investment properties amounted to approximately
RMB21,806,780,000. The fair value measurement of
investment properties is complex and highly dependent
on a range of estimates made by management, such as
the rental value, rental growth, vacancy rate, discount
rate, budgeted construction cost, remaining percentage to
completion and profit margin on construction.
EEERPREAENEEEEREREBEYELERE
BoREPNERTIREMERTRERENERKLEY
EWEANBEE - BEEZRIINEMHEMESFTH
REMENAARBE BZE2023F12831H EEEN
REMEN A ANRE21,806,780,0007T c HEMEM A
nEBEAEEEEFSEEERFHN—RIIMst WA
TEE AR - TEX MR -BEREMAIE
S TR TAEDERTREMEE.

The accounting policies, significant estimates, fair value
hierarchy and related disclosures are included in note 2.4
Investment properties, note 3 Estimation of fair value of
investment properties, and note 18 Investment properties
to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
R EXRMMF A ABEBRAEAKESHA
BEEEGREMBRRMEA2ALEYE W3R EME
N EEGS URE18%EYZE-

We assessed the objectivity, independence and expertise
of the external appraisers, as well as obtained an
understanding of the external appraisers’ scope of work.
M TS EEMN ST B R EENH
MR T RSN ER (B B AR &E & ©

With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists, we
obtained an understanding of the valuation process and
techniques and inputs (such as discount rate) adopted
by the external appraisers to assess whether they were
consistent with the requirements of industry norms. We
obtained the detailed work of the external appraisers
and assessed the reasonableness of the significant
unobservable inputs and the accuracy of the source
data adopted by the management of the Group and the
external appraisers by comparing them, on a sampling
basis, to existing tenancy profiles, publicly available
information of similar comparable properties and our
knowledge of the real estate industry. We also evaluated
the sensitivity analysis prepared by management on the
significant unobservable inputs to evaluate the magnitude
of their impacts on the fair values.
ERMAANSEEERNHE T R TR T HEBREK
SR ERMPRER A B 75 & A B 3 A B (U0 AR IR =) I
TEHE S EITERERTE o HMIEVGSER i EED
N TEER RAERBERESR BT EEY
ENAHBENERBEMEEMETEN T BETILER %
HEARTEEATTERBAEBNSENREEERE
8 R S B A {5 Bl AT ER 40 B9 BB SRR RV ZERE M © IR API2
AT EEENEETNTTHRERRAGRENBKEDT
DEHE R EHR A RBENTEREZEE-

We also reviewed the adequacy of the disclosures of the
fair value of investment properties in the consolidated
financial statements.

BT RERaBRRPREVELAABENKERZ
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BIZEEMR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

MEEEE

F#EETEE@®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HANSBANAHARESF FHRETERE

Investment in an associate — impairment

R—EBERERE —HE

As at 31 December 2023, investment in an associate
of the Group was stated at an amount of approximately
RMB153,440,000.

1R2023F 12831 H EXER —EME QB KRENTIR
SR B AR 1158,440,0007T

At the financial reporting date, the Group reviewed the
operations to determine whether there were any indicators
of impairment. When indicators of impairment are
identified, management assesses the recoverable amount
of the investment in an associate. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense in the consolidated income
statement when the carrying amount of the investment
in an associate exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of the investment in an associate is
the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use.

RUBREER EERERKEXEFURERZSET
ARIRENR BRRBERRE  EEEFTHN—
B E B RENTNEIFE EN—EHERTRE
HEREERBHEAIWREEEE AITASIERRPHES
BEBERAAZ N—EHEATIRENTWEEEER
RPERHENFEGTERABENRSSE

We assessed the objectivity, qualification and expertise
of the external valuer in relation to the investment in an
associate being valued.

BTSN EREE N — S AR EEIT A
NEOXEHAEHERNEEMEEREGE

We obtained and reviewed the valuation reports prepared
by the external valuer engaged by the Group and, with
the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
we assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology adopted by the external valuer with reference
to the prevailing accounting standards and the key
estimates and assumptions made, including comparable
market transactions, by comparing with available market
data.

RPIEERL BRI H S EEE RN (B BMAT AR B AV
BERS BEERMASYEGEERNBE T > MK
2T YT ERFHEIN Y E BT AN ERS
FREBRE WHBHBEENT SRS S EE
HRBIRGENER (BETLETHIERZ) 25 EE -

We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.
EATREGREHHBRETPEBBEERS D
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B LR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FISEETEIE @

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B EE BANBHUAHARESEHRETER

Investment in an associate — impairment (continued)
R—EHERGRE—HE (B)

The calculation of the recoverable amount of investment
in an associate is performed by the Group’s management.
The fair value less costs of disposal is assessed by
the Group based on valuation prepared by a qualified
external valuer which takes into account the recent market
transactions to determine any impairment required, and
involves significant judgement in selecting the comparable
market transactions.

EEEEEEaSFHEN —HAMEARKRENTREE
o SERRBEHSERINEMLEME AL ER ST
ERATEREENA ZGHEBERTHHNHIZR S
MREREHRERE BEEETEMEBRZHHEEM
H B A HER o

We identified the assessment of impairment of the
investment in an associate as a key audit matter because
it requires significant management judgement and
estimations in making assumptions and estimates that are
inherently uncertain and may be subject to management
bias.

B THER —EE AR ENREE T RS
FE AREHEERRREFEFEEEERMEEXRH
A MERRRETRGEETHEEN B

FEERINEEERRENTE-

The accounting policies, significant estimates and related
disclosures are included in note 2.4 Investments in an
associate and a joint venture, note 3 Impairment of
non-financial assets (other than gooadwill), and note 23
Investment in an associate to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

BHBE - EAXEERBARBRN AEBR SR
RG24 HE LB R—B & E R FEHRE ~HIsE39F
THEERE (BEFI) M35 &N 5 AR E
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BIZEEMR S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

IS FIREIE Mt E R

EAREFHEHHMENEE - HMENS
BHEREFHRANER EFNSREEEHH
WERRHEPIBZBENRS ©

RAHEEMBRENERI A REAME
B BT A HREEMENEREAER

AYEEEE AE o

MBI FESMBRENBTMS > HFIB
STRREBERMERN TEILBEDEEH
hEHNESRESMBRIAKFAEESB
BT ENBERFEERBEREUFZF
EERERBRIMAIBER - ERHMAEATH
TR NRFBFIDBEMBERNFEERER
B ZRPIREREZFE-EEHE F
RAEERAERS

ESENGRSMBRRARKENERE

BEARESFASEREEKREERESS
nE e BY B PR B 15 ¥R 15 22 Rl K B B 1 Bl R 51 5%
BEREMPSHNESMBRE THHER
BEEEMBRROREFERFSNE
RMERRE BRI BHIAIIEH &

Ho

ERFEEGMBRERE SARNEFEE
HEEEFECENE AEERBERT
REARBEEAMNER UAEREE
REREHER RIFERRDEFAERE
EBRBEWFILLE  Sff LA LN B B E
HMBRNENS R

ERARESEEZLZEGNHY TREEE
EEENMHREBER

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED /% ZEIFZERER AT 95



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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BIZEEMR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Law Kwok Kee.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

rEEER
FeEm

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

2023 2022
2023 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE ARETFT AER®BFIT
REVENUE N 5 4,180,814 4,349,690
Other income HMgA 6 1,125,475 1,046,285
Total operating revenue S PN e 5,306,289 5,395,975
Cost of sales THE A 7 (1,760,695) (1,850,950)
Employee expenses BERZ 8 (414,298) (454,586)
Depreciation and amortisation ITEE i i (990,072) (1,049,160)
Payments for short-term leases and R EREEBEEE
leases of low-value assets HEHRXS 10 (2,256) (6,728)
Other operating expenses HM&KE% 11 (1,041,769) (1,010,824)
Other gains and losses Hth a2 518 12 (84,876) 486,683
Operating profit S F 1,012,323 1,510,410
Finance costs BB A 13 (965,288) (1,050,310)
Share of profits and losses of: EEUTEHER -
a joint venture —BaghE - (592)
associate = /NE] (8,789) (17,990)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRIR AT A 38,246 441,518
Income tax expense FrigMpE 14 (116,442) (236,334)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR I (§548) FH (78,196) 205,184
Attributable to: DUR ALFELS :
Owners of the parent FBRABEGEEB A (96,112) 228,093
Non-controlling interests JERERE R R 17,916 (22,909)
(78,196) 205,184
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREEEREA ARG 16
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY s (518 &BH
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic HA
— For (loss)/profit for the year — A& (&18) /F)H8 RMB(1.87) cents RMB4.44 cents
AR#(Q.87)% AR H4.447
Diluted i3
— For (loss)/profit for the year — A (8518) /F)78 RMB(1.87) cents RMBA4.44 cents
AR#(Q.87)% AR 4.447
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEETHEWER

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFIT
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR I (§548) FH (78,196) 205,184
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hth2EkEE
Defined benefit retirement plans REBKEFIETE 64 688
Exchange differences on translation of I EBMEELENER ZLE
foreign operations (21,211) (52,506)
Other comprehensive loss that will not be reclassified MU & HIEGAZEFHDEE
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: BmWEMEEEE
Changes in fair value on equity investments IBEEAURAEESEZERER
designated at fair value through other st AHMEmEmIERN
comprehensive income BonRENARERED (290,540) (168,259)
Income tax effect TS & 72,632 42 067
Gains on property revaluation MESHWER - 118,136
Income tax effect Frigi e & - (29,534)
(217,908) (87,590)
Net other comprehensive loss that DB rEEMDEE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in BRI EMEEmEEIEFEE
subsequent periods (217,908) (87,590)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FERREHMEEEE
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (239,055) (89,408)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FEZ2E (#518) Wm4eE
FOR THE YEAR (317,251) 115,776
Attributable to: MR AL REfS
Owners of the parent BREIERFEA (333,286) 114,104
Non-controlling interests IFIER R R T 16,035 1,672
(317,251) 115,776
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MBI

31 December 2023
2023%F12H31H

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
12H31H 12H831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T ARBFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEFRE KRB 17 7,554,770 7,928,703
Investment properties KB 18 21,806,780 21,480,749
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19(a) 4,972,486 5,507,352
Goodwill mE 20 1,260,531 1,270,349
Other intangible assets Hithm & E 21 27,778 32,595
Investment in a joint venture R—EaEtERSE 22 - -
Investment in an associate R—REHEARKRE 23 153,440 362,833
Equity investments designated EEAURABESZEEE
at fair value through other EBEETAEMEEWEDN
comprehensive income HRKE 24 756,773 1,101,520
Financial assets at fair value through ManBEst2EHEEHTA
profit or loss Bl EmEE 24 9,650 9,654
Prepayments SEANE S 29 116,099 115,042
Deferred tax assets RERIBEEE 25 852,983 708,081
Total non-current assets ERENEELERE 37,511,290 38,516,878
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories =78 26 289,292 352,487
Completed properties held for sale REGEEEHYE 1,856,508 2,170,243
Properties under development BRI 27 5,792,874 5,486,731
Financial assets at fair value through ManBEstEEEEHTA
profit or loss BmiEREE 24 21,826 35,425
Trade and bills receivables FEW B ZRIE R 2 28 26,810 28,331
Prepayments, other receivables and FEATFUIE ~ EfthERRIE &
other assets Hh&E 29 2,576,417 2,721,783
Pledged deposits BIERER 30 245,519 368,728
Cash and cash equivalents BEKRIREHEY 30 722,822 556,293
Total current assets BB EARRE 11,532,068 11,720,021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MBRIRR

31 December 2023
2023%F12H31H

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
12H31H 12831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% AR¥TT ANREF T
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade and bills payables FEE S NIEKREE 31 1,458,160 1,600,620
Contract liabilities, deposits received, EREE BWEE
accruals and other payables FEST & A R EMEI=IA 32 8,635,553 8,467,500
Interest-bearing bank loans and FHEBITERREMMER
other borrowings 33 6,938,555 6,902,772
Lease liabilities HEa®E 19(b) 206,821 318,115
Income tax payable FEBIFRISHR 434,998 351,936
Dividend payable FE{TRR 2 465 26,078
Total current liabilities BB BAEEE 17,764,552 17,667,021
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaERE (6,232,484) (5,947,000)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBARE
LIABILITIES 31,278,806 32,569,878
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MEBRIRR

31 December 2023
2023%F12H31H

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
20234 20224
12H31H 12831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE ARETFT AEETF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERIMEE
Interest-bearing bank loans and FEIRITER R EMMER
other borrowings 33 4,858,605 5,961,510
Lease liabilities HEaR 19(b) 1,471,041 1,807,755
Deferred tax liabilities R IBEE 25 4,302,304 4,340,089
Other long-term payables HihEAAEI B 32 4,720,243 4,116,172
Provision for retirement benefits BRIRER B 1E 34 4,123 6,261
Total non-current liabilities IEREN B [EAREE 15,356,316 16,231,787
Net assets BEEFRE 15,922,490 16,338,091
EQUITY Uiy
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &A T #EE1TH AL
Issued capital BETRA 35 460,153 460,153
Other reserves HiEE 36 12,982,811 13,364,051
13,442,964 13,824,204
Non-controlling interests JEIERR AR Bt T 2,479,526 2,513,887
Total equity W 4B %E 15,922,490 16,338,091

Huang Mao Ru
=340
Director

EF

Lu Xiao Juan
E/NE
Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEmEER

Year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12A31H LFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRARGREARERR
Disposal
of partial
interestin a
Acquistion  subsidiary Defined
Share  ofnon- without Capital Statutory Asset beneft ~ Exchange Non-
Issued  premium  controling losing redemption Contriouted ~ surplus  revaluation  refirement  fluctuation  Retained controling Total
capital  account  interests control reserve surplus reserve reserve’ plans reserve profits Total interests equity
HE—R
il V]
W% BARE
BET B 2R AEXE  E5EE EERE  BEEBRE  REBK  HERE R
Bx  RBR REER AR HBE BERR AR G B HBE 2EEA ait REED BB
RMB'000  RMBOO0 RMB000 RMB'0O0 RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMBO00 RMB000  RMB'0O0 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR A\RETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR A\RETR
At1 January 2022 R2022%1818 460,153 1,630,539 (82,386) 295477 (459,251) 28009 1013895 4,700,897 (466) 5031 6,122,764 13715262 2,551,741 16,267,003
Proft for the year KRS - - - - - - - - - - 208008 20809 (2909 205,184
Other comprehensive income for the year: REEMRENG
Changes in fair value of equity investments 5 AUAAEEFEE
designated at fair veue through ofher HARMRENE
comprehensive income, before tax WAREE
28 (1380 - - - - - - - (180557) - - - (180557) 12298 (168259)
Disposal of equity investments designated at ~ HiERETANALBEHB
fair velue through other comprehensive BE Ht2E
income (note 24) WRIERRE (i) - - - - - - - 243866 - - (043860) - - -
Exchange diferences on translation of ENEBAEELN
foreign operations ERER - - - - - - - - - (52,508 - (5250 - (52506
Defined beneft retirement plans RERERHHE - - - - - - - - 570 - - 570 118 688
Revaluation gains on properties upon ransfer 1% BRRREBRE
fom property, plant and equipment to REMENMEELNE
nvestment properties, before tax (330 - - - - - - - 97816 - - - 9816 030 11813%
Tax effect of components of other Et2ERRARSAH
comprehensive income hETE - - - - - - - 20,688 - - - 20688 8,155 12533
Share of other comprehensive income of HMEBEATNEMRENE
an associate - - - - - - - (9719 - - 9719 - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FERENERE - - - - - - - 172,004 50 (52506 (6054 114,104 1672 115776
Cash compensation to non-controling interests 3R fERIR SR - - - - - (iR - - - - - B8 5162 -
Proft appropriated to reserve BERENIE - - - - - - B4R - - - ) - - -
Dividend paid by a subsidiary to —ENEAD R AR R
non-controling shareholders REBRE - - - - - - - - - - - - (44688 (4489
31 Decemter 202 B8 W01 TGS RSB 24T WS BT 107BST ASIT 0¥ U6ATS 60517 1384200 2513887 16336091
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

=L

HEEHR

n\7|_\
Year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12831 HILFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BORRE S AR
Disposal
of partial
interestina
Acquisition  subsidiary Defined
Share of non- without  Capital Statutory Asset  hbenefit Exchange Non-
Issued  premium controlling losing redemption Contributed  surplus revaluation retirement fluctuation  Retained controlling
capital  account interests control  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve’ plans  reserve profits Total interests
-
HEAT
WE BoER
B&f Ry K2R WE%E EFER teRk BEEf RERA HERD F[320
ke BER  RREE  26E B B4ER A i BHE B SEEN ait  REEE EE4E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR ABBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETn ARETR ABETR ARBTR ARBTR ABRTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At1 January 2023 1202351518 460,153 1,630,539*  (62,386) 295477 (459,251) 22,847 1,078,847* 4,872,991 104+ (46,875 6,051,758 13,824,204 2,513,887 16,338,091
Profit for the year KEHE - - - - - - - - - - (%6112 (96,112 17916  (78,196)
QOther comprehensive income for the year: KEEMZENE
Changes in fair value of equity investments ETANALBEHE
designated at fair value through other BEESHHAEM2E
comprenensive income, before tax WENEEEBHAL
EEEE (305 = = = = - - - (288,019 - - - (88018 (2522  (290,540)
Disposal of equity investments designated at ~ HEREANALEER
fair value through other comprehensive HERE#EHHA
income (note 24) H2ENENES
RE (k) - - - - - - - 8N - - BN - - -
Exchange differences on translation of BN EBBEEEN
foreign operations EQER - - - - - - - - - &2 - (2121) - a21)
Defined benefit retirement plans RERMETHE - - - - - - - - 53 - - 53 1 64
Revaluation gains on properties upon transfer Y% MR R EER
from property, plant and equipment to TRENENESE
investment propertes, before tax I (e - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Tax effect of components of other Hih2EREAREAN
comprehensive income hrye - - - - - - - 72,002 - - - 72,002 630 72,632
Share of other comprehensive income of MMEEEATMENRE
an associate Wi = = = o o o o o o o o o - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FER2ENGLE - - - - - - - (207,105 53 (21211 (105023 (333,280) 16,035  (317,251)
Final 2022 divicends declared ER0RELERE - - - - - - - - - - (41954 (47,954 - (47,954
Profit appropriated to reserve B ENRE - - - - - - 20416 - - - (20416) - - -
Dividend paid by subsidiaries to WEAIRELERRE
non-controling shareholders BERANRE - - - - - - - - - - - - (50,396)  (50,396)
At 31 December 2023 12028E128318 460,153 1,630,539*  (82,386)  295477* (459,251) 22,847 1,099,262" 4,665,886* 157" (68,086)" 5,878,365* 13442964 2,479,526 15922490

# The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from property, plant and #
equipment to investment properties carried at fair value and changes in fair value of
equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of *

RMB12,982,811,000 (2022: RMB13,364,051,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REREMER

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR%T T ARBEFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHELENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PRI AIF S 38,246 441,518
Adjustments for: MTEIEHE .
Interest income FE WA 6 (8,717) (9,779)
Depreciation and amortisation of MZE~BRRE M AR B M
property, plant and equipment and BB EZITE RS
other intangible assets 500,119 561,736
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 19 489,954 487,424
Gain on deemed disposal of shares BRIEHE—MBE QB RKG
in an associate Z W= 12 - (328,207)
Foreign exchange losses, net SN ESIERER 12 3,741 2,262
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 R IERIE 11 461 1,378
Impairment of investment in an associate 7 — B A TR E RE 12 200,604 24,382
Impairment of other receivables HhfEWFRIERE 11 59,462 79,590
Impairment of goodwill EESREAE] 12 9,818 51,903
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FEUR BR B 75 FIBRIE.,
amounts due from related parties CRi{E#[E) 11 212 (1,439
Impairment of completed properties FERFECERYERE
held for sale 11 9,112 8,468
Losses/(gains) on disposal of HELEMEN
investment properties w518 () 12 1,375 (196,072)
Losses on disposal of items of property, HEYE -BMEKRRZREIER
plant and equipment BIEs 8 12 436 299
Losses on disposal of financial assets HEURAREBEFZA
at fair value through profit or loss HE st ABmH
TRMEEBE 12 1,802 1,449
Dividend income from financial assets KEUAREESEZR
at fair value through profit or loss HEFz ABmH
ETMBEEMNREWRA 12 (1,313) (2,309)
Fair value gains on investment properties & BN A BEEWE 12 (177,841) (114,703)
Fair value losses/(gains) on URREBEFTEBHES)
financial assets at fair value FFABENEREEN
through profit or loss NABEEBER &) 12 1,337 (7,205)
Dividend income from equity investments 3§E &MU AR EEER
designated at fair value through other HEF st AEM2Emka
comprehensive income HWHERKERERA 12 (4,836) (4,798)
Finance costs RRE RS 13 965,288 1,050,310
Share of losses of an associate DMEEE AT AR 8,789 17,990
Share of loss of a joint venture pME—EEERERSIE - 592
2,098,049 2,064,789
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n\7|-\ Eﬁr%;ﬁg

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

2023 2022

20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AREFT AR®FT

Decrease in completed properties held  FHEGE D EYI =R

for sale 308,583 462,273
Additions of properties under development?’fiﬁ‘?% ESEh (388,314) (666,471)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD GG 63,195 (18,513)
Provision for retirement benefits paid BRI EN G 34 (355) (76)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and Fguﬁﬁ%ﬂl@&xﬁ%

bills receivables B (8 h0) 1,060 (15,565)
Increase in prepayments and hiEl ﬁ 1A Ry B fth FE W R IE 18 0

other receivables (29,241) (158,962)
Decrease in trade and bills payables B B 5 RIEREE R LD (142,460) (96,220)
Decrease in contract liabilities, deposits & BE - BWitE FEstER

received, accruals and other payables e B FEAT =R IE R D (284,918) (138,261)

Cash generated from operations KEMBIRE 1,625,599 1,432,994
Interest received BFE 3,596 5,606
PRC tax paid 2R IE (98,157) (189,067)
Net cash flows from operating activities & & EHELERIRESREFEE 1,531,038 1,249,533
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

:-\7r\ EE@/}ILE%E

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBEFIT
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING HRRERBEEN
ACTIVITIES RERE
Purchase of items of property, BEYE -BEAREER
plant and equipment (86,866) (123,022)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME BERKEEE
property, plant and equipment Frig=1E 1,561 20,342
Purchase of financial assets at fair value E%,ab(’&ftfaﬁ?r%ﬁﬁ@@]
through profit or loss FTABTZHNEMEE (135,989) (21,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEMA R BETE B HEH)
at fair value through profit or loss FABENEMEERNS
=g 148,225 395,679
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYEMENIE
investment properties 249,528 166,281
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEEEAULAREESZR
investments designated at fair value HEB s AEMEEmIGEER
through other comprehensive income R EENIE 44,927 537,233
Purchase of other intangible assets EEHMELESE (111) (56)
Dividend paid by subsidiaries to (YNSRI E] 22455
non-controlling shareholders REZANERE (72,204) (44,688)
Dividend received from financial assets ~ REMUAABETEEEED)
at fair value through profit or loss FABGENEREERE 985 1,752
Dividend received from equity investments 2R BIIEE AU AR BESER
designated at fair value through other HEs) quJ\Eﬂﬂi EEaE
comprehensive income HERRERE 4,836 4,798
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BIRFIRTTEIURL (80
bank deposits 123,209 (221,614)
Net cash flows from investing activites 2R B R E B ELER
HEne$ea 278,101 715,705
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

2023 2022
20235 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B &5 ARETT AE®BFIT
CASH FLOWS USED IN ARRMEEHNRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings MIBIRITERREMER 6,631,399 5,545,619
Repayment of bank loans and BEBITERREMER
other borrowings (7,698,521) (6,996,2006)
Interest paid BAHFE (669,319) (748,215)
Principal and interest elements of HERBEARENNEEHD
lease payments 19(b) (436,967) (428,193)
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REBZWBRATNER 1,194,630 1,401,000
Repayment of loans from fellow BERRNBABINER
subsidiaries (590,929) (1,325,300)
Final dividend paid BRI E (47,954) -
Net cash flows used in financing activities AREEEMNIRE RSP EE (1,617,661) (2,551,295)
NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH H&KIE&ZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R R RE 191,478 (586,057)
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREBHNTE  FEE
changes, net (24,949) (54,766)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#R&&KBEEEEY
of year 556,293 1,197,116
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S XIBEEKIASZEY
END OF YEAR 722,822 556,293
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERREEBYERIH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances BE KIRTHE R 30 722,822 556,293
Cash and cash equivalents as stated REMERMERT K
in the statement of cash flows B&EEBY 722,822 556,293

108 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %% Bl R 5 RA T

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 FE#R &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Maoye International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 8 August 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised). The Company’s registered office address has been
changed to P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West
Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman Islands with effect
from 1 October 2016 and the head office and principal place of
business of the Company is located at 38/F Tower A, World Finance
Centre, 4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the operation
and management of department stores and property development in
Chinese Mainland.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company are Maoye
Department Store Investment Limited and MOY International
Holdings Limited, respectively, which were incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

RNEIREEER

RERBZERERRAR (I8 B
2007F8HSHITHEEEREHEE
EERIE22ZAE)E (1961 FF350 %
ZoUREHRESTEALE) ML
BERRBREXARB] AR E Z5FM
MERMITBEEARP.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West
Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands > B20165FE1081H 4%
MoMARNB R ER R EEEEMEL
UL pAFREE AR EFE (THREL) FIIE
7 51 FR 400357 tH 57 <& Rl D ARES8HE © 74X
REVREMBAR RBER) =2
RABEAKERSEEEEKEREIEAEY

BEERA ARBANEEERARN &
BIERABI DR RRIIN R BET R B
EmIMaoye Department Store Investment
Limited¥IMQY International Holdings
Limited ¢

BERMBARNER
AATEERMBEABBFEAT !

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up share/ equity attributable

Percentage of

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SEMAIL s AR BETRERE FRREMGES
AERiE AMRE R A RIAEE/ZEMEE Bt TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# &
% %
Maoye Department Store Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$2/US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
REREERERAT 11 September 2007 2%7T,/50,0002 7 RETR
EBMRREE
200798118
Maoye Department Stores (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Maoye China’) 7 December 1993 100,000 7T REER
X¥BE (hE) BRAE (REFRE) &)
1993E1287H
Zhongzhao Investment Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Zhongzhao’) 28 October 1997 AR 50,000,000 REZR
FREEEERR AT (k) e/ RE AR
1997410828H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION REREEER @

(continued)
BRMBATNER @
KRB EEMBATWERBNOT | (@

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Comgany Principal activities
sEMAIL/ s R ERIRME FRIEERD i
NGRS AERE £t R RIVEE/ EMES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Dahua Investment (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100/HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
RERE (RE) BRAT 28 May 2008 100%7%,//10,000%7T REER
B
2008¢5H 28H
Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland US$445,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha’) 31 January 1996 445,000,000 7T and operation of
FlREmEERAD (FEIF hE/hE AR department stores
1996518318 RERRREEREE
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store Shennan PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. 20 April 2000 AE 1,000,000 _ store
AmkEEERRERAT I/ REARE KEBERE
2000445208
Shenzhen Depar’[ment Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB536,869,782 - 82.8  Operation of a department
FREEERRAT 20 April 2000 AN #536,869,7827T _ store
hE,/REARE KEBEE
200054 F 208
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store Huagiangbei ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. 31 March 2003 AE1,000,0007% store
AT KERRERLTBERA hE,/REIARE B
200343531H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERTRBRE FATEMEES
GIET AfREX MR RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Shenzhen Maoye Oriental Times Department PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,200,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Store Co., Ltd. 8 August 2005 AR #1,200,0007¢ store
AbRERAHFABEBRAT" e,/ REARE KEBEE
20058H8H
Zhuhai City Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB4,800,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
HETXEBERRAT" 24 August 20071 A E4,800,0007C store
B/ RE AR KEBEE
200148H24H
Zhuhai Jiarun Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB2,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
hEREREBRAT 17 December 2013 AE#2,000,0007 store
e,/ RE AR KEEER
2013E128178
Chongaing Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB30,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
EBFRXBEEERRT” 27 August 2004 AR #30,000,0007T store
e,/ REARE KEBEE
20044F8H27H
Taiyuan Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,005,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
ARREGEBRAT 11 April 2008 AE#1,005,000,0007 store
hE/REA R KEBEE
2008F48118
Chonggqing Baifule Business and Commerce PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB102,481,500 - 82.8  Operation of a supermarket
Co., Ltd. 16 September 2008 AE#102,481,5007T KLgidm
EEEREEERRAT" e,/ RE AR
200895168
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT R R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEEH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRBRE FAREMGEES
NGRS AERE £t R RIVEE/ EMES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Shanxi Maoye Land and Real Estate PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (‘Shanxi Real Estate”) 18 November 2008 AR 100,000,000 BHMELE
URAREENEHEREFRAT hE,/REARE
(MuAEEME) 20085115188
Changzhou Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd.  PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
BENXEREBRAD" 21 May 2009 AE#5,000,0007 store
hE,/ REIARE KEBEE
200945521A
Shenzhen Maolehui-commmerce Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 - 98  Operation of a department
MIFELEEFHHEREE AT 26 July 2019 A 15,000,0007 store
I,/ REARE KEBERE
201978268
Shenyang Maoye Times Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB8,000,000 - 100  Property development
ERRERREEERAT" 24 September 2007 A E#:8,000,0007% BHERRE
hE,/REARE
200749H24R
Shenzhen Municipal Maoye Advertisement PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB2,000,000 - 100 Provision of advertising
Co., Ltd. 25 December 2002 AE#2,000,0007% services
AT REREERAT hE,/REIARE REEERS
2002412825
Taizhou First Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB18,950,000 - 80.57  Operation of a department
TNE-BRBEERABRAT 20 May 1994 AR 1#18,950,0007T store
I,/ REARE KEBERE
1994855204
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AERERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERTRBRE FATEMEES
GIET AfREX MR RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Wuxi Yibai Property Limited PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB202,500,000 - 90  Property development
EHRAEXERRT” 15 April 2008 AR #202,500,0007 BHELR
e,/ REARE
2008&F4F 158
Shenyang Maoye Business Service Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB155,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
ERREBERBERAR 13 May 2010 A #155,000,0007 store
e,/ REARE KEBEE
201058138
Jinzhou Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland HK$193,000,000 - 100  Property development
FNEEEXBRAT 9 July 2010 193,000,000 7T BHELR
e,/ RE AR
201067598
Baoding Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
(‘Baoding Maoye”) 20 September 2010 AE#5,000,0007¢ store
REXERRARAR (MREREBE) " e,/ REARE KEBEE
2010898208
Huaian Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB206,000,000 - 100  Property development
EZREBXBERRT" 30 September 2010 A E206,000,00070 BHELR
e/ RE AR
20104F9F30A
Shandong Zibo Maoye Department Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB143,887,180 - 80  Operation of a department
LR EEEERERNERAT 7 January 1999 AE143,887,1807T store
I,/ REIARE KEEER
1999F137H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

1. REIREEEH @

ERMBARNER (@
FRABEZMBABBFEUT : (8

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRBRE FAREMGEES
G AfREX MR RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Baoding Maoye Land and Real Estate PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 18 December 2006 AR #50,000,0007T BHMELE
(‘Baoding Land and Real Estate’) I/ RElARE
REXERMEREBRAT 20065125188
(MRERMERE)
Linyi Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
BrXEaEERAF" 3 November 2010 AR #5,000,0007¢ store
hE,/REARE KEBEE
2010%11H3A
Taizhou Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland HK$524,800,000 - 100  Property development
(“Taizhou Property’) 8 November 2010 524,800,0007 70 BHELE
FMNREEEBRAT (RMRE) " e/ REA R
2010411588
Hong Kong Maoye Department Store PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB64,643,046 - 70 Operation of a department
(Yangzhou) Co., Ltd. 16 May 1996 AE64,643,0467T store
EARERE BN BRAT" I,/ REARE KEBERE
1996555 16H
Zibo Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB81,800,000 - 80  Operation of department
MEREBEERAT” 25 June 1994 AR 81,800,0007T stores and supermarket
I,/ RElARE chain stores
1994568258 KeraaEREHED
Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,731,982,546 - 82.8  Investment holding and
(‘Maoye Commercial’) 31 December 1993 ANE#1,731,982,5467T operation of department
KEBERNERAS (XEHE))" hE,/REIARE stores
1993£12H31H RERRREEREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERTRBRE FATEMEES
AE%TE AERE £t R RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Chengdu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB48,000,000 - 79.35  Investment holding
HHREEXBRAT 18 March 1998 AR #48,000,0007T REER
e,/ REARE
1998E3H18H
Chengshang Group Nanchong Maoye PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB20,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. (‘Nanchong Maoye”) 20 November 2001 AE20,000,0007T store
REEERRXEREERAT e,/ B AR KEBEE
(EREE)" 20014118208
Nanchong Zefu Trade Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB21,500,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
BRERHERRAR" 5 November 2014 AR#21,500,0007 store
e,/ REARE KEEER
2014511850
Nanchong Zhimei Trade Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB3,800,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
BRATEBHEERAT” 17 November 2014 AE 3,800,000 store
e,/ REARE KEBEE
2014118170
Chengshang Group Holdings Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,378,417,349 - 82.8  Investment holding
(‘Chengshang Group’) 9 March 1998 AE#1,378,417,3497 REZR
REEEERERAR (HEEE) e,/ REARE
19984F359H
Leshan E'mei Shan Chengshang PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB33,730,000 - 66.24  Operation of a hotel and
Phoenix Co., Ltd. 11 March 1997 ARE33,730,0007T provision of ancillary
hEBLEEERBEENERAT" RE/RE AR senvices
1997438 11H BERERRMHEERS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023

HZFE2023F12831HIEFE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEAIREREH @
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BB ABRER (@
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KABEEMBABINEBOT © (@
(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Comgany Principal activities
sEMAIL/ s R ERIRME FRIEERD i
G AERE £t R RIVEE/ EMES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Chengdu People’s Department Store PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
\ (Group) Mianyang Co., Ltd. 13 September 2007 AR 5,000,0007¢ _ store
REARES EE) BHERAT" hE,/REARE KEBEE
200749F13A
Chengdu Group Mianyang Department PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Store Co., Ltd. 3 February 2015 AE#5,000,0007% ~ store
REERRBXEBEERAT I,/ REIARE KEBEE
2015%2H3H
Chengshang Group Chengdu People’s PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB20,000,000 - 82.8  Investment holding and
Bepartmem Stori Co., Ltd. 21 August 2009 AR #20,000,0007% operation of department
REERARTARBAERAT hE/ B stores
2009F8A21H REZRREEEEE
Heze Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 - 74,52 Operation of a department
HERFRERRAT" 29 December 2008 AR #5,000,0007T _store
hE,/REARE KEBEE
2008 12H29H
Jiangsu Maoye Department Stores PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB325,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
IBREDEERAT 9 May 2012 AR 325,000,000 store
hE,/REIARE KEBEE
20124F559H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AERERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERTRBRE FATEMEES
GIET AERE £t R RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Baotou Maoye Dongzheng Real Estate PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 26 October 2011 AR 10,000,000 BHELE
(‘Baotou Maoye Dongzheng’) HE,/RE AR
BEDXEREFMEREERAT 201145108268
(BERERE) "
Laiwu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB20,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
REREEXBRAT” 25 December 2012 AR #20,000,0007T store
e,/ REARE KEBEE
201212H25H
Shenzhen Maoye Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB545,465,800 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Shenzhen Maoye Investment’) 24 August 2012 AR #545,465,8007T REZR
R RERERRBRAT hEl,/ REARE
(FRNEERE) 20124F8 248
Shenyang Anli Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB133,000,000 - 100  Investment holding and
("Shenyang Anli’) 4 August 2005 AR #133,000,0007¢ property management
BERZUEEREEREMALT I,/ REIARE RERREMEER
(FERZL) 2005F8A4H
Shenyang Maoye Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 99  Hotel business
BRREBREERAT 30 August 2007 AR 10,000,000 BIEER
e,/ REARE
200748H 308
Liaoning Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB78,000,000 - 99.94  Investment holding and
("Liaoning Logistics”) 12 May 2003 AE78,000,0007T property development
EEMRARAD (EEWR) hEl,/ REARE RERREEHAELR
2003555128
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AERERER @

(continued)
BRMBATNER @
KABEEMBABINEBOT © (@

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRBRE FAREMGEES
G AfREX MR RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Shenyang Zhanye Property Co., Ltd. (‘Zhanye”) ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB245,000,000 - 5094 Property development
BRREEHNERAS (BE) 2 September 1999 A 1245,000,0007¢ BHELR
RE,/REARE
199959F2H
Shandong Weizhou Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 - 100  Property development
RN EZRRAT 11 August 2009 A 50,000,00070 BHEERE
B/ REA R
2009F8A11H
Qinhuangdao Maoye Real Estate PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB515,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 4 January 2012 AR 515,000,000 BHEERE
REBKERMEREERAG e,/ REARE
201251848
Qinghuangdao Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB8,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
FEERXEXRHEREZBERAT 19 May 2016 A E%8,000,0007C and operation of a
i,/ RElARE department store
2016458198 BHEZRREEREE
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Real Estate PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB135,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 8 August 2000 AR 135,000,000 BHELE
FEBMEREMAEREBRAT B/ REARE
2000£8A8H
Zibo Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB20,000,000 - 100  Property development
HEREEEBRAT 29 November 2013 AR 20,000,000 EMEXE
e,/ REARE
2013E11829H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR RMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERTRBRE FATEMEES
GIET AERE £t R RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Qinhuangdao Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB342,301,588 - 100  Operation of a department
ZEERXBEERRT" 26 June 2001 AR 1342,301,5887T store
e,/ REARE KEBEE
200165268
Qinhuangdao Maoye Property PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 - 100 Property leasing
Management Co., Ltd. 26 June 2001 AR 5,000,000 MERE
REBRENERFBRAT B/ REA R
2001465268
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Business PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB140,000,000 - 100  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 14 April 2001 AR 1140,000,0007T MEEE
FERBMERHEERAEREFA AT e,/ RE AR
200148148
Anhui Guorun Investment and PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB294,330,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Development Co., Ltd. (*Anhui Guorun’) 4 QOctober 1998 A 294,330,0007T property development
ZHEBREEREERAT (RHEE) - e,/ REARE REERKRENEER
1998E10F4H
Chuzhou Maoye Investment and PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB70,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 25 April 2003 AR 70,000,000 BHEEE
PNREREERERAT B/ REA R
2003545250
Shenzhen Maoye Innovation Service Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Software and information
MR EEFREERA G 22 September 2021 AR 10,000,0007T technology
e,/ REIARE B R M5 B R
202198228
Wuhu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB110,000,000 - 100  Property development
BARXEXBRRT” 16 May 2002 AR 110,000,0007¢ BHELR
e,/ REARE
200258168
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEEH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRBRE FAREMGEES
G AfREX MR RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Huainan Maoye Investment and PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB31,600,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 26 March 2002 AE31,600,00070 BHELR
REREREERARAT" hE,/REARE
20024E3F26H
Chengdu Maoye Renhe Spring Department PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB40,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Store Co., Ltd. (‘Chengdu Renhe Spring”) 29 October 1997 AE#40,000,0007T store
BT XECNERBEERAT hE,/REIARE KEBEE
(TR #REX) 1997£10829H
Chengdu Maoye Qingyang District Renhe PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB185,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Spring Department Store Limited 29 November 2007 AR 185,000,0007T store
(‘Chengdu Qingyang Renhe Spring’) hE,/ hEARE RETER
BT EFRRECHERGERRAT 2007411 829R
(RBEECHNER)
Inner Mongolia Maoye Department Store PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB170,000,000 - 70.38  Investment holding
(Group) Co., Limited 12 June 2002 AE#170,000,0007T and operation of a
NELREDE (BE) ERAF" hE,/ HEARE department store
2002668128 REZRREEEEE
Inner Mongolia Maoye Shopping Plaza PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB140,000,000 - 70,38 Operation of a department
Co., Limited 15 January 2008 AR #140,000,00075 store
REOREBNESBRAT" hE,/RE AR KEBEE
2008518150
Inner Mongolia Maoye Commercial PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 70.38  Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 24 March 2015 AE10,000,0007% store
REOREBEEBRRAET" hE,/REIARE KEBEE
20155F3A248
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERTRBRE FATEMEES
GIET AfREX MR RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Baotou Maoye Victory Business PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 14 November 2019 AR %10,000,0007T store
AEMREESHBEEERFRAT" e,/ REARE SN
20195115 14H
Baotou Maoye Department Store Co., Limited PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 70.38  Operation of a department
DEMRERERRAT" 14 April 2009 AE#10,000,0007 store
hE/REA R KEpaE
200948148
Baotou Maoye Commercial PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB3,000,000 - 70.38  Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 28 October 2013 AE3,000,0007T store
AEMREHEERBRAT e,/ REARE KEEER
2013108280
Chengdu Maoye Real Estate Management PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
Co., Ltd. 18 January 2022 AE1,000,0007C BHELR
RBXEFHEEEBRAT e,/ B AR
2022615180
Hohhot Maoye Real Estate PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB30,000,000 - 70.38  Property development
Development Co., Limited 29 November 2001 AR 30,000,000 BHEEE
WSS REREREERAT B/ RE AR
20014115290
Hohhot Victory Property Management LLC PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB500,000 - 70.38  Property leasing
R ES AL ERTERSE AT 25 January 2008 AR #500,0007¢ MERE
e,/ RE AR
2008415250
Maoye Digital Intelligence Information PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 98  Investment holding
Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Limited 23 January 2017 AR #10,000,0007 REER
REHBHAEERM (RY) BRAT hE /AR
2017815238
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEEH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRBRE FAREMGEES
NGRS AERE £t R RIVEE/ EMES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Baotou Maoye Property Co., Limited PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Property management
FEREEXBRAT” 20 September 2019 AR 10,000,007 MEEE
hE,/REARE
201959H20H
Shenzhen Maoye Technology Retails Co., Limited  PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Investment holding
AIEERETERRAT 16 December 2019 AR #10,000,0007T REER
hE,/REIARE
20195128168
Chengdu Maoye Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Hotel business
RBXEEERERAT" 12 November 2019 AR #10,000,0007 BEER
I,/ REARE
2019118128
Chengdu Maoye Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB600,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
RBXERERRAD" 22 August 2011 AR 600,000,0007% BHAELRE
hE,/ REARE
201148H22H
Hefei Yerun Trade Co., Limited PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB20,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
BREBEEERAT" 04 September 1998 AR #20,000,0007T REER
hE,/REIARE
1998595 4H
Wuhu Maoye Agricultural and Sideline PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB22,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Products Market Co., Limited 10 June 2006 AE#22,000,0007T KEEKR
RARERAERTABRAT” I,/ REARE
2006565 108
Maoye Investment Jiangsu Co., Limited PRC/Chinese Mainland USD30,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
XERBIHARAD" 10 August 2022 30,000,000%7¢ REER
R/ REIARE
20228 10A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR RMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (8

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Comp_any Principal activities
EMAL /MR BEARMR F2TRfEL ‘
GIET AfREX MR RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Maoye (Jiangsu) Commercial Management PRC/Chinese Mainland USD30,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd 14 December 2022 30,000,000%7¢ REER
X% (18 BEEEREBRAT" R/ REARE
2022E12F 14H
Chengdu Shuangliu Maoye Times PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB100,000 - 100 Investment holding
Commercial Management Co., Limited 16 January 2023 AR 100,000z BEER
BB RRERAEEERERAT ]/ FEARE
2023515168
Baotou Maoye Tiandi business PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB100,000 - 100 Investment holding
‘management Co., Limited 17 November 2023 AR #100,0007 REER
AEMRERMBEERERAT ]/ FEIARE
2023E11817H
* A subsidiary with its A shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in the * —REDPEHLBEHERX ST EHRAKRKE
PRC NE)
**  Companies registered as limited liability companies under PRC law = REFEEEIMABRESEATNAT

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2, TR
21 RUEAE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
comprise standards and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and International Accounting
Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee Interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), and equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI") which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB6,232,484,000. The Group’s ability to repay its
debts when they fall due relies heavily on its future operating cash
flows and its ability to renew the bank loans and other borrowings.
The directors have carefully assessed the Group’s liquidity position
having taken into account:

(1) the Group’s expected cash inflows from operating activities in
2024;

(2) the bank borrowings that will expire during the next 12 months,
which the directors of the Company are confident that could be
renewed upon expiration based on the Group’s past experience
and credit standing; and

(8) RMB1,778,563,000 and RMB734,588,000 of current liabilities
as at 31 December 2023 are contract liabilities and deposits
received in nature of which the Group will not be expecting any
cash outflow.

The directors of the Company believe that the Group has adequate
resources to continue operation for the foreseeable future of not less
than 12 months from the end of the reporting year. The directors of
the Company therefore are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

2. E5tHER @®
21 RREE @

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023

HZFE2023F12831HIEFE
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. IR @
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 21 RNEE @)
Basis of consolidation (continued) SHEE @
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if WEBRIERER XA = 181
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or EN—ERZEHIREE AEEGS
more of the three elements of control described above. A change M ERE TR E A
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is EHIENNB AR ERE EEREEE
accounted for as an equity transaction. mRXH AR
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the EAREEERENE QDTS %
related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling AIAREEBRIEEIDEBEE (81D
interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the B) BB EAFEEEER R IR R
fair value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus or B TEIEARENREN AR
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously BERIANEGETEENEGRAR
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or Ao AR AHEMEE WA E
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would HENROESDERAEEEERHE
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets R EEREEMEEREEEEME
or liabilities. DEEEGBEERE P
2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 I BENET RIEE
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for the AEBEEAFEMBRERERERIU
first time for the current year's financial statements. T R ARG T B PR B R iR 5 2E Bl o
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts PR SR S 2R RS54
B179%
Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies PR st 2R HEEE ST
IFRS Practice Statement 2 FE15% K EPR RS 75
WEERE
B2
(CREN)
Amendments to I1AS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates PR s 2ER| B 55T E S
F8%R (1BFT )
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and PR st 2ER] REBE—XZ8
Liabilities arising from a Single F1258 (BF ] BEMEEHN
Transaction MERIRERRIE
Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two EilES=a w el BRI U LS
Model Rules F129% (BET4A) —SHXMEmE

A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. The Group has disclosed the material accounting
policy information in note 2 to the financial statements. The
amendments did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. Since the Group’s approach and policy align with the
amendments, the amendments had no impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below: (continued)

(©

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the scope
of the initial recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to
recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable
profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. Prior to the initial
application of these amendments, the Group did not apply
the initial recognition exception and the Group had recognised
a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions which are consistent with the
requirement of these amendments, therefore, the amendments
did not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception from
the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from
the implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.
The amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for
the affected entities to help users of the financial statements
better understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes, including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar
Two income taxes separately in the periods when Pillar
Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of known or
reasonably estimable information of their exposure to Pillar
Two income taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted
or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively. Since the Group
did not fall within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the
amendments did not have any impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR RMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised IFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective in these financial statements.
The Group intends to apply these revised IFRSs, if applicale, when
they become effective.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and IAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (the "2020 Amendments’)!
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

(the "2022 Amendments’)'
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements'

Amendments to I1AS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

2. E5THER @®
2.3 B BB i R E SR B PR BA F5 3

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any
amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application
of IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by a right
to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist at the end of
the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled in its
own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion option in a
convertible liability is itself accounted for as an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of a liability
arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Additional disclosures
are required for non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments shall be applied retrospectively with early
application permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments
early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments,
and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments and whether existing loan agreements may require
revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

2. E5tHER @®
2.3 B BB i R E X HI B PR A F5 3

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the characteristics of
supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of
such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities,
cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application of
the amendments is permitted. The amendments provide certain
transition reliefs regarding comparative information, quantitative
information as at the beginning of the annual reporting period and
interim disclosures. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess whether
a currency is exchangeable into another currency and how it
shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require disclosures of
information that enable users of financial statements to understand
the impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot
restate comparative information. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate component
of equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

2. E5THER @®
24 EXGFTEER

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investment in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The Group's investment in an associate and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of an associate and joint ventures
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its an associate or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the an
associate or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of an associate or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group's investment in an associate or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other case, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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EHZE2023F12A31HIEERE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) TEEER @

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 ERZEHEEK @
Business combinations and goodwill EBEHREE

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2. E5THER @®
24EXRGETEER @

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. TR @)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 ERZEHEEK @
Fair value measurement NRET=E

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

2. E5THER @®
24EXRGETEER @

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract
assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties
and non-current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale),
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family
and that person

(i)
(ii)
(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

M

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the Group (or of
a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2. E5THER @®
24EXRGETEER @

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost (Or valuation) less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups
held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or
loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the statement
of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged. An
annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained profits
is made for the difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of an asset and the depreciation based
on the asset's original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in
reserves.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

2. E5tHER @®
24EKREETEER @

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual

ME B E R R EUARITE @)

WEDREYE - BERREEE G
SRl A FHAUBEGREZRIEENEE

value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for FerBETESH BMILFAERANEE
this purpose are as follows: FITERNT

Annual depreciation rate

FIFEER
Land and buildings THRIET 2.25% toZE 9%
Machinery and equipment 2 ea ] 9% toZE 19%

Motor vehicles AE
Furniture, fittings and other equipment
Leasehold improvements THEYEEE
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

REEH R HEMRE

11.25% toZE 19%
7.5% toF 19%
10% to%E 33.33%
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

2. E5THER @®
24EXRGETEER @

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/
or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset
up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For
a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

140 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % BIMEZR A RA T

REME
REMERER T HREFEERA R, X
ERAEMFTEN LM RBF (B R
RREE) Bm ZFYMERRENA
st BEXE WA - IRHERE  RE
Y ER RIS R TR R REET
fRe

WEEFAREEFENBERRA-C

WENHEREYENE AR E ISR
PR BE B & F PR m & A FEST ©

MEEMEBREERAMENFER
ZYEHB B RIERI DA R AR
HEEANARBE HAEEFAN
BERMERSREYE  MBERER
BRERZEMWE BB RREUKRTE)
PRt BRAG B R EARIEE BN E
R/ MR RS E Pt RS A R
MEANRINEFEREREEEZY
FoMzMERELNREEEQANE
BERNERZERENRE Lt % BB KR
R AT PRALBY R SIIEE (S - F
FESREREMER ZWENER
AYBREE R SRR A R B ERE R E
P8 R PHERD o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 FE#R &
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Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

2. E5tHER @®
24EKREETEER @

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost, which include all
development expenditures, including land costs, interest charges and
other costs directly attributable to such properties.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development project
is expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle.

Properties under development are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value at the end of the reporting period and any
excess of cost over the net realisable value of an individual item of
properties under development is accounted for as a provision. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business as determined by management with reference to
the prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and selling and marketing costs.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2. E5THER @®
24EXRGETEER @

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component and non-lease component(s), the Group adopts the
practical expedient not to separate non-lease component(s) and
to account for the lease component and the associated non-lease
component(s) (e.g., property management services for leases of
properties) as a single lease component.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date of the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities is
recognised, initial direct costs, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the asset as follows:

Land use right
Buildings

20 to 70 years
2 to 23 years

If ownership of leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the
asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g.,
a change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop computers that
are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. TR @

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 EREEEEK @
Leases (continued) HE @®
Group as a lessor KEFESHAN

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Lease that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) TEEER @
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 ERZEHEEK @
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2. E5THER @®
24EXRGETEER @

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive
income is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity
investments are also recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continueq)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for
as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in
its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

* the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(‘ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified approach
as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. TR @

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24EFKEHHBEKR @
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EMEERE @
Simplified approach 1L %

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing loans and
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables, and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at
the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with
the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial
position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds,
the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is
carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in shareholders' equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not re-measured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible bonds based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components
when the instruments are first recognised.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. TR @

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 EREEEEK @
Derecognition of financial liabilities RILFERERMEE

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
merchandise is determined on the moving weighted average method
basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of
the total land and buildings costs attributable to unsold properties.
Net realisable value is estimated by the directors based on the
prevailing market prices, on an individual property basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid
deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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2. E5tHER @®
24EKREETEER @

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Coupon liabilities

Coupon liabilities are recognised based on the fair value of bonus
points or coupons granted to customers in accordance with the
announced bonus point scheme and the Group’s past experience
on the level of redemption of coupons and are recorded in other
payables. The revenue of the Group is deducted when the coupon
liabilities are recognised.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) TEEER @

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 EREEEEK @
Income tax (continued) FRigH (@

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. TR @)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 EREEER @
Income tax (continued) FRiSH (@
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that FIERIEES EH B EREHEEREEDR

are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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CrEs e
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. TR @

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 EREEEEK @
Revenue recognition (continued) A RERR (@)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(@) Direct sales of merchandise and sales of properties

Revenue from the direct sales of merchandise and sales of
properties is recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer.

(b) Commissions from concessionaire sales

Commissions from concessionaire sales are recognised upon
the sale of merchandise by the relevant concessionaires, which
is taken to be the point in time when the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer.

(c) Management fee income from the operation of department
stores is recognised when management services are rendered.

(d) Administration and management fee income, promotion income
and credit card handling fees from suppliers and concessionaires
are recognised when services are rendered.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Retirement benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Chinese Mainland are covered by government-regulated defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes under which the employees
are entitled to a monthly pension. The Group contributes to these
retirement benefit schemes on a monthly basis at a percentage of the
employees’ salaries. Under these schemes, the Group has no legal
obligation for retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these schemes are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. TR @

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 ERGHEEER @
Other employee benefits HitgS1EF
Defined benefit plan REEREE

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Re-measurements arising from the defined benefit pension plan,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained profits through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

e the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
e the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “employee

expenses”, “other operating expenses” and “finance costs” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

e service costs comprising current service costs and past service
costs

e gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

e netinterest expense or income
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24EKREETEER @

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate of 5.55%
has been applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2. E5THER @®
24EXRGETEER @

Foreign currencies

The Company and other investment holding subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands and
Hong Kong use the Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$") as their functional
currency. The functional currency of the PRC subsidiaries is RMB. As
the Group mainly operates in Chinese Mainland, RMB is used as the
presentation currency of the Group. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of
the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve, except to the extent that the differences are attributable
to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. E5tHER @®
24EKREETEER @

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of subsidiaries outside Chinese Mainland are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries outside Chinese
Mainland which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

e Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. EAgsHHERMLE @

ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

e (Classification between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not
only to property but also to other assets used in the department
store operations. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

o Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Impairment of gooawill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2023 was
RMB1,260,5631,000 (31 December 2022: RMB1,270,349,000).
Further details are given in note 20.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and other receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and
other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer's actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and other receivables
is disclosed in note 28 and note 29 to the financial statements,
respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs
to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts and (when possible)
by external evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December
2023 was RMB21,806,780,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB21,480,749,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 18 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2023 was
RMB147,552,000 (31 December 2022: RMB147,783,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2023 was
RMB2,447,763,000 (31 December 2022: RMB2,631,611,000).
Further details are contained in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Net realisable value of inventories and completed properties held
for sale

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
Net realisable value of completed properties held for sale is
estimated by the directors based on the prevailing market prices.
These estimates are based on the current market conditions
and the historical experience of selling merchandise of a similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste or competitor actions. The Group reassesses
these estimates at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other
times when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. Further details, including a sensitivity
analysis of key assumptions, are given in note 42 to the financial
statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
e Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 41 to
the financial statements. The valuation requires the Group to
determine the comparable public companies (peers) and select
the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes estimates
about the discount for illiquidity and size differences. The Group
classifies the fair value of these investments as Level 3. The fair
value of the unlisted equity investments at 31 December 2023
was RMB186,613,000 (2022: RMB545,815,000). Further details
are included in note 24 to the financial statements.

e Recognition of deferred tax liabilities for withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding tax
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprise established in Chinese Mainland.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax liabilities that can be recognised, based
upon the likely dividends declared. Further details are contained
in note 25 to the financial statements.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on the nature of their operations and their products and
services and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@ the operation of department stores segment comprises
concessionaire sales, direct sales of merchandise and the
leasing out of commercial properties for the operation of
department stores by third parties;

(b) the property development segment is principally engaged in the
development and sale of commercial and residential properties
as well as the leasing out of commercial properties other than for
the operation of department stores; and

(c) the “others” segment comprises, principally, operations of hotels,
and the provision of ancillary services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss attributable to
owners of the parent.
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Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Intersegment revenue and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then

prevailing market prices.

4. BENWEH @

DBERAREEZ2REERTED

BHEMF = PERNEBEETN

Operation of

department Property
stores  development Others Total
REERMRE MERRE Heth st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT  AR¥TR ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F12B31HLLEE
Segment revenue: KA :
Sales to external customers HETIPEF 3,339,033 560,344 281,437 4,180,814
Other income =gl ON 1,089,036 29,096 7,343 1,125,475
Total segment revenue DE N EE 4,428,069 589,440 288,780 5,306,289
Cost of sales HEMA (1,417,183) (294,843) (48,669) (1,760,695)
Employee expenses EERX (309,186) (30,568) (74,544) (414,298)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE (840,536) (94,282) (55,254) (990,072)
Payments for short-term leases and leases of THHEREEEEERERS
low-value assets (749) (686) (821) (2,256)
Other operating expenses AEtTEms (813,376) (136,026) (92,367) (1,041,769)
Other gains and losses B REE (49,750) (35,010) (116) (84,876)
Operating profit/(loss) TERE/ (B8 997,289 (1,975) 17,009 1,012,323
Finance costs BEMK (520,432) (444,856) = (965,288)
Share of profits and losses of an associate and (B ERA B R—EaE L £ER
a joint venture (8,789) - - (8,789)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRIRAIRE/ (B 468,068 (446,831) 17,009 38,246
Income tax expense FrgiRfs (86,522) (28,655) (1,265) (116,442)
Profit/(loss) for the year KERE/ (BB 381,546 (475,486) 15,744 (78,196)
Attributable to: MTRATRER
Owners of the parent BRAERFEEA 334,069 (442,607) 12,426 (96,112)
Non-controlling interests R RS 47,477 (32,879) 3,318 17,916
381,546 (475,486) 15,744 (78,196)
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, BEFEEE @

Operation of
department Property
stores  development Others Total

KEBRE NELR Rfth st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABEFR  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR

Other segment information: HitpiEe
Impairment losses in the statement BakPEINAESETE
of profit or loss, net (60,135) - - (60,135)

Impairment of completed properties held for sale BB EEZMMERE - (9,112 - (9,112)

Impairment of investment in an associate R—EHEABNKERE (200,604) - - (200,604)

Goodwill impairment BERE (9,818) - - (9,818)

Investment in an associate R—EBE DKE 153,440 - - 153,440

Capital expenditure® BEXRET (49,352) (680,988) (100) (730,440)

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, * BEABELTOENBEYE -BMERERE 1BEY
investment properties, properties under development, other intangible assets EERPYE - HEMhWEESERTEFED
and completed properties held for sale including assets from the acquisition of ERYE HhaiENE—BRBATMNE
a subsidiary. Eo
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Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4, &

Operation of

SEER @

department Property
stores development Others Total
KERER MEEE 2t st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFRT ARETFT ARETR ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2020F12A3ALEE
Segment revenue: SEBA
Sales to external customers HETFIER 3,267,599 895,179 186,912 4,349,690
Other income HitgA 1,007,209 33,949 5127 1,046,285
Total segment revenue HBRABE 4,274,808 929,128 192,039 5,395,975
Cost of sales HERK (1,396,342) (414,095) (40,513) (1,850,950)
Employee expenses EEHRZ (346,405) (36,065) (72,116) (454,586)
Depreciation and amortisation 8 R (833,599) (163,756) (51,805) (1,049,160)
Payments for short-term leases and leases of RREERAEEEERERS
low-value assets (5,096) (894) (738) (6,728)
Other operating expenses EfAERY (827,176) (129,978) (53,670) (1,010,824)
Other gains and losses gl Gy d o 512,036 (24,891) (462) 486,683
Operating profit/(loss) EENE/ (58 1,378,226 159,449 (27,265) 1,510,410
Finance costs HEmE (576,940) (473,370) - (1,050,310)
Share of profits and losses of an associate and BEBEAIR—HEERERR
a joint venture (17,990) (692) - (18,582
Profit/(loss) before tax BRiEFE/ (589 783,296 (314,513) (27,265) 441518
Income tax expense PSS (152,572) (82,434) (1,328) (236,334)
Profit/{loss) for the year EFE/ (B8 630,724 (396,947) (28,593) 205,184
Attributable to: BUFALTE
Owners of the parent BRARREREA 589,580 (332,663) (28,824) 228,093
Non-controling interests FERRRER 41,144 (64,284) 231 (22,900)
630,724 (396,947) (28,593) 205,184
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

Operation of

EDERE R @

department Property
stores development Others Total
RERERE MEERE 2 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETFT AEETR ARETT
Other segment information: HitnEaEs
Impairment losses in the statement BarktRINAESRTE
of profit or loss, net (79,529) - - (79,529)
Impairment of completed properties held for sale HERECERNERE - (8,468) - (8,468)
Impairment of investment in an associate R-HEHEAINRERE (24,382) - - (24,382)
Gains on deemed disposal of shares in an associate ~ fR{EHE S AT RN T 328,207 - - 328,207
Goodwill impairment HERE (51,909) - - (51,909)
Investment in an associate REEABRE 362,833 - - 362,833
Capital expenditure* BEARET (36,765) (804,064) (757) (841,586)

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, properties under development, other intangible assets
and completed properties held for sale including assets from the acquisition of
a subsidiary.

The Group’s entire revenue is attributable to the market in Chinese
Mainland. No analysis of geographical information is therefore
presented.

The Group has a large number of customers. However, no sales

to a single customer amounted to 5% or more of the Group’s total
revenue.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR RMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023

B F2023F12A31HILEE
5. REVENUE 5.
2022
20224
RMB’000
AREFIT
Revenue from contracts with customers BEREHWA
Commissions from concessionaire sales B EEHEE RS 702,345 714,034
Direct sales Hif 1,512,516 1,502,247
Sale of properties YIEHE 464,366 787,638
Revenue from other sources TEHAMEBIWA
Rental income from investment properties ~ BE Y2 E I A 656,593 653,316
Rental income from the leasing of HiEm
shop premises AEWA 563,557 505,543
Others HAh 281,437 186,912
Total 4ast 4,180,814 4,349,690
Revenue from contracts with customers ZEBREHA
()  Disaggregated revenue information () DITUAER

AEEFRACBEBRHNEY RRF I
ARFE—FFE R FIL T E =2
HIEABFEE R D47

The Group’s entire revenue of goods and services transferred is
recognized at a point in time. No analysis of timing information is
therefore presented.

TRETSHARSHINENEER
RLS A8 1 A 1 Rl B9 B A9 B AR PR BE
SR ARSHANERSRWmEER

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognized in
the current reporting period that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognized
from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2022
20224
RMB’000
AREFT
Revenue recognized that was included 5t AR &S EA¥ S X & EH
in contract liabilities at the beginning BEERE -
of the reporting period:
Sale of completed properties HEBBITYE 259,210 325,933
Total 4Ect 259,210 325,933
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
recognized below:

Direct sales of merchandise and commissions from
concessionaire sales

The performance obligation is satisfied at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customers.

Sale of properties

For contracts entered into with customers on the sale of
properties, the Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment prior to transfer of the relevant properties to customers.
Revenue from the sale of properties is therefore recognized at
the point in time when the completed property is transferred
to customers, being at the point that the customer obtains the
control of the completed property and the Group has the present
right to payment and collection of the consideration is probable.

5. XA @)
EREHIWA @

(i)

EAREIE
ERTEEBRNEENERESU
e

A mE R T EEEE RS

EEEEFIRERERRR BN
BEESRE —FBIRER -

LES IS
MHEVMERAZTRITIUNSAM
EoAEBEERYETERA K
= B 30 45 WA A SR BY BT 98 Y R AT
FloHIE » HEMERNWRARBET
YEEETE PR B o Bl
ZERERERITYEEGEMmA
EEEA WA R 2 REF R KA
BEWER AU B Y B I L o

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HhUgA

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT

Income from suppliers and concessionaires 7R B L fE & K 45 sF EHERIURA

— Administration and management —THHEERE

fee income A 704,634 717,156
— Promotion income =N 181,106 178,719
— Credit card handling fees —ERRFEE 79,171 85,131
Government grants* BT #E B 78,765 -
Interest income FIE WA 8,717 9,779
Others Eh 73,082 55,500
Total other income HA A 48 %8 1,125,475 1,046,285

*

Government grants mainly represented subsidies for relocation provided by
local government. There are no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies relating
to these subsidies
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

7. COST OF SALES 7. SHEMZ
2022
20224
RMB’000
AREFT
Purchases of and changes in inventories BEEYMREFEES) 1,417,183 1,396,342
Cost of properties sold EEMERE 204,843 414,095
Others Hih 48,669 40,513
Total cost of sales TH & A AR ZE 1,760,695 1,850,950

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 8. EEMX%
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Wages and salaries ITEKFH® 370,905 406,378
Retirement benefits BIREH 40,782 45,696
Other employee benefits HthEE1EH] 2,611 2,612
Total “ast 414,298 454,586

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

FNEERTIEZTHRASNFHMR
mRA - FBREEAIFE383(1)(@)
C)RMFEUR AT RBEEFFDER)

B
)~ (o)

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is HOVE2EIRENT -
as follows:
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFIT
Fees BE 714 669
Other emoluments: HAbN &
Salaries and allowances E = 1,718 1,144
Retirement benefits BB 72 45
Subtotal IINET 1,790 1,189
Total 485t 2,504 1,858
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (continued) 8. EEMXZ ®
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BWILIEMITES :
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the FRENBIFERTEENREU
year were as follows: T~

Total

Fees remuneration

wE i BN 4B 51

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR®T T

Year ended 31 December 2023 HF2023F12A310LLFEE

Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR AL E 220 220
Mr. Rao Yong Bk A 329 329
Mr. Gao Yajun [SEEE-S e 165 165
Total #Est 714 714
Year ended 31 December 2022 HZE2022F12A31HIEFEE

Mr. Pao Ping Wing TEIRE A E 206 206
Mr. Rao Yong Bk A 309 309
Mr. Gao Yajun SoESLE 154 154
Total 4ast 669 669
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent REZE2023F12831HLIEEE i
non-executive directors for the year ended 31 December 2023 EIYNHEMME TRIIENITES
(2022: Nil). (20224F : £8) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR RMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12H31HIEFEE
8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (continued) 8. EEMX @
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and b) FITEE - —RIENTESRERE
the chief executive HTE

Salaries and Retirement Total
allowances benefits remuneration

s R iR Rb RKEF FrEN A8 St

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Year ended 31 December 2023 #;E2023F12H31H

J-EF

ISZ
Executive directors: WITEE !
Mr. Tang Haifeng* Eig g g 877 46 923
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan E/NEZt+ 624 26 650
Non-executive director: FERTEE !
Mr. Huang Tony** IR RE 97 - 97
Chief executive: BEHTE
Mr. Huang Mao Ru =HikEE 120 - 120
Total 4ms 1,718 72 1,790
Salaries and Retirement Total
_allowances __benefits remuneration
#re RoRRG BRIRFERF] Fri AR st
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBFT ARBFT
Year ended 31 December 2022 Eﬁﬁ2022¢12ﬁ31 H
Executive directors: WITES .
Mr. Zhong Pengyi* it Sl o 120 - 120
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan BB+ 664 45 709
Non-executive director: FATES
Mr. Wang Bin** STk 240 - 240
Chief executive: BENITE .
Mr. Huang Mao Ru =AM E 120 - 120
Total “Est 1,144 45 1,189
*  Mr. Tang Haifeng was newly appointed as an executive director in 2023. * EREEENR2023FEMEZTANIT
Mr. Zhong Pengyi resigned as an executive director in 2023. EE o BRI LN 2023 FRHENITE
=
** Mr. Huang Tony was newly appointed as a non-executive director in BT R 2023 E R I AIERIT
2023. Mr. Wang Bin resigned as a non-executive director in 2023. BE o TR EN2023FEFEIEHITE
=
There was no arrangement under which a director waived HE2023F12H31HIEFE > i
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the year ended 31 ERHEENEYNRENRET A HM

December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERaR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors (2022: one director), details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2022: four) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company for the year are as
follows:

9. IHEREHESR

ERNILECSHEECEMRLES

(20224 | —%FBFH) » HFMEN £X
Mi5E8 o EE PN EAh =5 (20224 : IU4%) &=
SHEE (LIEAQATEENTETH
AB) EBzE BT

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®FT

Salaries and allowances e foER 861 2,735
Retirement benefits BIARBH 107 165
Total 4E st 968 2,900

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

HMBU TERNIFEERSHESA
QI

2022
20224

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,00078 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 75 £ 1,500,00078 75 - 1
Total 4mst 3 4

10. PAYMENTS FOR SHORT-TERM LEASES AND
LEASES OF LOW-VALUE ASSETS

10. EHHAE R REEEERERX

Payments for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets

e REEEEERERX

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®FT
2,256 6,728
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 1. Bt & &R
2022
20224
Notes RMB’000
B =E ARETFIT
Utility expenses UN=ZEii 413,421 363,205
Promotion and advertising expenses BT E&KESEX 36,106 25,301
Repair and maintenance expenses  4fzERI 69,878 72,911
Entertainment expenses AFFY 3,131 3,744
Office expenses WA 26,647 44,656
Other tax expenses HEMiRIERS 261,755 248,275
Professional service fees HERKE 48,082 47 503
Auditors’ remuneration TZ M & 4,900 4,900
Bank charges IRITFEE 35,483 43,706
Impairment of trade receivables EWE S RIERE 28 461 1,378
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of &Lk B8 ¥ 75 s IS (B,
amounts due from related parties CRUE#E[E]) 29 212 (1,439)
Impairment of other receivables E g W ISR E 29 59,462 79,590
Impairment of completed properties  FHEFE B &MY
held for sale B 9,112 8,468
Others Hh 73,119 68,626
Total wast 1,041,769 1,010,824
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CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 12, Hithi e R &548

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TFT AREFT
(Losses)/gains on disposal of HEREYEIEEN
investment properties (BB518) W= (1,375) 196,072
Losses on disposal of property, HEME -BEMKZEBEEEN
plant and equipment 518 (436) (299)
Foreign exchange losses, net SN BB B51BF BR (3,741) (2,262)
Gain on deemed disposal of shares ~ 1R{EH & —RIE & A T LD
in an associate g - 328,207
Fair value (losses)/gains on financial MARBETEEEEH A
assets at fair value through profit BmlNEMmEEQANEE
or loss (B518) /W (1,337) 7,205
Losses on disposal of financial assets HE MU AN BET=HHES)
at fair value through profit or loss ABENEREERBIE (1,802) (1,449)
Fair value gains on KREYEN A DEEW S
investment properties 18 177,841 114,703
Dividend incomes from KEULNNBEFE=EEESE)
financial assets at fair value FFABTZHNEMEENKE
through profit or loss WA 1,313 2,309
Dividend incomes from equity KEREAUAAEBEFZ
investments designated BHEHEHFAEMEE
at fair value through other W R IR E
comprehensive income RIAZ B U A 4,836 4,798
Impairment of goodwill HERE 20 (9,818) (51,903)
Impairment of an investment K—EEE AT
in an associate KERE 23 (200,604) (24,382)
Penalty accrued e Sl 32(b) (40,990) (66,423)
Provisions for litigation HRER B (25,030) (52,336)
Others HAth 16,267 32,443
Total 4mst (84,876) 486,683
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR RMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023

B F2023F12A31HILEE
13. FINANCE COSTS 13. BB A 2
2022
20224
RMB’000
AREEFIT
Interest on bank loans and IRITER R EMMETFE
other borrowings 925,801 988,095
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE 123,871 143,560
Total interest expense on financial liabilites  JE¥ZA ABEFT ABZH
not at fair value through profit or loss THEEN SR 1,049,672 1,131,655
Less: Interest capitalised B BEXREHER (84,384) (81,345)
Total st 965,288 1,050,310
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. RIS

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempt from the payment of
the Cayman Islands income tax.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands, the
Group is not subject to any tax in the British Virgin Islands.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax was calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: 16.5%).

AEBAMEMB AT EREENE
AEEPTELEHHANNAE HERE
ZENFTISH -

RABMRBEHEEEAEEANHENRS
S A EREBRSERT > HIL
KATVER R NRSEEFER

RERBEBRESINEARER A&
BB RSN ERNRBERREERE

SR ESNEBERILEE2023F128
S1HIEFEEGMEZRRAEN16.5%
(20224F : 16.5%) & o
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CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. FRISTREX @

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject
to corporate income tax (“‘CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25% (2022:
25%) of their respective taxable income, except for certain group
entities which are entitled to various concessionary tax rates or tax
exemptions and reliefs.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT”) is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including land use rights, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditures. LAT of RMB18,996,000 was charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: RMB41,122,000).

RIBAERBPTERE TENEBE LSRR
WLE AR RAFE SR IR U A $%225% (20224F :
25%) BEEMREXBMEEMER (M1
EmRTBR) HEETEZAREBRERE
HIRTER BV EBBREFRS o

FRER £ g E AR (T i (ERR ) 1230% E
0NN ERH RER X L B EIGEZ D
(B2 EFSRIEREE L (B
BB ERASEN
R ET R R ) B - A 118,996,000
TR M ER BN E E2023F12H 31
HiItFEBiraBmik Nk (20224 !

AR#841,122,0007T) ©

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®FT

Current — CIT BPHA— 1R 2EFTETR 207,905 135,585
Current — LAT BNHA— + I (55 18,996 41,122
Deferred (note 25) IEIE (F¥5E25) (110,459) 59,627
Total tax charge for the year FRMFEHEZ4EEE 116,442 236,334
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MR RMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit
or loss before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
income tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of

14. FRIfS A @)

BANBDRAETENBEASFTENEA
R&ZERKAEZRRAH HaEIE
BAMSHRAX (B%) RZERMES
MMEABEZPAIEMASHHEIR Rk

the statutory tax rates to the effective rates, are as follows: EMEHEHEMEZHERWT ¢
2023 2023% BVI Hong Kong Chinese Mainland Total
LBEATHE iy HE AR it
% RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000
AEBTR ARBFT AEBTT AEBTTR
(Loss)/profit before tax el B8) /7 (19) 17,963 2,112 38,046
Tax at the statutory tax rate BAEREHEN
ik - - - 204 165 569 % 8657 2
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on  ZEEREK BAT
the distrioutable profits of the ~ FEAT )RR THHREE
Group’s PRC subsidlaries SRERR
REELNRE - - - 11,090 62 - - 11,000 2
Lower tax rates for specifc BEHENRERE
disticts - - - (s 0 (160 m i) )
Profts and losses attributable to  BEATR—HEE
anassociate and a joint venture  SEEFERIRIER
BE - - - - -9 10 2107 6
Income not subject to tax ERELROMA - - - - - (4162 (18 (4162) (1)
Bxpenses not deductible for tax RIS - - - - - 20604 9 22,604 59
Tax losses not recognised RERDNERE - - - - - 62 o4 62,294 163
LAT THEER = - - - - 18,996 83 18,996 50
Tax effect of LAT THEERD
hege - - - - - (449 @) (4749 (12)
Others Hth - - - 4313 2% (1,669) 1} 2,644 7
Tax charge at the Group's BREEEERINE
eftective tax rate BEEEEST - - - 16840 9 99,602 437 116442 304
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RAFsERaR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

2022 0206 Cayman Islands BV
HEHE ZBETARHE
RMB'000 % RMB'000
AEBTT AEBTT

14. FRSIRFES @
Hong Kong Chinese Mainland Total
&h EIARE o5t

RMB'000 % RVB'00 % RVBI00 %
AEETR AEETR AEBTR

(Loss)/profit before tax el B8 /78 1) &

112,324 331,014 441,618

Tax at the statutory tax rate BETHEHENRE - - -
Fffect of withholding tax at 5% on the  AEEHEHBAR

distributable profits of the Group’s AT TRAI B R EB5%4Y

PR subsidiaries REBRNEELNTE - - -
Lower tax rates for specfic districts 15 Bt BAIEERE . . .
Profits and losses attibutabletoan ~ BEATR-FAELE

18,533 165 82979 25 101512 23

15,588 14 - - 15588 4
(9,548) 9 2% (1) (11,93 8]

associate and a joint venture MR EREE - - - - - 4646 1 4646 1
Income not subject to tax ERBHENRA - - - - - (1729) (1 (72 )
Expenses not deductible fortax RIS H - - - - - 51,795 16 51,795 12
Tax losses not recognised RERINHIESE - - - - - 51442 15 5144 12
LAT THEER - - - - - 12 12 412 9
Taxeffect of LAT THERRNIEYE - - - - - (10281) @ (10281) @)
Others Hth - - - (5,662) ) (175) 1) (827 (1)
Tax charge at the Group's BEERERREHER

effective tax rate RERR - - - 18,921 17 2743 64 236,334 54

The share of tax credit attributable to an associate amounting to
RMB3,000 (2022: share of tax RMB562,000) is included in “Share of
profits and losses of an associate” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. i 2

2022
20224
RMB’000
AREFT
Proposed final — HKO0.75 cents B m R R EER B
(2022: HK1.02 cents) per ordinary share —0.75%81
(20224F : 1.027l) 35,000 45,619

The proposed final dividend for the year of 2023 is subject to the 2023F FENEZAPREBEFTALE
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual REREERREBFAG LHERS A
general meeting. (=

16.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY  16. AR i@ RIFE AELER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 518
The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based on EREABEBILES A EBERR

the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent of RMB96,112,000 (2022: earnings per share is based on
the earnings for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent of RMB228,093,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 5,140,326,000 (2022: 5,140,326,000) in issue

BEAEEEANBEARKIG,112,000
7T (2022F - ERBA I EEATE
EEGFEAEGERBIARE
228,093,0007T) R EANBEBTEERN
NN ¥5805,140,326,00088 (20224 :

during the year. 5,140,326,0008%) 5+ o

KEENEE2023F K%2022F12831H
IFFETECETETHEZT R

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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A T5ER AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F12A31HILEE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % -BEREE
Furniture,
Machinery fittings and
Land and and Motor other  Leasehold Construction
buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment improvements in progress Total
i EER fEnE
IHEEF RERRE HE RftRe £ fHRIE st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
31 December 2023 20235128314
At 31 December 2022 and R2020E12B31H R
at 1 January 2023: 0BE181H
Cost Ak 9,876,132 569,336 16,855 187317 193522 530255 13,115,117
Accumulated depreciaion and impaiment ~ EEHTERHE (8,519,462) (872,054) (2,490) (186,813 (1,098,087) (6,608 (5,186,414)
Net carying amount FESE 6,356,670 196,382 14,365 504 837,135 53647 7,928,703
At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated 1202351510
depreciation and imparment (MBRFMERAE) 6,356,670 196,382 14,365 504 837,135 523,647 7,928,703
Additions HE - 973 1,114 4,130 39,304 79,256 124,177
Disposals e - (206) (574) (1,204) (13) = (1,997)
Depreciation provided during the year FRiTEEE (348,924) (14,665) (1,068) (2,235) (130,812) - (497,704)
Transfer from construction in progress firrIRE) - - - - 17,767 (17,767) -
Bxchange realignment EREE 979 - - 12 - - 991

At 31 December 2023, net of accumulated 12023128311

depreciation and impaimment (BRHTERAE) 6,008,725 182,484 13,837 1,207 763,381 585,13 7,554,770
At 31 December 2023; R2023E128318

Cost A 9,876,977 567,597 16,232 180,681 1,092,167 501,744 13,225,398

Accumulated depreciation and impaiment  ESHTER(E (3,868,252 (385,113) (2,395) (170474 (1,228,786) (6,608 (5,670,626)

Net camying amount REFE 6,008,725 182,484 13,897 1,207 763,381 585,136 7,554,770
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Year ended 31 December 2023

B ZE2023F12831HIEFE
17.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. 9% - BERZE @
Fumiture,
Machinery fittings and
Land and and Motor other Leasehold  Construction
buldings equipment vehicles equipment  improvements in progress Total
R #ER HEns
THEEF  BERRE e AftRk 2E ERIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR AREBTx ARETR ARETR
31 December 2022 2026128317
At 31 December 2021 and R2021£12B31H R

at 1 January 2022: 202051818

Cost s 9,852,991 568,641 16,508 202,834 1,860,420 478250 12,979,644

Accumulated depreciaion and impaiment ~ BsHTERHE (3,136,519 (357,004 1,365) (201,239) (979,205 (6.608)  (4,681,940)

Net carrying amount REFE 6,716,472 211,637 15,143 1,595 881,215 471,642 8,207,704
At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated 120224518180

depreciation and impaiment (RHTERAE) 6,716,472 211,637 15,143 159 881,215 A6 8,297,704
Additions HE 7,183 2,839 348 2484 34,076 101,992 149,622
Disposals HE (12173 (349) - (681) (10 - (13413)
Depreciation provided during the year FRiTERE (402,839) (17,779) (1,126) (2,745) 128,080) - (552,568)
Transfer to investment properties note 18)  EETREME (¥5E18) (16,298) - - - - - (16,299)
Transfer from investment propertiesinote 18 EREBNEEA (i5E18) 19552 - - - - - 19552
Transfer from construction in progress AERD - 34 - 19 49,934 (49,987) -
Transfer from properties under development ~ ERERNEEA (HzEo7)

(note 27) 41681 - - - - - 41681
Fxchange realignment ERBE 2,491 - - kY - - 2523
At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated 120224128318

depreciation and impaiment (NBEMERAE) 6,356,670 196,382 14,365 504 837,135 523647 7,928,703
At 31 December 2022: 2020128318

Cost s 9,876,132 569,336 16,809 187,317 1,935,222 530,255 13,115,117

Accumulated depreciation and impaiment ~ REHTERHE (3,519,462) (372954 2.490) (186, (1,098,087) (6608)  (5,186,414)

Net carrying amount FEFE 6,356,670 196,382 14,365 504 837,135 523,647 7,928,708
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. 9% - BERZE @

Amortisation of land lease payments of approximately
RMB3,397,000 as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
RMB3,397,000) during the construction period was capitalised
as part of the construction cost of the department stores under
construction of the Group, and was included in the above additions.

The Group’s land and buildings are held under medium term leases
and are situated in Chinese Mainland. Details of the Group’s land and
buildings pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans
are set out in note 33.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of the Group
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB144,757,000 as
at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: RMB150,583,000) have
not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. The Group is in

R2023F12B31H BEHBEEER
EHNEN T HEEREBEOASARE
3,397,0007T (20224128310 : AR
3,397,00070) EstAKREEERFES
NEEMREA B 3FE LMRED -

AEBR T REFTHIRE PHANR
B WALF R EIRRE - A EE A ES H 5t
BRTERMEE RN L RBFFIB
BTN bR

AEBRBHNETEFNEES DR
FE A RS PIETS > RER I IEE
RSB FE  HIREFE20235%F12
B31H48 AR K144,757,0007T (2022

the process of obtaining the relevant certificates.

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2023

F12831H : ARE1§150,583,0007T) °

18. B
20234

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at construction
fair value at fair value Total
BT T2
BREME BREWE
BAREE) BAREE Hast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT ARBTFT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2023 120231 B1HMERE(E 16,380,371 5,100,378 21,480,749
Transfer from properties under RERPMEEA
development (note 27) (Fzx27) 149,671 - 149,671
Disposal HE (1,481) - (1,481)
Net gain from fair value adjustment RABERE RN
(note 12) (Fzx12) 167,588 10,253 177,841
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 1*2023%F12831HK
REE 16,696,149 5,110,631 21,806,780
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR RMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE
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18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. IR EYE @
2022 20226
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at construction
fair value at fair value Total
BT T
REME BEME
FBERNEE) BAREE) WE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETT AREBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2022 20221 B1HRIREE 16,342,019 5,052,893 21,394,912
Transfer from property, NE-BERREEA
plant and equipment (note 17) (Fi5x17) 16,298 - 16,298
Recognition of change in fair value of RERZLEMEN
property, plant and equipment upon Y EN Y=
transfer to investment properties NABEEES 118,136 - 118,136
Transfer from prepaid land lease HBEC LB ERIBEA
payments (note 19 (a)) (PI5E19(a)) 614 - 614
Transfer to property, plant and equipment R EY)¥ B E KR
(note 17) (Fi5E17) (19,552) - (19,552)
Transfer to prepaid land lease EHINEEMNLTHMES
payments (note 19 (a) =8 (H3E19()) (3,496) - (3,496)
Disposal HE (140,866) - (140,866)
Net gain from fair value adjustment NABEFREEN S
(note 12) (Mf3E12) 67,218 47,485 114,703
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 7202241283101
fREME 16,380,371 5,100,378 21,480,749

The Group's investment properties consist of commercial properties
in Chinese Mainland. The directors of the Company have determined
that the investment properties consist of one class of assets, i.e.,
commercial properties, based on the nature, characteristics and risk
of each property. The Group’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 December 2023 based on valuations performed by Shenzhen
Guoyu Assets Appraisal and Xiamen Academic Practice Valuer,
two independent professionally qualified valuers, at approximately
RMB21,806,780,000. Each year, the Group’s management decides
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuation of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s management has discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium term
leases and are situated in Chinese Mainland. Details of the Group’s
investment properties pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing
bank loans are set out in note 33.

AEBNKEYERMUN P EAREW
ERAME RATEEBEALATHN
KEMYER—BEEMAR  BIER
SEEEMNMHE BHE -BABEER
B R E - )R2023F 12831 H » &
ERREVENENHENAARE
21,806,780,0007z » ZBEETs UM LB L
HEABIRTEMENTRBE E TG
REFREEETHEMEGEBETH
HEAKE EF AEENEEES
IRSNERER (LA & B EE B E RN T
TF-ERZEQEHTHNH 2B
UMMNMBREERFEEE -EHEEN
BRRETHER  AEREEEBEE
TG ERR R EESERAGEMT R —
o

AEENKREYETIREBETHELRE
B WA RPEARE AEBAET SR
TEREIRENEEREEYENES
BN R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5ER AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment properties
of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB23,769,000 as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
RMB1,880,349,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining the relevant

18. IR EYE @

AEBEBRNETREYENFRE
BEMARTEBRAIIERE & &E
BENENREAEAESNFTE HIRE
FEMR2023F12A31HNA AREE
23,769,0007T (2022512831H : AR

certificates. 1,880,349,0007T) ©

Fair value hierarchy RAEERER

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of FEENKREVMENRAABEERIIT
the Group’s investment properties: wr

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2023 using
2023F12B31A AR BEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
R T i AR FalEREm
RE ERBAE EABAE
(B—4R) (BE=H) E=8H st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AREBTT ARETT
Commercial properties Rt E - - 21,806,780 21,806,780
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using
20221231 HANE B E
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
T -kl AOIERRN
wE BEABAE BEABMAE
(E—%H) (EZH) EBE=%H) “st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETT
Commercial properties R E - - 21,480,749 21,480,749

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2022: Nil). (
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

18. REME @

DMREEER @

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs

fafE Rl

EXTARENGAE

UFBHREYEETEEMRBEER
TR RSB A B E :

Range

#E

2022
20224

Commercial properties

BAME

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership
over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value. This method
involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a property
interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the projected
cash flow in order to establish the present value of the income
stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately
determined and differs from the discount rate.

Discounted cash flow
method
IREEREAE

Residual method

FErBEZE

Comparison method

tEBUE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Estimated rental value
(per sg.m. and per month)

fhstiE (BTA K/ EBR)

Rent growth (p.a.)
RS
Long-term vacancy rate
RHRZEEX

Discount rate

BRI

Budgeted construction cost

to be incurred (per sg.m.)
RELNTEEZRAE (BTHK)
Remaining percentage to completion
FigrE T B

Anticipated developer’s profit margin
LRBEAFER

Market unit sale rate (per sg.m)
MZEMER (BFARK)

RMB12-RMB313
AR#1275—
AR#3137T

2%-5%

2%-15%
5%-7%
RMB13-RMB543
AR¥137T—
AR #5437
7%-64%
10%-15%
RMB?7,500-
RMB44,100

AR #7,50075—
AE#44,1007T

RN S e

RMB12-RMB268
AE#1275—
AR #2687T

2%-5%

1%-15%

5%-7%
RMB13-RMB426
AEH#13T—
AE#E4267T
7%-57%
10%-15%
RMB9,200-
RMB44,900

AR 19,2007t —
AR #44,9007T

REBEMIRESRE L AREEHHEA
REEFRANFIAEMN @R BRIR
R (BRERHENRRER FHbE-
ZAESREERGT—RIFEERE
BYTRA - mIZITER MR T BEA R TEA
REMNE UERIEEERR WS
MNRE-RHEnXBEEBEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F12A31HILEE
18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. IR EWE @
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NREERER @

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is a
characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow is
estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and
commission costs and other operating and management expenses.
The series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate
of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is
then discounted.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rent growth rate
and market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would result in
a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the long term vacancy
rate and the discount rate in isolation would result in a significant
decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.
Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated rental
value is accompanied by a directionally similar change in the rent
growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite change in
the long-term vacancy rate.

The residual method of valuation is commonly used in valuing
development sites by establishing the market value of the properties
on an “as-if” completed basis with appropriate deduction on
construction costs, professional fees, contingency, marketing
and legal cost, and interest payments to be incurred, anticipated
developer’s profits, as well as land acquisition costs, interest
payment and profit on land.

The fair values of investment properties are determined using the
comparison method by referring to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant market. Comparable properties of similar
size, characteristics and location are analysed and selected for each
investment property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of their
fair values. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
market unit sale rate.
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R RENFERRERORAMMLAIA
FERFfE AR s ~ AV ETE K AERE
BE BRYEMEEMRE - BENF
BREBEHHETA (RYMESRN—E
B R 2 - EHIRES R BBIA
FRZEE AR WO~ AR H
B eER NENAESERRAM
MEMNEERM s - Z—FRIEE
EUWA R BRMES N RAREER
WK EBEMLTEE WRERE

e RS ERMTIR R ER EE
BEAIREN (5) BERBANER
RBEABED GBY) - EBEBEER
RSIRE B AR (H.)) B ERIBH
WERABEXREHL (8 °— BT
= iE RS FRNBRNEHE S
MG E N RERMRELRALS D
EHRENEPTEXHRR AR

fEPE 3 R AR — AR R B EREEE
HEE BBRE NI B TYENT
HEE BENRREENERME E
FER WARER SHROERR AU
FBAR BRERBRFIE - THUREERL
I FBAR R LA B

REVENAABEBBSEEETS
RIS HY ] LB EH /R G » SRALEBUE T
UBE - mAFLEEIREYENER
AEIE  BUE R DT RRAR 1558 Bt BE 1R
FIBVEILEBYE - Z N RBESEBYA
BATH 5 05 6 B AR AR AR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR RMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

19. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land use right and
buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods
of 20 to 30 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the
terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease
terms between 3 and 15 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased asset outside the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the

movements during the year are as follows:

19.fHE

FEEFREBEA

RiEFZEBEENHEESH - ERATE
H—RMEMRABEZWBEEE L
BHAZ20E305F  MIREZF L MAEE
BYRRR KA FES AR 8T
MEAAEE B3E15F - — M E » A&
E AR EEMSNN T @R RO EE

@) REREE
AEBERERREENRAER
BEHNT :

Land use right Buildings Total
T fE R 1gF st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARETT ARBTT
As at 1 January 2022 1202261 81H 3,669,469 2,276,547 5,946,016
Additions NE - 1,816 1,816
Depreciation charge MERX (167,239) (320,185) (487,424)
Transfer to investment properties BRELEY X
(note 18) (FE18) (614) - (614)
Transfer from properties under NERPYEEA
development (note 27) (ffz¥27) 12,513 - 12,513
Transfer from investment properties ¢S B 2EE A
(note 18) (fyzE18) 3,496 - 3,496
Covid-19-related rent concessions & B 8 A BICovid-19
from lessors HEAHEESESE - (11,469) (11,469)
Other lease modifications HthEEE:] (7,828) 50,846 43,018
As at 31 December 2022 and 202212831 K
1 January 2023 2023FE181H 3,509,797 1,997,555 5,507,352
Additions N - 430 430
Depreciation charge ERS (165,209) (324,745) (489,954)
Other lease modifications B &M1& - (45,342) (45,342)
As at 31 December 2023 1220235 12H31H 3,344,588 1,627,898 4,972,486
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5ER AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2023

HZFE2023F12831HIEFE
19. LEASES (continued) 19 fiE @
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBFAEEA @
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements FRNEESENREEREENT

during the year are as follows:

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®FT

Carrying amount at 1 January R1BE1EEREE 2,125,870 2,377,138
New leases MHEE 430 1,816
Accretion of interest recognised FRBEER

during the year F| B 18 15 123,871 143,560
Covid-19-related rent concessions B HFE A BICovid-19

from lessors ERATESEE - (11,469)
Other lease modifications HihiAE & (45,342) 43,018
Payments BN (436,967) (428,193)
Carrying amount at 31 December P12B31HVEREE 1,767,862 2,125,870
Analysed into: DA

Current portion mEIEE 296,821 318,115

Non-current portion IEREZB D 1,471,041 1,807,755
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 42 to HESBENIABEDTRENRMH
the financial statements. RRMIET420
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR RMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE
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19. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are
as follows:

19 HHE @

FEEFAEEA @
(c) FiRm PRI EHA BT -

2023 2022

20234 20224F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETIT

Interest on lease liabilities HEaBHE 123,871 143,560

Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEE

assets EMX 489,954 487,424

Expense relating to short-term leases B EAE E BN 2,042 6,508
Expense relating to leases of HEEEEERE

low-value assets AR 214 220

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 18% R AIELREE 616,081 637,712

(d) The total cash outflows for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in
notes 37(c) and 38, respectively, to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 18) consisting of
commercial properties and shop premises in Chinese Mainland under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB1,220,150,000 (2022: RMB1,158,859,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in the future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

@ BREESXMNIRGSMEEEEKRED
AEBNEEEBENRKIESR
RN RN ERE MBS M E37(c)
2381 &2 o

FERERHBEA

AEBRELEHEZHEHAEKREY
¥ (fsx18) » BIEMN T EAENE XY
EREFHEM ZEHEENERTFEX
A HEFEFRSTREERNIRTS
METEHHESHEE - RERNKTEEN
ERRHEEWA S ARK1,220,150,000
7T (2022 : AR #1,158,859,0007T) * &%
AN E e N

R2023FE12831H HEAEBEREHE
HEp 2 Ao K S HE B REL
HREAExENT

2022

20224F

RMB’000

IN=LE S

Within one year —FRN 935,610 884,961
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EFHF (EEEEN) 1,303,940 1,346,123
After five years AEE 472,443 616,997
Total 4Est 2,711,993 2,848,081
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERaR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023

B F20235F12A31HILEE
20. GOODWILL 20. HE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TFT AREFT
At 1 January: R1B18 :
Cost D% 1,769,920 1,769,920
Accumulated impairment RETRE (499,571) (447,668)
Net carrying amount R E 1,270,349 1,322,252
Cost at 1 January, net of R1BE1HBI A
accumulated impairment (xR EE) 1,270,349 1,322,252
Impairment provided during the year £ R {E 12 (9,818) (51,903)
Cost and net carrying amount R12831B AR
at 31 December IREFE 1,260,531 1,270,349
At 31 December: R12H318 :
Cost D% 1,769,920 1,769,920
Accumulated impairment RETRE (509,389) (499,571)
Net carrying amount IR E 1,260,531 1,270,349
Impairment testing of goodwill EERRERR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
following cash-generating units (‘CGUs”) for impairment testing:

e operation of department stores
e property development

e others
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR RMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

20. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
management. The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
ranged from 11% to 14% (2022: 11% to 14%). Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate
of 3% (2022: 3%). The key assumptions adopted on growth rates
and discount rates used in the value in use calculations are based on
management’s best estimates.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, a decrease in the growth
rate by 10% to 15% would cause the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit to be under its recoverable amount by approximately
RMB42,101,000 to RMB70,671,000, and any reasonably possible
change in the other key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based would not cause the cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs are
as follows:

20. HE @)

EERRERNR (@
EREESBUNTWNESEEREHAE
BotEEiRE - ZAEEERUBTERE
HWEAPAIENMEEEAREENIR
EREEA - FANIRE S RETEAIMIEE
BERNAP11%E14% (20225 © 11%E
14%) c AU LIRS REF PG
ER3%HEET (20224 1 3%) o st EERE
ERFTAEEXEREIREMRANEE
BREDENREEBMNREEMSST-

ANBEETRA WERTEIOBE
156% AJEEFERESTELFEMDN
EEHEERETKESTENOARE
42,101,0007c & AR #70,671,0007C » &
AJ UL Ol & 2B P ik 15 A B = BRER AT
MEEn A FERIREEELEN
MERmEEBAE D W(C|EEE o

PETFTERcEEBUNBHEREEN
T

Operation of

department Property
stores  development Others Total
BRERE MERRE Hith st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
At 31 December 2022 20221283160 1,184,849 83,047 1,653 1,270,349
At 31 December 2023 1220235F12831H 1,175,031 83,947 1,553 1,260,531

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the CGUs
for 31 December 2023 and 2022. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwiill:

Budgeted gross margins — Management has determined the
budgeted gross margins based on past performance and its
expectations for market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are after tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the respective units.

Furchase price inflation — Management has considered the possibility

of increases in purchase price inflation rang from nil to 5% (2022: nil
to 5%).
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SHE R 2023F K2022F 12831 HMIR
SELFBEUFEABERBZERR XU
THREEBTEETERBERENR
MRS REBIRNFRENSEBEIER

REEN-EEEBREBERFRER
M REEREEN -

HHEE-FRANRBRRENRIRE I
[ R BRI B (A Y55 E LR o

BEEAR-CEERABREBERL
HABEIAEMEATESY (20224F | BF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT R R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

20. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The values assigned to the key assumption on market development
of CGUs, discount rates and purchase price inflation are consistent
with external information sources.

Management performed impairment testing of goodwill annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. During the year ended 31
December 2023, due to the operating performance decline among
business units which affected the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit of Chengdu Maoye Renhe Spring, goodwill of
approximately RMB9,818,000 was impaired.

20.HE @)
EE R ERE @
HRSELTBEUNDHER EREER
BEEERNTEZRKRPTABERIND
BERRIE—-

BEBSFETHERENS W
RBEANIBRES BT IREED R
BRI BSAE M EIT RIS - B ZE2023F
12A31HLFE AR EHEUANKLE
RIBEE > FERERECHNERNIE
TEEBUZAWEEE  HHARKE
9,818,000 C YA EAL ERLE ©

21.0THER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2. HthE\ER B E
Computer software
sTEBEG

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ANR¥ET T

Cost at 1 January, net of P11 B1E M
accumulated amortisation (0Fs R 5HEH) 32,595 37,446
Additions NE 111 56
Amortisation provided during the year F I (4,928) (4,907)
At 31 December ®128318 27,778 32,595

At 31 December: R128318 :

Cost %N 111,094 110,983
Accumulated amortisation Rty (83,316) (78,388)
Net carrying amount REEE 27,778 32,595

Computer software is amortised on the straight-line basis over five to

ten years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

22.INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

2 NEETENRE

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20235 20224
12831H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTT AREEFTT
Share of net assets FELE EFE - -
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: AEBGETLEFBITRUOT -
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business to the Group activities
FEEEMN
RAENBET R FRE s
REVLTE RN E R, Bt TEEH
Jiangsu Qinghehong Beverage Ordinary shares of PRC/ 50% Beverage industry
Management Co., Ltd. (“Qinghehong Beverage”) RMB1 each  Chinese Mainland
IEENARREEERAR (TENARS) AR#1/EBR  PE/FEAE 50% i
23.INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 28. REHERTNKRE
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEFIT
At 1 January: i P=R =
Share of net assets FEMEE ZEFE 232,361 264,818
Goodwill on acquisition W s Ry 154,854 154,854
Accumulative impairment REHRE (24,382) -
Net carrying amount REFEE 362,833 362,833
Share of net assets during the year FEILENEEFE (8,789) (32,457)
Impairment provided during the year FRRERE (200,604) (24,382)
At 31 December: 128318 :
Share of net assets FEILE ZEFE 223,572 232,361
Goodwill on acquisition W R 2 154,854 154,854
Accumulated impairment REHRE (224,986) (24,382)
Net carrying amount IREFE 153,440 362,833
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023

HZFE2023F12831HIEFE
23.INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 23. REHERTINRE @)
Particulars of the material associate are as follows: BEEBERBFRIIRAOT
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business to the Group activities
FEEERN
FENBRT PR R
REGTE RDFHE  EMREEME Epalse TEER
Shenzhen UGO E-Commerce Co., Ltd. (‘UGO”) Ordinary shares of PRC/ 61.45% Electronic
RMB1 each  Chinese Mainland commerce
FNERBEETHEERAD (MBKE) AR /S8R PE/HEAE 61.45% BYE
(i) UGO () Bk
UGO is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the BREBANEENEEHITENS
electronic commerce industry. During the year, an impairment of BB -FR REBRBENKRERE
RMB200,604,000 (2022: RMB24,382,000) was provided for the Bt AR 1200,604,0007T (20224 :
investment in UGO. AR #524,382,0007T) ©
There is no change in the composition of the board of directors HZE2023F12831HILEE EF
of UGO for the year ended 31 December 2023. Management gWARSERELC BEEREALR
determines that the Group does not have control over UGO. EEEEBRBEIL MR
UGO is still considered an associate of the Group and was BRBDHEEARNEBERENERZ A
accounted for using the equity method. B MR mIAE AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

24.FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

24. £RGE

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
20234 20224
12H31H 12831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i GCREE =T
Equity investments designated EERULAABEFEREHE
at fair value through other gt A EME2EBEDN
comprehensive income: HmEE
Listed equity investments Th#ERRE 0] 570,160 555,705
Unlisted equity investments JFLEmEREE 0] 186,613 545,815
Subtotal et 756,773 1,101,520
Financial assets at fair value through M ARBEtEEEEH A
profit or loss: HEaNEMEE !
Listed equity investments LEhEmkE (D) 21,826 25,425
Other unlisted investments HMIELEHREE (i) 9,650 19,654

Subtotal /NEt 31,476 45,079

Total #ast 788,249 1,146,599

Notes: MIEE -

()  The equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through ) HRAEEDRAZSKREBNKEUELE
other comprehensive income as the Group considers these investments to At RGBT HEE D ZIEE R R E
be strategic in nature. During the year, the Group sold its equity interest in EEAUANEESEEHE G ARME
certain investment as this investment no longer coincided with the Group's AEWmE - FRN AEBHEERETEEN
investment strategy. The fair value on the date of sale was RMB44,927,000 B THHRIEERERAEENEERE
and the accumulated gain recognised in other comprehensive income of TE—B -REEBPENARBEAARE
RMB8,911,000 was transferred to retained earnings. 44,927,0007% > MR EM 2N EEIN Rt

Wzt AR 18,911,0007T B E B 1F & Al
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received dividends BE2023F 12831 HIEFE  AEBBEER
in the amounts of RMB4,836,000 (2022: RMB4,798,000) from invested R BEIINENR B A R 154,836,0007T (20224 :
companies. A #4,798,0007T) °
As at 31 December 2023, none of the Group’s unlisted equity investment HR2023F 128318 AEE W MIE LhER
(2022: Nil) was pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans as further 5 (20224F - ) 1E A A= MER1T BRVIE I
detailed in note 33. (FR B 5E33E— 2 55 4) ©

(i)  The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair value iy EMERBEDFEESE WOEAUAR

through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

(i)  The unlisted investments at 31 December 2023 were wealth management (il
products and precious metal products purchased from banks in Chinese
Mainland. They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5ER AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2023

HZFE2023F12831HIEFE
25. DEFERRED TAX 25 IRFEFLIE
Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are UTRERNEERBEEGBREENE
as follows: =Pl
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE
Deemed
Revaluation disposal of
of equity equity
Fair value investments investments
adjustment at fair value at fair value Amortisation
arising from ~ through other Revaluation  through other Deemed Deemed of prepaid Capitalisation
acquisition o comprehensive  of investment  comprehensive disposal of disposal of land lease Withholding of borrowing Government
a subsidiary income properties income a subsidiary an associate payments taxes costs grant Total
&
AN REERTEA
fBEHER WARBEHE
HERELT HZHA BHEEHA
EEY  EftRENE Eff2EREN RRE il Bfith g
DEERE MEERE  EfRENZ fakE HEL7 VG L Bhia LG BREY a3t
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB'000
AEETT NEETR NBETT NEETT AEETT \EETR NEETT NEETR AEETR \EETR NEETT
A1 Jenuary 2022 RoEIAR 1219422 1682 2431183 7380 - 4999 530 131,291 436,96 2,864 4,301,047

Defered tax charged(redited) to 763058/ (5

equiy durng the year ERhELRE - (1652) 253 - - - - - - - 788
Defered tax charged(credied) o EARGAERR

the consoldeted satementof 0%/ (611 49

proftorboss durng theyer — EEHE

(note 14) (=14) 72 - 2963 - 3361 (1,178) - 16,588 8,355 2210 11,160

A3t December 202and 2002512881 R
1 January 2023 ABEIFIR 1,147,701 - 2,490,352 7,380 3,361 382 2310 146,879 465,301 49,984 4,340,089

Defered tax chargedcredted) o A0,/ ()
quiy durng the year ity
Defered tax charged (credied) to A4} i
the consoldeted satementof 05/ (611 89
poftorloss duing teyear  ERERE
[rote 14) (HaHe) (54029) - 45816 - - - - 11,090 9316 (49.984) (37,785)

At31 December 2023 H03E128818 1,093,678 - 2,536,168 7380 3,361 382 25310 167,969 474617 - 4,302,304
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2023

B ZE2023F12831HIEFE
25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25, IRIERIE (48)
Deferred tax assets REIRIRE =
Revaluation
of equity
Losses investments
available for Unrealised at fair value
Provision for  Impairment offsetting  intercompany through other
Provisions retirement of current Lease against future transaction Advance from comprehensive
and accruals benefits assets liabilities ~taxable profits profit customers income Total
EftiEEA
NRAEE
RS HERHZH
Bk BIER nBEE FRERR FER HARMRE
ERER B& e 886 HENER  ADHEND BRER BanEERE gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEETR  ARETR  ARETx  AREBTR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2022 20021510 99,316 1512 1211 67,723 185,345 309,461 41,357 - 745,925

Deferred tax credited/{charged) o ERREEERFIA/
the consolidated statement of (k) MIRILHE

proft or oss during the year (zE14)

(note 14) 65,767) (142) 20,552 13,122 (37,562) 14,042 5288 - (48,467)
Deforred tax credited to squity AT AEREIELHE

during the year - - - - - - - 10,623 10,623

At 31 December 2022 and 1R202F12831H R
1 January 2023 0BE1E1H 33,549 1,370 63,763 80,845 147,783 323,503 46,645 10,623 708,081

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to - ERREAERRA/
the consolidated statement of (FR) MiESEAE

proft or oss during the year (FizE14)

(note 14) 50,148 (577) 14,908 6,053 (231) 2,253 120 - 12,674
Deforred tax credited to souity AT AEREIELHE

during the year - - - - - - - 72,228 72,228
At 31 December 2023 Ho03E12A318 83,607 793 78671 86,898 147,552 325,756 46,765 82851 852,983
The Group had tax losses of approximately RMB3,037,971,000 as AEEP2023FE12H831HIFEN AR
at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: RMB3,227,239,000), 3,037,971,0007T (2022F12H31H © A
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable R 153,227,239,0007T) NWIRIBEE IR 2%
profits. BRI R R ER R A ENRIBEER

R—EhFREm-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25. IRIEFRIE (&)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following item:

LL%ﬁlﬁﬁ?ﬁi/.ﬁt—F@Jlﬁﬁ%Eﬁﬁﬁ

Dle

31 December

31 December

MIARE

Tax losses

2023 2022
20234 20224
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKEEFIT
2,447,763 2,631,611

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

The Group has no recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses in 2023 (2022: RMB529,000), the utilisation of which
is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the profits
arising from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences.
The amount of deferred tax assets is based on the profit forecast
approved by the management of the Group.

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. The applicable rate is 5%
or 10% for the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the deferred tax liabilities of undistributed
profits not provided for amounted to RMB624,684,000 (31
December 2022: RMB598,808,000).

As at 31 December 2023, certain deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets have been offset in the consolidated statements of
financial position amounted to RMB12,918,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB28,486,000).

WENZEBBEDELERREE )
HEEBENNBE RS B EE—KRE
B 5B A NAB]AEE AL RSB FEER
MAELURHIR R IR -

A5 B FR2023F W L AR TE 5 1R FE 5k
AERMIEE E (20224 @ AR 529,000

7T) IRIERRIBEE EE B HHEBURIN R

R FERRF BB BIREWERR G

EREBLOIMEENF B BRILRIEEE

?;%%Egﬁ%«zk%@ SIEEHAEMNEF
ID o

ZK%%IB@EPﬂtB%E}ZEE’\]W%@E%M?
20081 81H ZTQEHGE&%U“;}EH

R M TBIRFT SR - A E BB ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
KA5%D10% o

R2023%F12831H ket B HH
ﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁh&ﬂ%@@ﬁlﬁ%%%)\%
624,684,0007T (20224128318 : A
#£598,808,0007T) °

HARF

R2023FE12831H BT REAARE
12,918,0007T (2022&12%31 EI )\EW

EEE DR #?éﬁﬁ“#lk/ﬁ%%ﬂtﬂﬁﬁf] °

26.INVENTORIES 26. 78

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

20234 20224

12831H 12831H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ANR¥ETFIT

Merchandise for resale AEERE R 294,249 358,086
Provision against slow-moving inventories T? S BB (4,957) (5,599)
Total 4Est 289,292 352,487
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

26.INVENTORIES (continued)

27.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

Movements in the provision against slow-moving inventories are as
follows:

26. 75 @)

FENRKERFEZFHUT

2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBEFT
At 1 January »1B1H 5,599 5,599
Amount written off during the year F R (642) -
At 31 December M12H31H 4,957 5,599
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 27. B EhYE
2022
20224
Notes RMB’000
= ARETF T
Land lease prepayments, at cost THFAETEA R (R
At 1 January M1A1H 2,902,888 2,931,882
Additions wnE 34,633 -
Transfer to right-of-use assets EREPEEEE 19(a) - (12,513)
Transfer to completed properties held BEREESAEEE
for sale (S5 -3p%YES = (16,481)
At 31 December M12H31H 2,937,521 2,902,888
Development expenditure, at cost FREEST H (IR AS)
At 1 January 1818 2,583,843 2,382,195
Additions wNE 421,181 730,966
Transfer to property, plant and equipment B EY) % iR KR H 17 - (41,681)
Transfer to completed properties held BREEEAEE
for sale (=5 3%7/ES - (487,637)
Transfer to investment properties EBEREREYE 18 (149,671) -
At 31 December M12H31H 2,855,353 2,683,843
5,792,874 5,486,731

The Group’s properties under development are held under medium
term leases and are situated in Chinese Mainland.

Details of the Group’s properties under development pledged to
secure the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are set out in note
33.

AEEBERPYETREPIHBLOR

B WAL PRI RE -

FEBBHEBIR

TEM

RN EER

R EBFEHIMIEES3

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED &2 BIBRZER B RA T

203



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

28.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 28. RN B Z IR R EIR

31 December

31 December

2023 2022

20235 20224
12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ANR¥ETFIT

Trade and bills receivables B E 5 w18 44,028 45,088

Impairment BE (17,218) (16,757)
Net carrying amount REFEE 26,810 28,331

The Group’s revenue from the direct sales of merchandise are
mainly on a cash basis. The credit terms offered to customers of
the Group’s sale of properties are generally three months to one
year. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and bills
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade and bills
receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice dates, is as follows:

AEEERBETROBATELURS
mERE KERNYEHERHETER
NEER—RA=ZERE-—F -8UK
FHERSEEREE AEESKERK
BEBBRRRITEBES TRERE
EERIEPIURBEERR SHREE
[B & E BB AR B A AE B o BB HY L SCP At
RAEBRKEZRBERRE I RAE
SREERNEE WUBEREDE
EER - AEBE I E BN E 5 RER
REEFEFRTA TR R EMIER
EEHEN -BWEZRERERERR -

REERER BRBEZRARRELE
RHBAMRE DU

31 December

31 December

2023 2022

20235 20224

12H831H 12831H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AE®BTT AREEF T

Within 60 days 60H A 15,581 15,534
61 to 90 days 61E90H 1,774 1,045
91 to 180 days 91E180H 314 394
181 to 270 days 181F270H 1,360 1,418
271 to 360 days 271E360H 4,617 4,613
Over 360 days #848360H 20,382 22,084
44,028 45,088
Impairment HE (17,218) (16,757)
Total st 26,810 28,331
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

28.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

28. BB ZRIERRZ ()
S U B2 53 7R T B R S 4R S B 4

T
2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

At 1 January M1A1H 16,757 15,379
Impairment (note 11) BE (HFEE11) 461 1,378
At 31 December M12H31H 17,218 16,757

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type and
customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

REWRES BB A RERETHE
D Ut ETRIEE BB - BERLE
REAEUBEEANZEZR DD
A8 (B EmiER ~ & R 5 RF4R) BV
HHBGE R - ZstERRICKRE BT
SHB BTSN EA0R MR R KL
BRRBRANGERDIEER

TXEIEAAERRBEGERRESE
MW B ZRENEERRER

142023%F12831H

Past due
bl
1to 6 6 months 1 year Over
months to1year to3years 3 years
1£6f8F 6fARE1F 123 HBIR3E
Expected credit loss rate BHREEEBIENE 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREHE (AR T ) 17,669 5,977 3,210 17,172 44,028
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEERE ARETT) 18 12 16 17,172 17,218
As at 31 December 2022 20225 12H31H
Past due
panks
1t06 6 months 1 year Over
months to1year 1o 3years 3 years Total
1268 6EBZEIFE 1EE3EF HBIB3E 18t
Expected credit loss rate BHREEBENZE 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REEE (ARETFT) 16,973 6,031 5,385 16,699 45,088
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  TEEAEEEE (ARET ) 17 13 28 16,699 16,757
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERaR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

29. FA{ITRIE » H R IE R H At
BE

OTHER ASSETS
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
12831H 12H31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 55 AR T ARFTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Prepayments FEfTFRIE 116,099 115,042
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments TE(IRRIE 292,922 284,303
Deposits and other receivables from REFFFEBATDNERER
non-related companies HhpEW A 0] 1,862,605 1,978,098
Deposits and other receivables from RERBABENEE R
related companies HhpE k1A 683,047 661,865
2,838,574 2,924,266
Impairment of other receivables from EEE)YNEIL)
non-related companies HuhEu g/ & (176,711) (117,249)
Impairment of other receivables from KB BN
related companies HhfEWEIER(E (85,446) (85,234)
(262,157) (202,483)
Total 4mst 2,576,417 2,721,783

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

HEWRIE R EEREFHEEEIT ¢

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®FT

At 1 January R1B1H 202,483 126,814
Impairment losses, net (note 11) BERERE (EE11) 59,674 78,151
Amount written off as uncollectible EIEIER % - (2,482)
At 31 December ®12831H 262,157 202,483
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 29. FA{ITRIE ~ HAth RIS TR IE R Ho Ath
OTHER ASSETS (continued) BE @

The balances due from related companies included in the above are EXFrE WM A SSRUT

as follows:

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
20235 20224
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFTT ARETFIT
Immediate holding company BERERAT 28,411 27,599
Fellow subsidiaries EEN PG 138,625 118,255
Companies significantly influenced by RARNFESR
a director of the Company BAEENRT 516,011 516,011
Impairment of other receivables from R ERAM QBN
related companies Hh W IE R E (85,446) (85,234)
Total #ast 597,601 576,631

20235128318 » EtEWEIES B IEFE
U ZE I A TE A R #5167,665,0007T (20224 ©
AR #162,124,0007t) > R EIEER - FEUR
AT E S BRI ESSWEEEE B

° Eﬂ'\)\}f{
FEF)EB.5%FE10%T B c EMBN —FRNHE
;Eo

(i)  Included in other receivables as at 31 December 2023 is an amount due )
from Commercial City of RMB167,665,000 (2022: RMB162,124,000), which
includes the loans, related interest receivable and total interest penalty income.
The loans bear interest at 6.5% to 10% per annum. The loans are repayable in
one year.

The remaining balances due from other related companies are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

FEUS H thREA A B R IBRI BF T B8 ) A
IR R R RN ERFEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 29, FE{HRRIE ~ Hth FEUGR B R H At
OTHER ASSETS (continued) BE @
As at 31 December 2023, financial assets included in prepayments, R2023%12H31H » st ATBTRIE
other receivables and other assets were in Stage 1, and a HEMHEKFERAEAMEENSHE
provision for impairment of RMB262,157,000 was provided (2022: EERE—BE BERAEREEA
RMB202,483,000). Details of impairment assessment of financial 262,157,000 (20224 : AR
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets 202,483,0007T) ° BRAE £2023F 128
for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 42. S1HIEFEST ATEITRIE - M E W
BEREMEENSME ENRES G
1BE N FIEE42 0
The impairment of other receivables from related companies FR2023F12831H  REEB AN E
amounted to RMB85,446,000 at 31 December 2023 (31 December fth & R IR BB 743 A R 1585,446,0007T
2022: RMB85,234,000), which includes the impairment of the (20224128318 : AR 85,234,000
balances due from Shenyang Maoye Property Co., Ltd., Shenzhen 7o) BIEREERREBERRAS
Demao Investment Enterprises and Shenzhen Hezhengmao AIERRELERFIGERKREDR
Investment Enterprise in the amounts of RMB55,457,000, EWNBELE DR A AR 55,457,000
RMB20,626,000 and RMB8,248,000 (31 December 2022: T ANR20,626,0000 & AR
RMB55,457,000, RMB20,626,000 and RMB8,248,000), respectively. 8,248,0007T (20225 12H31H | AR

55,457,0007% ~ A R #20,626,000715 5K A
R 18,248,0007T) ©

The carrying amounts of the remaining other receivables that were IR 38 HR 7R AR R {8 B9 o B E A FE WURIEBR
neither past due nor impaired relate to other debtors for whom there B (B 8 H T AR B 16 KA A =AY
was no recent history of default. BHABR-

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 0. RELKRSEBEYURLIEIRER
DEPOSITS

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

20234 20224F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR®BFIT

Cash and bank balances R RIRTH R 722,822 556,293
Pledged deposits EHIFE™R 245,519 368,728
968,341 925,021
Less: Pledged bank balances for B RTEREIEEFIRITAR
construction in progress (176,299) (283,351)
Pledged bank balances for mortgages ABIIRIRIFNIRIT SRR (21,770) (21,276)
Pledged time deposits for BERABEEERETFN
housing fund loans TE BRTF K = (52)
Pledged bank balances for bank loans AIRTERIRRIIRITAEER (12,486) -
Frozen bank deposits BERARITER (32,888) (60,725)
Pledged time deposit for bank RIRTTERREHBIETRDN
acceptance bills EHGER - (1,880)
Others Hith (2,076) (1,444)
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 722,822 556,293
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Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 30. RE RIRNEZEBEYURIRIRER

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

DEPOSITS (continued)

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits were
denominated in the following currencies:

€)

FEBNREERIRESEBYURKBITRZ
RIS EES)R

31 December

31 December

2023 2022

20234 20224

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREEFIT

RMB AR 966,004 920,710
Hong Kong dollar BT 2,109 3,936
Others Hih 228 375
Total 4Est 968,341 925,021

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB966,004,000
(81 December 2022: RMB920,710,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Chinese Mainland's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one month and six months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
time deposit rates. The bank balances and bank deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

HERSHR AEEBUARBEN
IRE K IRTT 8RR A A K 18966,004,0007T
(20225128310 : AE%920,710,000
7T cRAREEIBEHSHBMREME
s SR 2 AR5 R B K BE (ONEE B IR A1)
RGEE EERMESERTE) ~EHR
EEBBRIEEETINEEFNIRITHE
ARBERBAHMER

BT S 20R § 0 IRIT I RA EHT
B8 o EBERARN T —E A E A
T% o BT AEBH RS HRME
b L4 A FE 0 2 BB 77 R S B R 8 o 98
(TR BRAIRT 12 3 B 1 ANTHR N S48 %
P B RIFARITHR o
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

31.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

1. BN EZREKRER

BNESREREBREERSHRZER
HBYERES DATWT :

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

2023%F 20224
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AEETF T

Within 90 days 90H ™ 869,889 1,136,461
91 to 180 days 91%E180H 124,863 54,445
181 to 360 days 181E360H 90,068 69,252
Over 360 days 360H U L 373,340 340,462
Total Kast 1,458,160 1,600,620

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
within 90 days.

The Group’s bills payable amounted to RMB400,000 as at 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: RMB28,464,000).

210 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ B2 R 5 RA T
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R2023FE 12831 H  ZEBRNENEZE

# AR #400,0007T (2022F12H31H -
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Year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F12H31HIEFEE
32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED, 2.8 8E u&#&% FEst &R K
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES Hth R
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20234%F 20226
12831H 12H31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
g4 ARBTT ABEBT T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRNBABINER (b) 4,720,040 4,115,960
Other payables HA TR IE 203 212
Total “Est 4,720,243 4,116,172
Current liabilities nEaRE
Contract liabilities BHa’E (@) 1,778,563 1,758,677
Deferred revenue EIEUA 112,892 108,684
Deposits received BlizE 734,588 730,379
Accrued operating lease rental expenses  TBIRAS ST 145,920 126,643
Accrued utilities TEIR A MR 2 46,851 46,927
Accrued liabilities TEIRE B 196,185 210,303
Accrued staff costs EiREEMRX 45,533 47,978
Provision for coupon liabilities milsaGEEE 63,320 66,639
Value-added tax and other tax payables IBER R EMESRIE 377,936 367,629
Payables for construction EBRITREEMNTUE 1,811,054 1,931,981
Loans from the immediate holding company ;ls 5 HEERABNER (b) 580,600 535,482
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REBERNBRBRNER (b) 849,170 634,786
Loan from a company significantly KEZAERA 7%%%?@“
influenced by a director of the Company ~ FYATIRER (b) 902,707 838,841
Claim provisions RIERE 63,236 62,209
Other payables HAt TR © 926,998 1,000,342
Total 4mst 8,635,553 8,467,500
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED,

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

(@) Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

R2.5Ha8F -BEREE -EBAERK
Eﬁﬂﬁ'EﬁTAIE (&)
M3
@ BHNaEFBENT:

31 December 31 December 1 January

2023 2022 2022

2023F12H31H 2022F12831H 20225E181H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREBFT AREBTT

Sale of properties YIHEHE 717,181 630,294 703,073
Sale of prepaid cards HEBMNF 1,061,382 1,128,383 1,106,554
Total contract liabilities B BEEST 1,778,563 1,758,677 1,809,627

Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver properties and presale
of prepaid cards. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2023 and 2022 was
mainly due to the decrease in short-term advances received from customers in

relation to the sale of properties at the end of the year.

BHEEEENR ﬁ%%&i‘é‘%ﬁﬁﬂﬂi
BYEATR 0 20234 K202 B aER D T
mwmm%m%umm;ah,ﬁﬂﬂﬂm

/1N
Lo

(b) The balances due to related companies included in the above are as follows: b stALEXHIEMEBABGEROT -

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

20234 20224

12H31H 12831H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

The immediate holding company BHEERAR 588,828 543,828

Fellow subsidiaries EEN ) YAS| 5,619,956 4,781,691
Companies significantly influenced by SARNBEFTEATLE

a director of the Company AT 902,707 838,841

Total 4Bt 7,111,491 6,164,360

Included in the balance due to the immediate holding company is an
amount of RMB580,600,000 (31 December 2022: RMB535,482,000) which
includes the loan from Maoye Department Store Investment Limited of

RMB417,330,000 and the related interest at 7.00% per annum.
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[ENEEERADEGTEE—FARKE
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Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED,
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

(continued)

Included in the balances due to fellow subsidiaries is an amount of
RMB5,569,210,000 (31 December 2022: RMB4,750,746,000) which
includes the loan from Shenzhen Maoye (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Maoye Group”) of RMB4,480,540,000 and the related interest payable,
the loan from Chongde Property Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. of
RMB239,500,000 and the related interest payable, the loan from Maoye
Group Limited of RMB149,430,850 and the related interest payable. The
loan of RMB4,480,540,000 bears interest at 4.75% per annum, the loan
of RMB239,500,000 bears interest at 3.85% per annum, and the loan of
RMB149,430,850 bears interest at 7.00% per annum.

The loans from Shenzhen Maoye Group of RMB4,480,540,000 and from
Chongde Property Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. of RMB239,500,000
are due in 3 years and included in other non-current liabilities. The other loans
mentioned above are all repayable in one year.

During the year, the loan interest expenses mentioned above amounted to
RMB244,781,000 (2022: RMB221,536,000).

Included in the balance due to companies significantly influenced by a director
of the Company is an amount of RMB902,707,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB838,841,000) which includes a loan amounting to RMB200,000,000 and
the related interest and penalty payable. The loan bears interest at 8.79% per
annum and an interest penalty at 0.05% per day.

The remaining balances due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and will generally mature within
one year.

32.

gHEaE- BB EBiERAR
Btz @

Mk . (4&)

b @&

EERRMNBADGEGRTEE—SARE
5,569,210,0007T (20224128310 : AR
4,750,746,0007T) » BIFEZR BIRIRE (B E)
BRMERAT (GRINKEER) WARKE
4,480,540,0007c & = EMEERE (R AR
ATM AR 15239,500,00077 LA Kz 48 B8 FE 1+
MNEUREEREEAERATHERA
E#5149,430,8507T S ABRAFE S B o ARHE
4,480,540,0007c N E RIS F 24, 75% 51 B~
A R #239,500,00009 & 7% £ ) %3.85% 51
B mAR149,430,85070 89 & Rz E F) =
7.00%5T 8 ©

RERYIZE EE) RODEBERATNERA
R #4,480,540,00070 K& =B £ B 12 G
BIRABNEN AR 1239,500,0007TH =4
REIRR WAAIERB & & L EMER
—FEREER

FER> LMERAEREY A ARK244,781,000
7T (20224 © AR 15221,536,0007T) ©

EASAADEZTEAFENADEHTE
& AR #5902,707,0007T (20224123318 © A
K 15838,841,0007T) > % EBEIEEMAR
200,000,0007t & FEfS B BRI E K S c 7N
FREFIZES.79% 5t B R B R0.05%M S 8

FEFSRAR A B AEERBIER T 2300 B EEIRIF
B RERFEE-

Hitnfe I RIERRE > —RI—FANEIE -
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HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER 33. st REIRTTEM R HMER
BORROWINGS
2023 2022
2023 20204
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BIRAIZ(%) IR ARETT BEEGERY BB ARETR
Current K
Interest-bearing bank loans - secured 5t 8 SETEH-HiEH 3.36-6.09 2024 3499900  4.36-6.50 2023 3,699,000
Current portion of long term R ERITER
interest-bearing bank loans BRI
- secured -BiEH 3.90-6.55 2024 3,438,655 4.55-6.60 2023 2,904,271
Current portion of a corporate bond AT EXENEAE A
— unsecured (a) — &) - 4.94 2023 299,501
Total-current et 3R 6,938,555 6,902,772
Non-current JEEngR
Non-current portion of HERTERN
interest-bearing bank loans FEEEE D
- secured ~BiEH 3.90-6.55  2025-2035 4,858,605 4.35-6.60  2024-2035 5,961,510
Total-non-current et 3R 4,858,605 5,961,510
Total Bzt 11,797,160 12,864,282
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20234 20224
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AR®BFIT
Analysed into: DUT
Bank and other loans repayable: IRITREMEEEER
Within one year —FRN 6,938,555 6,902,772
In the second year RE_FE 731,915 3,184,100
In the third to fifth years, inclusive REZFEFHE
(EEEMEFTR) 1,827,815 800,250
Beyond five years RAEEL E 2,298,875 1,977,160
Total 4ast 11,797,160 12,864,282
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B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@

(©

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

On 4 August 2020, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha completed the issuance of
bonds with a total principal amount of RMB600,000,000 on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange of the PRC. The corporate bonds were issued in two
categories. Category 1 carries interest at 4.79% per annum, payable annually
on 4 August in arrears, and has a term of up to 2 years at maximum. Category
2 carries interest at 4.94% per annum, payable annually on 4 August in
arrears, and has a term of up to 3 years at maximum. Category 1 was repaid
on 1 August 2022, and category 2 was repaid on on 4 August 2023.

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

()  certain land and buildings of the Group with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB2,848,349,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB3,699,504,000);

(i)  certain investment properties of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB9,994,474,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB9,059,790,000);

(i) certain right-of-use assets of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB208,836,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB233,379,000);

(iv) certain properties under development of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB1,955,768,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB1,929,583,000); and

(v) certain stocks of Maoye Commercial with a carrying amount of
RMB620,500,000 (31 December 2022: RMB999,600,000).

All borrowings are in RMB in 2023. Except for the secured bank loan
of RMB74,214,000 which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, all
borrowings were in RMB in 2022.

Except for the bank loans with a carrying amount of RMB6,215,590,000 (31
December 2022: RMB8,392,478,000) at fixed interest rates, all borrowings
bear interest at floating interest rates.

33. s BIRITERM KR EH B @

PI5E

@

HR20205E8 340  FYILEMERFE LS
BERGFTERET—HASEBEAARE
600,000,0007c YA BIES o A BMEHIZME
K87 BT o SER1324.79% M EF K5t B~ D HA
NEERNSHAR I FHRE AME 485
234 Q4% EF| K51 B DEIN S ERI8H4
B3 FHRZ A= F 885172202288
1B R EERI2BE 2023840 FH

FEENETRITERAUTEERR

) ZEEBEBFENEARE
2,848,349,0007T (20224128318 : AR
#3,699,504,0007T) ME T LHIKIEF ;

i) “EBEEABFELEARE
9,994,474,0007T (202246128318 : AR
#9,059,790,0007t) A TIREMYE ;

(i) AEEEREFELNSARI208,836,000
7t (2022512831 H : AR #5233,379,000
70 WETEREEE ;

vy ZEBEBFENEARE
1,955,768,0007T (20224E12831H : AR
#1,929,583,0007T) WETERTYIE ;
hd

V) FEEFEEEMNIREEAR620,500,00070
(2022124318 : AR15999,600,000
7o) ME TR o

2023FFTBEERUAR B EHE © FR2022F A
174,214,000t I B IRIBFIRTERUE T
sHESN FiBEREA AR

MREREE A AR£6,215,590,0007T (2022412
HA318 : AR#8,392,478,0007T) MUERITER
BEEMNE BN FAAETRERFEIANE
R
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER 33. ;T EIRITEFRREMER @

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

In addition, Shenzhen Maoye Group, Chongde Property Management (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd., Chongging Maoye Real Estate Co., Ltd., Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Mrs. Huang
Jingzhang (spouse of Mr. Huang Mao Ru), and Mr Lin Zhen Xiong have guaranteed
certain of the Group’s bank loans with a total amount of RMB5,399,750,000 (31
December 2022: RMB6,267,215,000) as at the end of the reporting year.

The Group had the following undrawn banking facilities at the year end:

MisE (8

IESh > FASRE R ORI E (EFE) ~ RENEE
B (R BRAR - EEXEMERRAT T
WA SR T ERNAEREE) R EHT
A REELEEEA AR 15,399,750,0007T ( 20224
128318 : AR16,267,215,00070) FUE TIRITE
THEMHIER

FR AEEFE TIIREAORITRERE :

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

20235 20224

128318 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREBF T

Amount of undrawn banking facilities HARERIRITIREREE 421,100 50,000

34.PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34. RIREFEE

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

20235 20224

12H31H 12831H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETF T AREFIT

Defined benefit obligations ARERAEE 4,581 6,891
Less: Current portion of retirement benefits 3 : IR KABF AR EN S (458) (630)
Total #Est 4,123 6,261

The Group and the Company provide certain of the eligible staff with
post-retirement benefits pursuant to a retirement benefit plan. The
plan is funded solely by the Group on an actual payment basis.

The latest actuarial valuation of the plan was carried out on 31

December 2023 by the Willis Towers Watson Company, using the
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.
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Year ended 31 December 2023

B ZE2023F12831HIEFE
34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34. BRIREFEE @
(continued)
The principal actuarial assumption used as at the end of the RREPRRMEANEEBERREHI
reporting period is as follows: W
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
20235 20224
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TFT AREFT
Discount rate IR 2.50% 2.75%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 31 FR2023F 12831 H  EARBREHNEEH
December 2023 is shown below: REDHTHRAOT -
Decrease in Increase in
net defined net defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligation in rate obligation
RERNER RERNEE
L b7 BEEL LR TR SBEEIE AN
Discount rate FIRE 0.25% (85) 0.25% 88
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a T AESMERREBETERRNRS
method that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit obligation BREBEENSEEHHATENETZF
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at BB B HE S ATMEE
the end of the reporting period.
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit RiFeERREGEE2E R ERERN
or loss and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in BREETEIAEZ BN -

respect of the plan are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

20234 20224
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT ARBETFIT

Interest cost FE A 181 196
Net benefit expenses BA S HRE 181 196
Recognised in finance costs A RLE AL A HEER 181 196
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34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(continued)

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations are as follows:

34 RAEHEE @

REBMEENRELIHUT :

2023 2022

2023 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBEFT

At 1 January M1B1H 6,891 7,459
Interest cost FE A 181 196
Past service cost BEMRFE A (2,072 -

Pension payments made BERARE (855) (76)

Benefit expenses (reversed)/recognised in - REMEE WG (&) TR

other comprehensive income a2 (64) (688)

At 31 December 128318 4,581 6,891

The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value AEBHNETASTHEELANEBEED

of plan assets are as follows: wmr
2022 20224
Pension cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains in other comprehensive income
HABERERERE SARMEENENE N ENE
Actuarial
changes Sub-fotal
Sub-total arising from included
included changes in other
1 January Net in prof Bengft ~ infinencil  Experience comprehensive 31 December
202 inferest or loss paid  assumptions  adjustments income 2022
REHER STAEH
N0 SABRN EEMIELH 2ENEN N0E
1818 FIEEE N8 SRR BEET £ESEE NGB 12B318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000
AEETR  ARETR  ARETn  \RBTR  \RETn  \RETn  ARETn  ARBTn
Defind beneft oblgations AERIER 7459 19 19 75) (689 - (686) 6,801
Beneft by BHER 7459 1% 19 ) 1669 - (669 6891
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B F2023F12A31HILEE
34.PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34. RAERIBHE @
(continued)
2023 20234
Pension cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains in other comprehensive income
iABRNERERK AR ENENERH ENE
Actuarial
changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from included
Past included changes in in other
1 January Net service in profit Benefit financial  Experience comprehensive 31 December
028 interest cost orloss paid assumptions  adjustments income 028
HEB R tARf
NRE Bam  HAREN L hil] 2EhEN NRE
1B1B R R 38 Bt REHI g 38 128310
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AB%Tn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETm  ARETR  ARBETm  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Defned beneft obigatons FERAEL 6,891 181 (2072 (1,891 (355) (64 - (64 4581
Beneft oy BHaR 6,891 181 (207) (1891) (355) (64 - (64) 4581
35.1SSUED CAPITAL 35. B #1TRR 4
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
2023 20224
12831H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T [EUNSEESE
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
5,140,326,000 (31 December 2022: 5,140,326,0008% (20224
5,140,326,000) ordinary shares of 12831H : 5,140,326,000/%)
HK$0.10 each SREEC.I0ETZEER 514,033 514,033
Equivalent to RMB’000 FEARETT 460,153 460,153
During the year, there was no movement in issued capital. RER BHTRAREZS-
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

36. RESERVES

37.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 103 to 104 of the financial
statements.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC subsidiary
of the Group is required to allocate 10% of its profit after tax to
the statutory surplus reserve until such reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital of the PRC subsidiary. Subject to certain
restrictions set out in the PRC Company Law, part of the statutory
surplus reserve may be converted to increase paid-up capital/issued
capital of the PRC subsidiary, provided that the remaining balance
after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash deductions to the
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB44,912,000 (2022:
non-cash additions of RMB33,365,000) and RMB44,912,000
(2022: non-cash additions of RMB33,365,000), respectively, in
respect of lease arrangements for lands and buildings.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

36. A

REBRFIPR EEZHESTERE
REFIHRREIOSE1VM4BE iz SR &
BERETY o

REBEPEAE L FEENTEMEAR
BIABHERRBANEZ10%EEER
AR ERARERTENB ARG
A4 250% ° IRIFPEA B EFTE Z
ATIRS B AEBERAIR 0J 855318
B ABNEREER BETRA
EERCRBFEREAFIONEMRREZ
25%°

37. G EREMEBRME

(a) EXIERERS
RER REBB I RIEFTHWHEE
ZHDRNERREERIAEaES
JEIR SR A R #544,912,0007T (2022
F I IFREHRE A AREESS,365,000
70) B AR #844,912,0007T (20224 : JE
B&AE ARE33,365,0007T) °

b) BEFBFIEERRNES

Loans from
Bank and fellow Dividend Interest Lease
other loans  subsidiaries payable payable liabilities Total
RERZ
TR MEAR
HtER  BANER EftRE FEHE HEaR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTr ARt ARETn ARETR ARETR ARET:
At 1 January 2023 20231810 12,864,282 4,925,764 - 846,394 2,125,870 20,762,310
Changes from financing  RERIER & MENEE
cash flows (1,067,122) 603,701 (47,954) (669,319) (436,967) (1,617,661)
New lease HHE - - - - 430 430
Interest expense Gtk - - - 841,417 123,871 965,288
Final dividend FHRE - - 47,954 - - 47,954
Reassessment and ERRIE S
revision of lease terms - - - - (45,342) (45,342)
Interest capitalised FEER( - - - 84,384 - 84,384
At 31 December 2023 1A2023%E12831H 11,797,160 5,529,465 - 1,102,876 1,767,862 20,197,363
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Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 7. EZERERERMT @
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MEEBFIELESGENES @
(continued)

Loans from
Bank and fellow Interest Lease
other loans subsidiaries payable liabilities Total
REFZ
IR HEAs
EtE BEANEDR FERFIE HEaR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2022 #2022 1810 14,314,869 4,850,064 606,514 2,377,138 22,148,585
Changes from financing  REREREHENEE

cash flows (1,450,587) 75,700 (748,215) (428,193 (2,551,09)
New lease HHE - - - 1,816 1,816
Interest expense R MY - - 906,750 143,560 1,050,310
Covid-19-related rent 7R 8 % A #Covid-19

concessions from Vizleoh il

lessors - - - (11,469) (11,469)
Reassessment and B RETRERR

revision of lease terms - - - 43,018 43,018
Interest capitalised FEERIE - - 81,345 - 81,345
At 31 December 2022 120226128318 12,864,282 4,925,764 846,304 2125870 20762310
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflows for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of
cash flows is as follows:

7.z HRERERME ®

() HERERHELE

SPARERERNEERERHE

CELI

2023 2022
20234 20224F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARMEF T

Within operating activities R RN (2,256) (6,728)
Within financing activities =i (436,967) (428,193)
(439,223) (434,921)

38. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following contractual commitments at the end of
the reporting year:

38. K5

FEBRBREFRBUTEHIEGE !

31 December

Bt RIBFETAY
BR 1B

Contracted, but not provided for,
in respect of land and buildings

31 December

2023 2022
20234 20224F
12831H 128318
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR¥FT ARMEFTT
2,621,177 3,010,278
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Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 39. Bl 7532 5 B 4568

(a) In addition to transactions detailed in note 39(d) to the financial (a) =M BRILEF 75 3R & MY EE39(d) Py 4t
statements, the Group had the following transactions with R REBHREABSETT T
related parties during the year: TR 5 -

2023 2022
2023%F 20226
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

e ARETR ARETT

Management fee income from the #&&H &S EIREHY
operation of department stores: ~ EIEEIIA :

Wuxi Maoye Property Co., Ltd. BHREEEERAR
Shopping Centre Branch EMHRLD R (i) & (v) 865 113
Shenzhen Maoye Group FINREER (i) & (iv) 257 -
Shenyang Maoye Real Estate BRREEEXBRAT
Co., Ltd. Jinlang Branch EBARE (i) & (iv) 45 -
Chongde Property SEMEEE () BRAR
Management (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. () & (V) 30 -
1,197 113
Promotion and advertising expenses E & & E &%
Shenzhen Shijin Business Consulting  F3Itt £B EEHmERAT
Co., Ltd. ("Shenzhen Shijin”) (MYt <)) (vii) & (ix) 1,767 3,606
Maintenance expenses for elevators B4 EE L H
Shenzhen Zhongzhao Building FNFIIEFREZERAE
Technology Co., Ltd. (i) & (ix) 1,874 2,054
Purchases of parts for elevators ~ HE B34
Shenzhen Zhongzhao Building FINRREFHEBRAT
Technology Co., Ltd. i 984 1,932
Property management fee MEEEE
Chengdu Shuangliu Chongde Times ~ Bi#B & = EEE R4 %
Property Management Co., Ltd. BEBRAE (i) & (ix) 5,076 -
Loans from: AUTEAEANER
Shenzhen Maoye Group FINREER )& W) 1,122,580 831,000
Chongde Property Management SEMEEE (FI)
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. BRAF ) 51,000 270,000
Shenzhen Oriental Times Industry FNTHELRLES
Co., Ltd. BXBRAT 0] 19,600 300,000
Maoye Department Store REBERERRAT
Investment Limited (ii) 1,463 -
1,194,643 1,401,000
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 39. B/ 3 5 Bl4E 6 @)

(continued)

(a) In addition to transactions detailed in note 39(d) to the financial (@) =R BRI 7R & M 5E39(d) Pt
statements, the Group had the following transactions with R REBBREABHETTT
related parties during the year: (continued) FR5 (&)

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B sE AEBFR AR¥EF T
Repayment of loans to: AUTEHEEEN
Shenzhen Maoye Group FINREER i) & W) 549,500 782,000
Chongde Property Management SEMEEE (FI)
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. BRAF (i) 20,000 201,300
Shenzhen Oriental Times Industry AR RRES
Co., Ltd. EEERAT 0] 19,600 342,000
Maoye Department Store REBEREERAT
Investment Limited (ii) 1,829 -
590,929 1,325,300
Interest expense on loans from: AUTEHEBEAERNF SRS
Shenzhen Maoye Group FINXEEE & W 196,811 179,440
Maoye Group Limited REEBRERAT 0] 10,519 9,868
Chongde Property Management SEMEERE (R
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. BRAE ) 7,927 4,289
Shenzhen Oriental Times Industry FNBELRLES
Co., Ltd. EEERAF (i - 249
Maoye Department Store REREREERLAHE
Investment Limited (ii) 29,524 27,690
244,781 221,536
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Year ended 31

December 2023

HZE2023F12H31HIEFEE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES  39. fik 5 32 5 Bl 48R (@)

(continued)

(@ In

addition to transactions detailed in note 39(d) to the financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year: (continued)

(@) F

R oh o A E R T &
G )

532 5

P9 BRUE B 35 3% 5 Y 52 39(d) P 2t
TITF

2023 2022
20235 20225
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i AEBFR AREFT
Banking facilities guaranteed by:c T?‘JEﬁHﬁ‘ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ'ﬁEﬁ'ﬁ?ﬁ :
Shenzhen Maoye Group RYNREER (i) & (vi) 2,802,000 2,102,000
Mr. Huang Mao Ru and Mrs. Huang ”“ﬂﬂf‘ﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁi
Jingzhang jointly and severally HRERAER]) (i) & (vi) 4,758,000 5,834,214
Chongaing Maoye Real Estate EEXEMERRAR
Co., Ltd. () & (v - 550,000
Chongde Property Management SENEERE (R BRAF
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (i) & (vi) 200,000 200,000
Mr. Lin Zhen Xiong MEESLE (vi) & (vil) 60,000 60,000
7,820,000 8,746,214

(vi)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

They are fellow subsidiaries of the Company.
It is the immediate holding company of the Company.
Mr. Huang Mao Ru is a director of the Company.

The management fee income from the operation of a
department store was determined based on the underlying
contract as agreed between the Group and fellow
subsidiaries of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Maoye
Shangsha obtained loans from Shenzhen Maoye Group
amounting to RMB1,122,580,000 with an annual
interest rate of 4.75%, and repaid a principal amount of
RMB549,500,000.

Certain of the Group’s bank loans were guaranteed
by Shenzhen Maoye Group, Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Mrs.
Huang Jingzhang, Mr. Lin Zhen Xiong, Chongde Property
Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. and Chongging Maoye
Real Estate Co., Ltd.

(vi)

RN SIS SN NS
HARARNBNEFERAF
BRMEERERBES-

EEREEMEINEEEY
)UFE?F“K%IE@ZIK NS
BABMZIAER S AMEE

Eﬁizozsﬁmﬁsﬁlmﬁf
REBERFIREEEESR
AR #1,122,580,000TcRIE X 0
4. 75% N EFIZEFT B WE(E
B AR 549,500,000 & 4
LR

7—&%. S FIRITER T A FEY
R (EE) - EFXWMELE REF
T -MEBLE - REYEE
2 (R BRRBREEIXE
MEBRATHEFRC
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(continued)

(a) In addition to transactions detailed in note 39(d) to the financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year: (continued)

(viil) Mr. Lin Zhen Xiong is the legal person of some subsidiaries.

(viii) Shenzhen Shijin is 100% wholly owned by Mr. Tony Huang,
who is the son of Mr. Huang Mao Ru and the director of
Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha.

(ix) The related party transaction in respect of items above also
constitute connected transaction or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
during the year of 2023.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:
Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties
as at the end of the reporting period are included in notes 29
and 32 to the financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management

39. BB 75 32 5 B 45 BR (@)

(@) F 79 BRIL R #5 3Rk & M 5£39(d) Pt
R AEBBEBSETT T
N5 (@)

(Vi) MEBEERETHELTR
EHIAC

(vii) RN S A FHEIELE (FXW
EEZFRENREBFENE
) 2EHEAENABC

(ix) 120234 » it Z BRI 7532
SIrEN LRI F14AZETE
ENRERZAERER S

(b) EL2RARKTTHIREIBLEER
A S B S ¥R 5 HA R 2 R B 5 BY KRB
BERTBENMBREME29R
320

() EEEEASFHM

2023 2022

20234 20224F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETIT

Salaries and allowances e K2R 3,403 4,548
Retirement benefits BB 195 210
Total 48t 3,598 4,758

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8.
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Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(continued)

(d) The Group has rental contracts with five fellow subsidiaries of the
Group. At the reporting date, the Group had total lease liabilities
with fellow subsidiaries under non-cancellable leases falling due

as follows:

39. BT 32 5 BLAEER (D)

(d) ZEECEAERARBRNE LB
BRGNS B AEERELT
AECHEERRRNE AR ZHEEH
HESEERERIT

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

20234 20224
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT

Lease liabilities — current HEaE— R 84,862 86,217
Lease liabilities — non-current HESE—IFFRNER 843,147 929,771
Total 485t 928,009 1,015,988

Under such rental contracts, the minimum lease payment
during the year was RMB155,270,000 (81 December 2022:
RMB147,122,000). As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s right-
of use assets relating to such rental contracts amounted to
RMB958,842,000 (31 December 2022: RMB1,121,891,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. £RE T A48
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RESHRSESHRTENKEEET]
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: I
2023 20235

Financial assets at FVPL
URnEEHERHE
HABENEMEE
Designated
as such
upon initial
recognition

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost

Equity
investments
designated

Mandatorily
designed
as such

e
SR EHEE
RMB’000
UN=:5

EHMEE SRHIETE
RMB’000

ARETT

83
RMB’000
ARBTFR

Financial assets
RMB’000
AREFT

Equity investments designated at EEaUAsnBETERR

FVOCI SEst ALt 2mEE
EREE - - 756,773 - 756,773
Trade receivables e B 2 I8 - - - 26,810 26,810
Financial assets included in stATETRIE  HitE W RIE
prepayments, other receivables MHMEENEREE
and other assets - - - 2,002,387 2,002,387
Financial assets at FVPL NAnBEFEREEE
STABGNERMEE 9,650 21,826 - 31,476
Pledged deposits EEEMT - - - 245,519 245,519
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY - - 722,822 722,822
Total fast 9,650 21,826 756,773 2,997,538 3,785,787
Financial liabilities at FVPL
UrnEEFEEHES
StABEENERMER
Financial
liabilities at
Held for amortised
trading cost Total
BAHEZ
Financial liabilities EREE FIEEE EHEE Haz
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Trade and bills payables ERNESRIEREE - 1,458,160 1,458,160
Financial liabilities included in A HMENRIER
other payables and accruals B ERNESREE - 10,959,849 10,959,849
Lease liabilities HEEeRE - 1,767,862 1,767,862
Interest-bearing bank loans and SHEIRITERREMBER
other borrowings - 11,797,160 11,797,160
Total fBst - 25,983,031 25,983,031
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

2022

40. =R T EM D @

20224

Financial assets at FVPL
MARBEHERHES

STABRRNEREE
Designated Equity Financial
assuch  Mandatorily  investments assets at
upon initial designed  designated amortised
recognition as such at FVOClI cost Total
BEA
MRREE
SEHEHE
O
Hit2mH il
Ik ey A EN
Financial assets THEE REEE  REIETE  ERkE EREE Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARETRT ARBTRT AREBTR
Equity investments designated EEAUARBEFEER
at FVOCl HEE AHMPE D
ER N E - - 1,101,520 - 1,101,520
Trade receivables MW E Z I8 - - - 28,331 28,331
Financial assets included in SFATETIE Y A EUGRIE
prepayments, other receivables MEMEENESREE
and other assets - - - 2,183,999 2,183,999
Financial assets at FVPL UARBEtEEHEH
SFABENEREE 9,654 35,425 - - 45,079
Pledged deposits TEHER - - - 368,728 368,728
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEY - - - 556,293 556,293
Total “st 9,654 35,425 1,101,520 3,137,351 4,283,950
Financial liabilities at FVPL
UrnBEstEEHES)
StABENERERE
Financial
liabilities at
Held for amortised
trading cost Total
8
A EZ
Financial liabiliies TRERE BEEE SRHEE 4@zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT AREF T
Trade and bills payables RUESRERER - 1,600,620 1,600,620
Financial liabilities included in st AE M RUIE R
other payables and accruals ErERANEREAE - 10,219,834 10,219,834
Lease liabilities HEE&E - 2,125,870 2,125,870
Interest-bearing bank loans and stESRTEMREMMER
other borrowings - 12,864,282 12,864,282
Total 4mEt - 26,810,606 26,810,606
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Year ended 31 December 2023
HZFE2023F12831HIEFE

41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

41. ﬁ?ﬁlﬂﬂ’ﬂ’&ﬁfﬁ@&’&ﬁ%@

[=N1

AEETH TR GREEEEZAAEE
GEMAEERN NEREEEEZARE
BT

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREEE RAREE
KR NOLETT) LT 31 December ERINOELNT@ 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022
20235 20224 20234 20224
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 124318
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AEREBTT ARETT
Financial assets TREE
Equity investments designated EEANANEEFERE
at fair value through other sSE G AHMEEREN
comprehensive income BnkE 756,773 1,101,520 756,773 1,101,520
Financial assets at fair value through URnBETEEEEY
profit or loss SABENEREE 31,476 45,079 31,476 45,079
Total “st 788,249 1,146,599 788,249 1,146,599
Financial liabilities ERBE
Interest-bearing bank loans and HERITERRAMBER
other borrowings 11,797,160 12,864,282 11,797,160 12,864,282
Total s 11,797,160 12,864,282 11,797,160 12,864,282

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade
and bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, and amounts due from/to related parties
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the value of financial instruments and determines
the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2023
B ZE2023F12831HIEFE

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF MHEMTANARBERAREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The fair value of the liability portion of the
convertible bonds is estimated using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar convertible bond.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income have
been estimated using a market-based valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The valuation requires the directors to determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and
strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as
price to sales (“P/S”), price to book (‘P/B”) multiple and price to
earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for each comparable company identified.
The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple
is then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size
differences between the comparable companies based on company-
specific facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied
to the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity
investments to measure the fair value. The directors believe that the
estimated fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position,
and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Chinese Mainland. The
Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by
using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market
interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.

[E %k &)

FRca B FRHEN EHMEEKRE
BHRARBEDENRENRSTRXZE
FREEMZBM T AN EEERSIIR DL
THERBREARFERAEE !

stEEMMEMEMBNY AR BERRR
BHRARRBEERAEEAEBBELUER
EERERGNEMARNTABRE
AR RETITIRRE B - AR A
BEENaEdoRARBERREURR
REFBERNEFRHGHMERETESR

LHRERENARBERETSZRE
StE-IRERUAABESEREES
SPAEMEEWEAR EHRERERN
ARBEEBERHHHGEERM LR
R ANFAERBRRHEHLER T LUER
METHBE - HEERESERETE
RE BB R REEEE A LEBRAR
A8 (AF) > WE—HABI AT ERA
Bt EEENERER mEE (T
HER)) HERE ((HERE)) FHRHREE
(THEE) FH -ZBHERITLEERR
BINEEEERUBTGEENE X
ZEBHBREADFESERGBNR
MALERAD ZERBIERREER
FEZRAEARTURER - I REHER
RIFEEHREREMNERENFFEEL
SHERABE -EFDD KRAEATHY
BARKNBGERMEENEREAR
BEMCHEEEMEZERDNAREE
HREHBSE TR AZEEERT
BEMARERDEENEE-

AEBBKREIF LHRE  BIREARER
TEOTHNEMER ASEERAER
BREBEUGRRRRERN TANTISHE
WITREEAERAGFZFIFLTR
BENAREE-
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41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2023 and 2022:

N EMTANAARBERAAEE
[E 4% @

TR 20235 & 2022F12831H &
MTEGEMANERTTEREREHAE
K2/EBRE DT

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
BRI EATIBRRRBARE & AABEHBAENHRE
Unlisted equity Valuation Average P/E* multiple 2023: N/A 5% increase/decrease in
investments multiples of peers 2022: 17.48-32.18 multiple in 2022 would result in
FLmREERE HERH increase/decrease in fair value by
RMB3,349,000
FXFHHRE 20235 | FEA 2022FfEE E T RFE5%
20224F: BERANEBEEN, B
17.48-32.18 AE13,349,0007T

Average P/B multiple  2023: 0.60-0.63 5% (2022:5%) increase/decrease in
of peers  2022: 0.63-0.71 multiple would result in

increase/decrease in fair value by
RMB (1,359,000) (2022: RMB350,000)

AEFHTRE 2023%F 1 fEELLF TPE5% (2022%F 1 5%)
0.60-0.63 RERARBEEM R

20224 ! AE¥(1,359,000)7T

0.63-0.71 (20224 : AK#350,0007T)

Average P/S* multiple  2023: 0.61-0.69 5% increase/decrease in
of peers 2022: N/A multiple in 2023 would result in
increase/decrease in fair value by

RMB215,000

EERS SRS 20234 : 2023 EE EFt /T FE5%
0.61-0.69 RERANEELMEHD

20224 B AR #215,0007T

Discount for lack 2023: 20.00%- 5% (2022:5%) increase/decrease in
of marketability 34.99% discount would result in
2022: 10.00%- decrease/increase in fair value by

RER DIz RBIEM IR

36.82% RMB 2,480,000(2022: RMB654,000)

2023%F 1 EELEF, FBE5% (20224 1 5%)

20.00%-34.99% BERARBEEN,HLD
20224 . AR 2 480,0007T
10.00%-36.82% (20224 AR #654,0007T)

* Some entities invested change their valuation method from P/E to P/S
because they are loss-making in 2023, for which P/E is no longer an
appropriate valuation method.
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41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2023

N EMTANAARBERAAEE

[E 4% @

DREERR

TENPAERSHTANA R EES
BER

BRATFEFENEE
#2023%F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices
in active
markets

ERmIGERE
Level 1
B—&

RMB’000
ARETT

Financial assets at fair value

NAREESEAEES

AnEEHERER

Significant
observable
inputs
AR
BEABAE

Significant
unobservable
inputs
E#ﬁ‘]’éﬁﬁﬂ’]
BWAE

Level 3

F=8
RMB’000
ARBTR

RMB'000
AB®TF

through profit or loss SPABRNEREE 21,826 - 9,650 31,476
Equity investments designated BEANARBENEAH
at fair value through other et A\AEM2mRaEmE
comprehensive income miRE 570,160 - 186,613 756,773
Total 1R 591,986 - 196,263 788,249
As at 31 December 2022 12022512 H31H
Fair value measurement using
NAEEFESER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
o8gRY BAFOHREZR
HETIZRE BABAE HEAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ S8R B/ aast
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ANEEFT ARETT
Financial assets at fair value MAnBEE 2B EE
through profit or loss ABRNEREE 35,425 - 9,654 45,079
Equity investments designated BE EJW&%M“ (ERg=1==
at fair value through other et AEM2mkaEnE
comprehensive income EEQ 555,705 - 545,815 1,101,520
Total a5t 591,130 - 555,469 1,146,599

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into and out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2022: Nil).
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

42. A5 E R EIE B EMBER

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank loans, amounts due from/to related parties, and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating interest
rates.

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the interest-
bearing bank loans of the Group are set out in note 33 above.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the RMB interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact of
floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity during the year.

FAEBNIEEMRIAQESERITE
R FEWFE AT R EE S RIE U R IR & K
ReEBY ZFEMIANTIELN
ERTEENKEXBEEET A&
E B EEWE 5 IE KR &N B 7 IAT
NS EEMEMEEREREERE
EEEEET-

FEENERMIAMEEZTEZREE
EHXEEINERER S EERRE RE
MERMRRERR EFEEZNHTE
EEEERBRIBR IEFBRBE ML
Mo

RSN
AEEAR T BUEARE BT HFREH

EEAERN TR RS A -

AEBEFERITETNERAERER
EFRE R EXXHIsE33 0

TRIVTIR AT EAREE R AT
(BBEFEEFNTE) REAEEER

EFMERMEEERTENBRTHA

RENERNEERISEEBHHERE

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in basis points before tax in equity”
BEhEm MR ATF HEEm,
Gsl) 38 GR) GRL)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
31 December 2023 2023%F12831H
RMB AR 100 (220,034) -
RMB AR (100) 220,034 -
31 December 2022 20227%12831H -
RMB AR 100 (235,095) -
RMB AR (100) 235,095 -

*

Excluding retained profits
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42 IR EEBEMNBE @

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily relates to the
Group’s foreign interest-bearing bank borrowings, the currencies of
which are different from the functional currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the United States
dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (arising from United States dollar and RMB
denominated financial instruments).

B s B

AEEZ B BISNE LR T 2 AL EE
SNERIRTTERAR ZEFEBNHEAE
EEER A EEEHE-

TR S HARAE B R A
EFRERMEBERIFTAENBR TEE
TERGIETSEEHSIENUETRA
RESHENERM T EASRE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in US$ rate before tax
EEX FRAR A F
(R 1Em GR
% RMB’000
AREF T
2023 20235
If RMB weakens against the WARERETEE
United States dollar (5%) 10
If RMB strengthens against the MARBRETHE
United States dollar 5% (10)
2022 20225
If RMB weakens against the WARBERETEE
United States dollar (5%) 17
If RMB strengthens against the MARBRETHE
United States dollar 5% (17)

Credit risk

The Group’s sales of merchandise are mainly on a cash basis. For
credit sales, the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

EEREE

FEFBFEURESHTAHEB @B
RIED AEEERERAIREER
FRE=HETRZ LI AEEFE
BIERWTRIRAE R IRIRAERIL A E K-
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

42. B E G EIE B EMEBE @

EEEE (@
RAMORFRIEE T LE
TRETTC1I2AIHERAEREER
R EEENBEREER RIFEHEA
B P A B RE ) Bl ] ARy H B K 5]

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available

without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at B SHHNEEERERAEE R
31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts OREREEDIFE-FMETEREA TR
for financial assets. EENKREEE

As at 31 December 2023 #42023512831H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=fEREH
EE85H#E AfEAEREREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
H—MHEER B REER B k(o973 g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TR AR¥TR AR¥ETRT AR®ETR®
Trade receivables* eI E 78 - - - 26,810 26,810
Financial assets included in SEATERRIE
prepayments, other receivables HitEWIER
and other assets HthWEENEREE
~ Normal** & 1,624,397 - - - 1,624,397
- Doubtful** — o]k 377,990 - - - 377,990
Pledged deposits BIRHEER
- Not yet past due — M R AR 245,519 - - - 245,519
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY
— Not yet past due — A R AR 722,822 - - = 722,822
Total 4t 2,970,728 - - 26,810 2,997,538
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42 B R EIEBIEMBEE @)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

EERRE @
BAMI R KSR 748 (4
202251283 1H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+-EAEH
FEEE AEREREREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—REE S REER FMEEL % S
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR®
Trade receivables* m¥E &S - - - 28,331 28,331
Financial assets included in STABARIE
prepayments, other receivables HittEWIER
and other assets HthEENSREE
- Normal** —IEE™ 1,897,665 - - - 1,897,665
- Doubtful** — ] ke 286,334 - - - 286,334
Pledged deposits BIRHER
— Not yet past due kN 368,728 - - - 368,728
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY
— Not yet past due — B RA B 556,293 - - - 556,293
Total wast 3,109,020 - - 28,331 3,137,351

to the financial statements.

ke

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 28 to the

financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F£ERE

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 28

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Y RAERERBICEETRENHHEKRE
ZRIEAMS > AR EEERENER M BR
RIIsEo8IEE o

o FFATRMRIE AR RAMEEN
TREETIRBHEEENBRHEESER
FEVTHERBLUREERE LARRERER
HERMER) B8 ZEHEENEEER
AR ATEE ©

AEEEBWEZRAEEENEERR
MU Y — 25 B0 BRI E281K 58
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42, A S IR EEMEER @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk i ke
The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents AEENHRAERAEREMRESE
and have available funding through bank and other borrowings to BY) mEBIRT REMERLUR R A&
meet its working capital requirements. EEEEELAFR
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring AEERAKLBERBESFE LAY
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its EEESHMNER - LEBETAEZES
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and MTEAREMEE (FIUEWEZRIE)
projected cash flows from operations. PNEHRBELEAKLES ZHNEHRER

8o

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end REAR > ERSLOMRMIBARN
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted %nﬂ‘i%ﬁﬂ’] EIHAB R -

payments, was as follows:

2023
20234
Less than

On demand 1 year Over 1 year Total
HEX —FR —FE)E #az

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT ARBT ARBTT

Lease Liabilities HEaf - 296,821 1,471,041 1,767,862
Trade and bills payables ENEZRIENREE - 1,084,820 373,340 1,458,160
Contract liabilities, deposits received, aNaR Bl

accruals and other payables FEET & B R MM T8 - 6,239,606 4,720,243 10,959,849
Interest-bearing bank and other SEBTERREMER

borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) FraEHEEaR) - 7,379,868 6,111,393 13,491,261

= 15,001,115 12,676,017 27,677,132

2022
20224
Less than
On demand 1 year Over 1 year Total
BEK —FR —EME 45t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT ARBTT ARBTR  AR®TE

Lease Liabilities HEARE - 318,115 1,807,755 2,125,870
Trade and bills payables R EFTEREE - 1,260,158 340,462 1,600,620
Contract liabilities, deposits received, aNEaRE Bl

accruals and other payables Wufgﬁ&ﬁfwéﬁﬂﬁ - 6,103,662 4,116,172 10,219,834
Interest-bearing bank and other tERITERREMBER

borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) (I@%ﬁﬁf‘i%ﬁ) - 7,374,274 7,300,120 14,674,394

- 15,066,209 13,564,509 28,620,718
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42 B EEEIEEEMBE @)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk I E R %
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities B& 18 /2 B /2 45 R B 1 15 BUK T K (@ 7l 58
decrease as a result of changes in the level of equity indices and SFEEEFENIRAZSLAAEBET
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity BHER - AEEEHNKRERRRIES
price risk arising from equity investments designated at fair value EEABUARABESEEEEFHFT AR
through other comprehensive income (note 24) and individual equity teEWRENEREE (E24) RUA
investments included in financial assets at fair value through profit or nNEBEFEEHEH A ABENEME
loss (note 24). The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the ENENERIEE (H5E24) o RERED
Shenzhen and Shanghai stock exchanges and are valued at quoted IR ERERNFINR LEESERZM
market prices at the end of the reporting period. ko RER SRR SR EE o
The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, at the REARBAIRSHARANR S HEXER
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of BIAEREF > THEHRZZ TN T IHRE
the reporting period, and their respective highest and lowest points EEREZERERAN RS RREET
during the year were as follows: e
Year ended Year ended
YD LTT-T) DTG WO YT o -Tal 31 December 31 December
2023 2023 2022 2022
# 220235 HE20228
20235 12A31H 20224 12H31H
128315 fl:3:; 12A31H IEFE
High/low High/low
B/ 18 B/1&
Shenzhen - A Share Index FY—ARIEE 1,923 2,302/1,842 2,067  2,179/2,029
Shanghai - A Share Index LE-ARIEH 2,975 3,418/2,882 3,089 3,096/3,082
Capital management BERERE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AERBEAEENFTZERARMAREE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to FRENEETRLIZRNEARLSR
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and UERHHEBTAKRREIERAKEE
maximise shareholders’ value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments REBRBELTR TN EE MU KBRS
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk ENRREHEEAREEAREE S
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the HRNAREARRE AEBRBNBHE
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to TR FRENRE BREREBEARD
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The BRITHT AR o N 52 (B A =T ) 40 2B A A0 AN
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. BARRERIR R EE20235F 20224
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for 12831HIEFERN EAEEBEE K
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2023 and BRI EIEHE A& o
2022.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42 B RASESIEEENEE @

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as lease
liabilities plus interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings
(other than convertible bonds) less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. Capital includes the equity attributable to owners
of the parent. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2023 and
2022 were as follows:

BEXREIE @
AEERBEASBIEEEEFEAR  Z
LRI EIE SR UE AN EEIE S8
ZHstE - FEIEFERAEAEME
IRITERREMER GReTRRESIN
BEERB:EBY RERIFEFENR
H-EAGESATHEB ABRGRER A&
EENBRERELAEBILEERTRSG
BRI K 0 jR20234F K72022F12H31H
MEREBLEERYT :

31 December

31 December

2023 2022

20235 20224

12831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETFIT

Lease liabilities HEAE 1,767,862 2,125,870
Interest-bearing bank loans and other sTREIRITER R EHMER

borrowings 11,797,160 12,864,282
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and BCRESERESEEMR

pledged deposits BIRFFER (968,341) (925,021)

Net debt BI85 %8 12,596,681 14,065,131

Equity attributable to owners of the parent ~ &ATIHEA AEIEES 13,442,964 13,824,204

Adjusted capital KBRE R 13,442,964 13,824,204

Capital and net debt BAKRGIEFEE 26,039,645 27,889,335

Gearing ratio EARBBIEE 48% 50%

43.FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 43. U HBEREN

Guarantees amounting to RMB533,766,000 (2022:
RMB510,888,600) are given to banks with respect to mortgaged
loans procured by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such
guarantees will be released by banks upon the issuance of the real
estate ownership certificates to the purchasers or the satisfaction of
the mortgaged loans by the purchasers, whichever is earlier. In the
opinion of directors of the Company, the fair value of the financial
guarantee contracts is not significant.
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

44, IS QBRI TR

ERAAABDNRBREMRRMBRRIRNE

KA ;

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
20234 20224
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRAEZKE 150,782 146,529
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments and other receivables B RIB R A M EWRIE - 2,284
Dividend receivable FEU AR B 1,271,243 1,234,902
Due from subsidiaries FEUS It B AT =RIE 785,289 762,840
Due from related parties JE U BE Bt 5 =R 1B 28,684 27,864
Cash and cash equivalents REMIREEEY 1,939 1,468
Total current assets TRENE EAREE 2,087,155 2,029,358
CURRENT LIABILITIES wREAaE
Other payables and accruals Hih I IB R BT & A 26,208 3,068
Dividend payable FE{TRR B 31 27
Due to subsidiaries FET I B AT = IE 969,205 813,550
Due to the immediate holding company P B ERR A BIRIE 693,004 639,852
Interest-bearing bank loans and FEIRITERRHMER
other borrowings - 74,214
Total current liabilities MENEELREE 1,688,448 1,530,711
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 398,707 498,647
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERTHER
LIABILITIES 549,489 645,176
Net assets BEFE 549,489 645,176
Equity T
Issued capital BT A 460,153 460,153
Reserves (note) % (50 89,336 185,023
Total equity EmABER 549,489 645,176
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HZFE2023F12831HIEFE
44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. AT B FHAR R @)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: MIEE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KABABBEES W T -
Share Capital Exchange
premium redemption Contributed  fluctuation  Accumulated
account reserve surplus reserve losses Total
e ShEE R
R {7 s EER it BB fikfE 2R Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TRT AR¥ETRT ARETT ARETE AE®TT AR¥TR
Balance at 1 January 2022 R202251 B1B K4 ER 1,631,103 21,770 152,671 (564,689) (971,796) 275,059
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEBELEE - - - 56,491 (146,527) (90,036)
At 31 December 2022 120225128310 1,631,103 27,770 152,671 (508,198) (1,118,323) 185,023
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNR2EBELEE - - - (28,384) (67,303) (95,687)
At 31 December 2023 120235128310 1,631,103 27,770 152,671 (536,582) (1,185,626) 89,336
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair KNANBEHBREGISFTIRENE AT KD
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over the previous HARBEBAEAATSMTHBMETZ
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor. RhiEEEmE s EZE
45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45, BRI ISR R A9
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by BB E N 2024FE3HB 20 EEE =
the board of directors on 20 March 2024. HE R IEREE T
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Tang Haifeng

Non-executive Director
Mr. Tony Huang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Rao Yong
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Gao Yajun

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion

Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman Islands
HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

38/F, Tower A, World Finance Centre

4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, PRC
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 3301, 33/F, Office Tower Convention Plaza
No. 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yan Xin (resigned on 17 August 2023)
Ms. Wong Yuen Ki, ACG, HKACG
(appointed on 17 August 2023)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Rao Yong (Chairman)
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Gao Yajun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao Ping Wing (Chairman)
Mr. Rao Yong
Mr. Gao Yajun
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman)
Mr. Rao Yong
Mr. Pao Ping Wing

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

Mr. Tony Huang
Ms. Wong Yuen Ki

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES PURSUANT TO THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE

Mr. Tony Huang
Ms. So Ka Man

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Ping An Bank of China

Jinshang Bank

China Construction Bank

Agricultural Bank of China

COMPANY WEBSITE

WWWw.maoye.cn

STOCK CODE
848
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